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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

10:46 a.m.: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: At t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l Case 

11,808. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of B u r l i n g t o n Resources 

O i l and Gas Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g and a 

nonstandard gas p r o r a t i o n and spacing u n i t , San Juan 

County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: C a l l f o r appearances i n t h i s 

case. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the Ap p l i c a n t , B u r l i n g t o n Resources O i l and 

Gas Company. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Mr. Examiner, I'm Gene Gallegos, 

Gallegos Law Firm, Santa Fe, New Mexico. Along w i t h me i s 

Jason Doughty. We're appearing i n behalf of Wayne Moore 

and i n behalf of a group of owners I ' l l r e f e r t o as the 

GLA-66 group, who own the acreage c o n s t i t u t i n g t h r e e -

f o u r t h s of the s e c t i o n i n question. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l from the 

M i l l e r , S t r a t v e r t and Torgerson law f i r m , Santa Fe, on 

behalf of T o t a l Minatome Corporation. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we would l i k e t o 

con s o l i d a t e f o r purposes of testimony Case 11,808 w i t h Case 
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11,809. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I s th e r e any o b j e c t i o n t o 

th a t ? 

MR. GALLEGOS: We have no o b j e c t i o n t o 

con s o l i d a t e s o l e l y f o r the purpose of combining the t a k i n g 

of the evidence. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, a t t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l 

Case 11,809. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of B u r l i n g t o n Resources 

O i l and Gas Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , an unorthodox 

gas w e l l l o c a t i o n and a nonstandard p r o r a t i o n u n i t , San 

Juan County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Do we have the same 

appearances i n both cases? 

MR. HALL: Yes, we do. 

MR. GALLEGOS: I n 11,809, Mr. Examiner, the 

GLA-66 group does not have an i n t e r e s t , so we'd be 

appearing i n t h a t case i n behalf of Wayne Moore. 

MR. HARRIS: May I approach the Commission — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Sure. 

MR. HARRIS: — concerning 11,809? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes, s i r . 

MR. HARRIS: I ' d l i k e t o request a 3 0-day 

continuance on t h a t due t o the f a c t the lawyer I've 

r e t a i n e d i s i n Texas t i e d up on business r i g h t now. 
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MR. CARROLL: And who are you, s i r ? 

MR. HARRIS: I'm Bert H a r r i s . I represent Mary 

Maude H a r r i s , who owns an o r i g i n a l lease w i t h i n t he u n i t , 

and t h i s concerns a spacing u n i t already i n the proposed 

u n i t t h a t they're proposing, and there's s e v e r a l breaches 

w i t h i n t h a t . There's acreage t h a t has never been p a i d on. 

And we are i n the process of g e t t i n g t h a t a l l s t r a i g h t e n e d 

out, but nothing's happened t h a t we've ever got back ahold 

of me. And I gave Amoco word t h a t I was coming here; they 

asked me not t o . 

MR. CARROLL: You mean Burling t o n ? 

MR. HARRIS: No, Amoco who holds the lease, but 

i t represents B u r l i n g t o n . Amoco holds 68 percent of the 

working i n t e r e s t i n the u n i t proposed. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, i t appears t h i s 

gentleman's disp u t e i s w i t h Amoco and not t h e A p p l i c a n t . 

We b e l i e v e h i s problems are beyond the scope of t h i s case. 

MR. CARROLL: Then, s i r , you're here because — 

Your i n t e r e s t d i d receive n o t i c e of the hearing? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, we d i d r e c e i v e n o t i c e of i t , 

b ut when I got up w i t h my said counsel, due t o the s h o r t 

amount of time I had, he was unable t o reschedule t o be 

here. He i s i n Texas on a case. 

MR. CARROLL: And who i s your counsel? 

MR. HARRIS: John Dexter, out of Oklahoma. 
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The reason I come here today i s , t h e 

communitization u n i t set up w i t h i n t h i s u n i t , c a l l e d t he 

Boyd U n i t , i n the west h a l f of Section 8, i n 1954, t he 

acreage e s t a b l i s h e d there i s not being f o l l o w e d c o r r e c t l y . 

The i n d i v i d u a l land owners, the farmers i n t h a t area, t h e i r 

acreage has been dropped d r a m a t i c a l l y . 

But y e t the r a i l r o a d lease i n t h e r e , t he f e d e r a l 

lease and any lease t h a t shows an accountant h a n d l i n g t h a t , 

the acreage has stayed the same, but ye t Amoco s t i l l bases 

a l l of i t s p r o r a t i o n i n g pay based on a 324 spacing u n i t , 

but the acreage a i n ' t t h e r e , i t don't add up. They keep 

dropping the i n d i v i d u a l owners' acreage o f f . 

And I would l i k e t o get t h i s r e solved before they 

go ahead w i t h t h i s . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Mr. Examiner — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I d i d n ' t mean t o i n t e r r u p t you. 

I want t o speak t o t h i s matter because, as you 

know, we sought a continuance of t h i s case. I have never 

seen a case i n t h i s D i v i s i o n move w i t h the r a p i d i t y of t h i s 

one. We received n o t i c e of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n on June 20th, 

2 0 days ago, w i t h an i n t e r v e n i n g h o l i d a y . 

We f i l e d a motion f o r continuance, we sought 

discovery. We've had no o p p o r t u n i t y t o have discovery from 

B u r l i n g t o n , t o o b t a i n any k i n d of t e c h n i c a l data or 
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i n f o r m a t i o n so t h a t we can prepare expert testimony. 

Our e f f o r t s a t discovery, although t h e r e ' s been 

no w r i t t e n r u l i n g , but I t h i n k the record should r e f l e c t we 

simply received a phone c a l l Tuesday afte r n o o n , l a t e 

Tuesday afternoon, saying our motion f o r continuance i s 

denied, our subpoena duces tecum i s quashed. 

And t h i s i s j u s t the k i n d of s i t u a t i o n we're 

faced w i t h , because there seems t o be t h i s e x t r a o r d i n a r y 

rush f o r t h i s matter t o be heard due t o the d e s i r e s of 

B u r l i n g t o n but overlooking the r i g h t s of any other p a r t i e s 

t h a t are v i t a l l y a t stake here. 

For example, i n the Section 29 case, the p a r t i e s 

I represent own a f a r l a r g e r p o r t i o n of t h a t lease i n t e r e s t 

than B u r l i n g t o n . We're t a l k i n g 66, 67 percent of the 

acreage, w i t h B u r l i n g t o n 10 percent. But e v e r y t h i n g i s 

being done here t o accommodate B u r l i n g t o n i n every way. 

I support t h i s gentleman's request f o r 

continuance, and I renew our motion f o r continuance. Let's 

do t h i s i n an o r d e r l y manner where somebody can have an 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o prepare and have some discovery, and t h a t ' s 

what due process i s about. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you want t o 

respond? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

Mr. Examiner, we proposed these w e l l s t o the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 8 and i n Section 9. Those 

proposals and AFEs went out more than 10 and 11 weeks ago. 

This i s a p l a i n - v a n i l l a , r o u t i n e p o o l i n g case. 

There are no t e c h n i c a l issues i n v o l v e d i n t h i s p o o l i n g 

case. This i s not a spacing case, t h i s i s not a drainage 

case. This i s a p o o l i n g case. 

The only evidence I have t o present today i s a 

d r i l l i n g engineer who w i l l t e l l you t h a t t h i s i s the f i r s t 

attempt f o r a deep-gas San Juan Basin gas w e l l i n years, 

t h a t the p r i o r 28 attempts have a l l been f a i l u r e s . 

We are l o o k i n g f o r a r i s k f a c t o r p e n a l t y of 200 

percent, based upon the absence of evidence t h a t t h e r e i s 

any p o s s i b l e production. The f a c t i s t h a t the maximum 

pe n a l t y i s j u s t i f i e d . 

I've brought a d r i l l i n g engineer t o t a l k about 

the AFE, I've brought a landman t o t a l k about e f f o r t s t o 

c o n s o l i d a t e the p r o p e r t i e s and i n t e r e s t s . 

But a t t h i s p o i n t there's no need f o r discovery 

of B u r l i n g t o n ' s p r o p r i e t a r y seismic data or a n y t h i n g e l s e . 

This should be a simple matter, and the opponents are 

t r y i n g t o make i t complicated. There's no reason we can't 

go forward. 

MR. CARROLL: Did you b r i n g a g e o l o g i s t t o 

address the r i s k issue? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , I d i d not, based upon 
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your o r a l decisions the other day, d e c i d i n g t h a t the 

seismic i n f o r m a t i o n was p r o p r i e t a r y and I need not produce 

i t . So I have not chosen t o b r i n g a g e o l o g i s t . We're 

addressing r i s k f a c t o r based on the absence of deep gas 

pro d u c t i o n i n the San Juan Basin. I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s a 

matter of geologic proof. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Excuse me, but t h i s i s a new 

r u l i n g I have not heard of t h a t — There's been some r u l i n g 

t h a t c e r t a i n data, seismic data, i s p r o p r i e t a r y ? Where 

does t h a t come from and how has t h a t been announced? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t was announced o r a l l y when you 

quashed the motion t o produce t h a t data. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, Mr. Examiner, t h i s i s not 

the simple case t h a t B u r l i n g t o n would l i k e f o r i t t o be. 

I t i s a very e x t r a o r d i n a r y case. 

I t i nvolves the e x p l o r a t i o n on a t e s t basis of 

something t h a t ' s obviously never been approached before i n 

the Basin, and i t ' s doing i t i n a manner t h a t c asts most of 

the expense on other p a r t i e s , r a t h e r than on B u r l i n g t o n 

i t s e l f . 

There are a myriad of issues, whether the w e l l i s 

even necessary — t h a t has t o be proven — and whether 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s of the other p a r t i e s are being 

p r o t e c t e d , whether a r i s k f a c t o r of any magnitude i s 

j u s t i f i e d . A l l of the standards under Section 70-2-17C 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

12 

have t o be proven, have t o be e s t a b l i s h e d f o r t h i s p a r t y , 

and we're e n t i t l e d t o contest those. 

But we can't do i t i n the dark. B u r l i n g t o n 

simply says, We hold a l l the cards, we know e v e r y t h i n g 

about why we're approaching t h i s , you a l l are e n t i t l e d t o 

know not h i n g but put up your p r o p e r t y or put up your money, 

one or the other. E i t h e r you pay on a $ 2 . 3 - m i l l i o n w e l l or 

you lose your property. I n the dark. 

That's what's going on here, and t h a t i s no way 

f o r t h e r e t o be a f a i r determination of the issues here. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May I respond t o Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. CARROLL: Well, maybe w e ' l l hear from Mr. 

H a l l i f he has anything t o say a t t h i s p o i n t ? 

MR. HALL: Thank you, Mr. C a r r o l l . Let me add 

from T o t a l ' s perspective t h a t t h e r e are a d d i t i o n a l issues 

on the t a b l e than Mr. K e l l a h i n i d e n t i f i e d , and they are 

issues created by Bur l i n g t o n ' s a c t i o n i n t h i s case. 

From our perspective there are the a d d i t i o n a l 

issues o f , one, whether Total's i n t e r e s t s have been 

committed v o l u n t a r i l y t o the two w e l l s . We b e l i e v e they 

have. Two, whether B u r l i n g t o n has attempted t o o b t a i n 

T o t a l ' s v o l u n t a r y consent t o p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n a g o o d - f a i t h 

manner. 

And t h r e e , the t h i r d issue, t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 

i t s e l f has created, i s whether or not the GLA-46 agreement 
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i s a p p l i c a b l e t o the deep r i g h t s f o r both of these w e l l s . 

From t h e i r correspondence and conduct t o date, they have 

cast t h a t i n issue. We're e n t i t l e d t o pursue i t . 

They dispute i t s existence and i t s a p p l i c a b i l i t y 

t o t he deep r i g h t s , and i t has a d i r e c t bearing on an issue 

t h i s D i v i s i o n Examiner has t o make, whether or not t h e r e 

has been a v o l u n t a r y commitment. We need discovery on 

t h a t . You're e n t i t l e d t o a f u l l , f a i r and complete hearing 

on the f a c t s on t h a t issue, and I b e l i e v e i t ' s a f a c t u a l 

issue, i n my view. We need t o do a d d i t i o n a l discovery on 

t h a t , t o present t h a t p a r t i c u l a r matter t o you so you can 

r u l e . 

This case i s not ready t o proceed today. 

MR. CARROLL: And why i s i t a f a c t u a l matter? 

MR. HALL: Whether or not the GLA-46 simply 

a p p l i e s t o the deep r i g h t s . We want t o be able t o put 

on — 

MR. CARROLL: That sounds l i k e l e g a l 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , r a t h e r than a f a c t u a l matter. 

MR. HALL: I t may be a mixed question. I t h i n k 

i t ' s more a question of f a c t now. We want t o be able t o 

put on f a c t u a l proof about t h a t , about the course of 

performance, course of de a l i n g w i t h p a r t i e s over time. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May I respond? 

MR. CARROLL: (Nods) 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I n Section 8 t h e Marcotte w e l l i s 

d r i l l i n g as we speak. I n the Marcotte w e l l i n Section 8, 

B u r l i n g t o n has consolidated 93 percent of the i n t e r e s t 

owners on a v o l u n t a r y basis. Moore has 2.25 percent, 

Minatome has 4.65 percent. 

The other spacing u n i t i n question i s i n Section 

9. I n t h a t s e c t i o n t h e r e are i n t e r e s t owners t h a t Mr. 

Gallegos represents t h a t are not i n the Section 8 w e l l . 

The D i v i s i o n has never decided i n a p o o l i n g case 

the p r e r o g a t i v e of the operator t o s e l e c t the spacing u n i t . 

Mr. Gallegos wants t o have a debate and discovery on why 

B u r l i n g t o n chose Section 8. That has never been r e l e v a n t 

before i n terms of these p o o l i n g cases. 

Mr. Gallegos wants t o explore the seismic 

i n f o r m a t i o n t o determine why we've sele c t e d t h i s area f o r 

t h i s f i r s t t e s t w e l l . That, q u i t e f r a n k l y , i s not r e l e v a n t 

t o p o o l i n g cases. 

Mr. H a l l wants t o have you l i t i g a t e h i s c o n t r a c t 

d i s p u t e . I would suggest t o you we could take a ten-minute 

break and you can read the 1951 farmout o p e r a t i n g agreement 

and conclude i t i s not ambiguous. I t simply provided, back 

then, f o r 18 Mesaverde w e l l s t o be d r i l l e d w i t h i n a s h o r t 

p e r i o d of time, a matter of a few years, and t h a t they were 

a l l d r i l l e d and completed. 

You can f i n d , i f you want t o explore t h a t k i n d of 
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t o p i c , t h a t a l l the GLA-4 6 owners, with the exception of 

Minatome, have agreed t o the deep gas exploration based 

upon j o i n i n g Burlington's farmout. No one but Minatome 

takes the pos i t i o n that GLA-46 somehow applied t o the deep 

gas. Quite frankly, that's outside your j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

And quite frankly, Mr. Hall's strategy i s flawed 

because i t violates the rules of evidence. He wants t o 

attack, explain and otherwise have you engage i n a debate 

about the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of that contract. This i s not the 

forum f o r that topic. 

MR. HARRIS: Regarding Section 8 which he speaks 

of, the working i n th a t , he don't mention nothing about the 

o r i g i n a l leaseholders' i n t e r e s t i n there and the 

s t i p u l a t i o n w i t h i n the o r i g i n a l o i l and gas leases t h a t 

don't allow them to pool the people's property i n a u n i t 

larger than 320 acres. 

That's one of the reasons I'm here, i s because of 

the breaches tha t have come w i t h i n t h a t 320-acre u n i t 

already. The landowners out there — not a l l of them — 

the o r i g i n a l mineral-right holders, the farmers t h a t have 

l i v e d there f o r generations that a c t u a l l y hold the r i g h t s 

of those minerals underneath t h e i r ground, they — they 

have not given t h e i r approval f o r i t . 

MR. CARROLL: Sir, when you t a l k about breaches, 

you're usually t a l k i n g about breaches of contract, and 
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t h a t ' s u s u a l l y f o r the courts t o decide. 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARROLL: Normally i n compulsory p o o l i n g 

cases, we look a t whether the a p p l i c a n t has a working 

i n t e r e s t and the r i g h t t o d r i l l . I f the working i n t e r e s t 

— the a p p l i c a n t does own a working i n t e r e s t , he does have 

the r i g h t t o d r i l l and he does have the r i g h t t o compulsory 

pool other p a r t i e s . 

We also look a t whether there's been an attempted 

v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h nonconsenting p a r t i e s , and t h a t 

w i l l be p a r t of the evidence of t h i s case. 

There was a request f o r a bunch of i n f o r m a t i o n 

through the use of subpoenas and the subpoenaing of a 

witness regarding a bunch of pure — j u s t g e o l o g i c a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n , which i s r e a l l y not r e l e v a n t t o a compulsory 

p o o l i n g case unless i t r e l a t e s t o r i s k . 

I n t h i s case, the A p p l i c a n t i s d r i l l i n g f o r deep 

gas, and the standard r i s k imposed by the D i v i s i o n i n 

compulsory p o o l i n g cases i s 2 00 percent, unless i t ' s c o a l -

seam gas, and t h a t ' s 156 percent. 

Mr. Gallegos, was the i n f o r m a t i o n you were t r y i n g 

t o o b t a i n — was t h a t r e l a t e d t o the r i s k p e n a l t y and t o 

show t h a t t h i s w e l l was — should be assessed l e s s than a 

200-percent r i s k ? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I t would r e l a t e t o t h a t . I t would 
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also r e l a t e t o the necessity of d r i l l i n g t he w e l l . The 

s t a t u t e speaks of avoiding the d r i l l i n g of unnecessary 

w e l l s . 

Mr. K e l l a h i n says, Oh, i t ' s never been r e l e v a n t 

as t o where an operator decides he's going t o d r i l l a w e l l 

on a spacing u n i t . 

I t h i n k t h i s case demonstrates t h e uniqueness of 

the issues we have here. B u r l i n g t o n has come here on a 

f a s t - t r a c k basis t o ob t a i n s i x hundred — 

MR. CARROLL: I would beg t o d i f f e r on the f a s t -

t r a c k basis. I t ' s p r e t t y standard here t o have a case 

heard 2 0 days a f t e r n o t i c e has been given. This i s not an 

e x t r a o r d i n a r y case, by any means. I n f a c t , most of our 

compulsory p o o l i n g cases come before the D i v i s i o n t h i s 

f a s t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: I t h i n k i t ' s p r e t t y e x t r a o r d i n a r y 

t o not al l o w continuance on a case when any p a r t y asks f o r 

i t and t o have i t heard the f i r s t time i t ' s on the docket. 

I counted, I t h i n k , eleven cases today t h a t had been 

p r e v i o u s l y continued, t h a t were again continued. I don't 

p r a c t i c e here w i t h the r e g u l a r i t y — 

MR. CARROLL: Well, s i r , t h a t ' s u s u a l l y t he 

a p p l i c a n t t h a t asks f o r a continuance, and i f the a p p l i c a n t 

asks f o r a continuance, i t ' s granted. 

MR. GALLEGOS: And u s u a l l y the a p p l i c a n t , because 
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there ' s comity, i f another p a r t y asks f o r the time and 

needs time f o r p r e p a r a t i o n , my experience has been, whether 

you're a p p l i c a n t or whoever, you agree t o i t and you allow 

t h a t continuance t o allow somebody proper time f o r 

p r e p a r a t i o n . 

I have never had a circumstance where continuance 

hasn't been allowed, and u s u a l l y i t ' s a matter of 

agreement, because the p a r t i e s understand t h a t each one has 

the — needs t h e i r p a r t i c u l a r o p p o r t u n i t y f o r p r e p a r a t i o n 

t o o b t a i n witnesses. 

There's no way t h a t we can b r i n g expert 

testimony, even on the r i s k f a c t o r , before t h i s D i v i s i o n . 

MR. CARROLL: What attempts have been made a t 

agreement t o continue the case? 

MR. GALLEGOS: They've been denied. We sought 

t h a t . 

MR. CARROLL: Sought t h a t from B u r l i n g t o n ? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Mr. K e l l a h i n has refused. 

But l e t me i n d i c a t e t h a t , you know, t h e r e has t o 

be more of an issue as t o the l o c a t i o n of t h i s w e l l than 

j u s t simply — We take i t as a given, as any operator comes 

i n , l e t ' s say on Section 9, somebody has a working i n t e r e s t 

of 10 percent i n a s e c t i o n and i s going t o cast the cost of 

a $ 2 . 3 - m i l l i o n w e l l on everybody el s e , when i n an a d j o i n i n g 

s e c t i o n t h a t operator owns or c o n t r o l s 90, 100 percent of 
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the acreage, c e r t a i n l y r a i s e s the question, when you're 

doing what i s supposedly e x p l o r a t o r y d r i l l i n g , why aren't 

you i n the next s e c t i o n , where you c o n t r o l the acreage? 

Why are you coming i n t o a s e c t i o n where we're going t o say 

t o t he other i n t e r e s t owners, You e i t h e r pay f o r t h i s w e l l 

$ 2 - m i l l i o n - p l u s or you lose your i n t e r e s t ? 

I f B u r l i n g t o n — 

MR. CARROLL: Wait a minute, h o l d i t . They don't 

lose t h e i r i n t e r e s t i f they don't pay f o r the w e l l . 

MR. GALLEGOS: They e f f e c t i v e l y lose t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t on a 2 00-percent — 

MR. CARROLL: What do most o p e r a t i n g agreements 

provide f o r i n a penalty? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I t h i n k 2 00 percent i s f a i r l y 

common, on d r i l l i n g . Y o u ' l l n o t i c e — 

MR. CARROLL: Anything less than 200 percent? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Y o u ' l l n o t i c e i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n 

some, some l e s s , yes. 

Y o u ' l l n o t i c e i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , Mr. C a r r o l l , 

t h a t B u r l i n g t o n i s not content t o seek the 200-percent 

p e n a l t y on d r i l l i n g . B u r l i n g t o n i s asking f o r a 200-

percent p e n a l t y on completion, on surface f a c i l i t i e s , a f t e r 

the p o i n t has been reached where they know whether there's 

a w e l l or not. They want 200-percent p e n a l t y on o p e r a t i n g 

expense. So, i n e f f e c t i t would c o n f i s c a t e the — 
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MR. CARROLL: Well, which w e l l i s — which — 

which case — I n which case i s the w e l l being d r i l l e d r i g h t 

now? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s i n Section 8. I t ' s t h e 

Marcotte w e l l , and t h a t ' s the s e c t i o n i n which B u r l i n g t o n 

has consolidated 93 percent of the owners v o l u n t a r i l y . 

MR. GALLEGOS: That's 11,809, i s t h a t case. 

MR. CARROLL: We're going t o break f o r a couple 

minutes. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 11:08 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 11:10 a.m.) 

MR. CARROLL: We're going t o go ahead and hear 

the case and defer our r u l i n g on the motions t o continue 

t i l l the end of testimony, and we might a t t h a t time r u l e 

t o continue the case t o hear a d d i t i o n a l testimony. 

At t h i s p o i n t we're also going t o l i m i t t he 

evidence and testimony t o the issues a t hand. I t appears 

t h a t B u r l i n g t o n w i l l show t h a t they're a working i n t e r e s t 

owner i n these two sections , and then they have t h e r i g h t 

t o d r i l l . 

Questions regarding why they're d r i l l i n g t he 

w e l l , we don't want t o hear any questions or testimony 

r e g a r d i n g t h a t . 

The p a r t i e s i n a compulsory — The p a r t i e s being 

compulsory pooled do have the r i g h t t o not pay t h e i r money 
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up f r o n t . They probably w i l l be assessed a r i s k p e n a l t y , 

because no one should get a f r e e r i d e on somebody e l s e . 

Again, the r u l i n g s on the motions f o r discovery 

were denied because they appeared t o r e l a t e t o the geology 

and as t o why these l o c a t i o n s were chosen. 

Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: May I address t h a t , please? 

When we applied f o r our subpoena, the scope of i t 

was l i m i t e d t o land issues, t i t l e issues. The day the 

subpoena was issued I faxed a copy of t h a t t o Mr. K e l l a h i n , 

along w i t h a l e t t e r s t a t i n g t h a t I understood p r o d u c t i o n of 

t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , i n a d d i t i o n t o the engineering and 

geologic data t h a t Mr. Gallegos had requested, would be 

problematic before the time of t h i s hearing, and o f f e r e d t o 

work w i t h him t o reach some s o r t of an accommodation on 

t h a t , got no response t o t h a t . As Hearing Examiner, you 

should understand t h a t the scope of t h a t subpoena was q u i t e 

d i f f e r e n t . 

That's our primary issue, i s the v o l u n t a r y 

commitment issue. I t ' s our p o s i t i o n i n t h i s case t h a t we 

have consented t o t h i s w e l l , we are v o l u n t a r i l y 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g . We want t o put on evidence about t h a t . 

We b e l i e v e there i s more evidence out t h e r e about 

t h a t , t h a t would show B u r l i n g t o n ' s , Meridian's, E l Paso's 

acquiescence i n a long-standing course of performance, 
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course of conduct under the GLA-46, which would help t h e 

D i v i s i o n Examiner show t h a t , yes, indeed, we are consenting 

v o l u n t a r i l y , w i l l e l i m i n a t e t h a t issue as f a r as we're 

concerned. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. H a l l , the D i v i s i o n i s n ' t i n the 

business of i n t e r p r e t i n g o l d operating agreements or 

communitization agreements. That i s up t o the c o u r t s . 

I b e l i e v e the D i v i s i o n can fa s h i o n an order t h a t 

could provide f o r the contingency t h a t a c o u r t would f i n d , 

t h a t T o t a l has v o l u n t a r i l y committed, and t h a t ' s the i n t e n t 

of t h e D i v i s i o n . 

MR. GALLEGOS: I f i t please the Examiner, Mr. 

C a r r o l l , l e t me j u s t e x p l a i n a l i t t l e f u r t h e r , as you're 

speaking about d e f i n i n g the issues here. 

Whether or not B u r l i n g t o n has sought v o l u n t a r y 

agreement on a genuine and g o o d - f a i t h basis i s a very 

important issue. 

MR. CARROLL: That's an issue we w i l l hear. 

MR. GALLEGOS: And t h a t ' s why we're seeking 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t we have sought by the subpoena duces 

tecum. 

There i s no way t h a t people can make a d e c i s i o n 

whether they w i l l j o i n i n a w e l l , and p a r t i c u l a r l y a w e l l 

of t h i s magnitude, i n an unknown s i t u a t i o n , w i t h o u t having 

the k i n d of i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t i s commonly provided by 
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operators who are proposing t o other working i n t e r e s t 

owners the d r i l l i n g of a w e l l . 

I f B u r l i n g t o n would f u r n i s h the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

says t o them, We have a prospect, and i t must say t o them, 

We t h i n k we can recover something, we probably wouldn't be 

here. 

Our c l i e n t s would be i n t e r e s t e d i n v o l u n t a r i l y 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g , i f they have some i n f o r m a t i o n on which t o 

make t h a t d e c i s i o n . That's what we're seeking, t h a t ' s what 

the subpoena sought, so t h a t we can get the i n f o r m a t i o n and 

evaluate i t , have an expert evaluate i t . We may say, This 

i s f i n e , we want t o p a r t i c i p a t e , we want t o be w i t h you. 

But we have had — 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Gallegos, I am going t o ask f o r 

l e g a l memoranda a t the end of t h i s case showing what 

i n f o r m a t i o n can be obtained, or t h a t t hey're l e g a l l y 

e n t i t l e d t o , p r i o r t o the j o i n i n g i n a w e l l , whether under 

v o l u n t a r y agreement or under compulsory p o o l i n g . And you 

can make your argument a t t h a t time. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you want t o respond t o Mr. 

Gallegos? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Not a t t h i s time, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I'm not sure t h a t t h a t ' s 

c o r r e c t , t h a t t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n i s not commonly, i n most 

cases, i s not commonly given t o i n t e r e s t owners t o a i d them 
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i n making a determination. I'm not sure t h a t M e r i d i a n or 

B u r l i n g t o n i s under an o b l i g a t i o n t o provide the i n t e r e s t 

owners w i t h t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n i f i t ' s seismic data or other 

data t h a t cost B u r l i n g t o n an amount of money. 

I mean, i t would make no sense t o f u r n i s h t o the 

i n t e r e s t owners a t no — 

MR. CARROLL: And you can make your arguments i n 

the memoranda I'm asking f o r . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, w e ' l l present evidence t h a t 

i t i s common p r a c t i c e and t h a t other operators have 

f u r n i s h e d i t t o our c l i e n t s when they seek t h e i r 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the w e l l . How else does somebody make the 

decision? 

MR. CARROLL: They can h i r e t h e i r own g e o l o g i s t 

and review the p u b l i c records and make t h a t . 

You can also i n f e r from the A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n considers t h i s a — Any person t h a t wants t o 

d r i l l a w e l l u s u a l l y considers i t a good enough prospect t o 

b r i n g a case. 

MR. GALLEGOS: And we'd l i k e t o know why, what 

basis t h a t i s , and I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l t h a t ' s being sought. 

Voluntary agreement means e x a c t l y t h a t , two 

p a r t i e s mutually on something. For us t o do t h a t — and 

we're open t o doing i t — we need the i n f o r m a t i o n . 

MR. CARROLL: You would l i k e the i n f o r m a t i o n , 
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t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

S h a l l we s t a r t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . C a l l James S t r i c k l e r . 

Mr. S t r i c k l e r needs t o be sworn, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's get a l l t he 

witnesses — 

MR. CARROLL: How many witnesses do we have? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: ~ t h a t we're going t o have 

today. Mr. Gallegos, do you have witnesses? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Yes, we do. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r , I have two t h i s morning. 

MR. CARROLL: So a t o t a l of six? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

JAMES R.J. STRICKLER. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r ? Mr. S t r i c k l e r , f o r t h e re c o r d , 

s i r , would you please s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s James S t r i c k l e r , and I'm a senior 

s t a f f landman f o r B u r l i n g t o n Resources i n Farmington, New 

Mexico. 

Q. And where do you re s i d e , s i r ? 
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A. I also reside i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d before t h e 

D i v i s i o n as an expert i n petroleum land management issues? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. What are your c u r r e n t r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s f o r your 

company concerning Sections 8 and Section 9? 

A. I'm the Penn landman t h a t i s r e s p o n s i b l e t o — 

resp o n s i b l e , securing land agreements t o d r i l l w e l l s i n San 

Juan County, New Mexico. 

Q. When d i d you f i r s t become resp o n s i b l e f o r 

c o n s o l i d a t i n g i n t e r e s t s i n Section 8 and Section 9? 

A. Approximately l a s t August of 1996, I was put i n 

charge of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area t o co n s o l i d a t e acreage t o 

support a deep Penn t e s t . There were two other company 

landmen t h a t worked on t h i s p r o j e c t back i n June of 1996, 

and then, of course, we have an independent landman t h a t 

helps us do t i t l e work. 

Q. Have you determined t o your s a t i s f a c t i o n t h a t you 

have resources w i t h i n your company t o make an accurate 

t a b u l a t i o n of the i d e n t i t y of the i n t e r e s t owners i n 

Section 8 and Section 9? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Did you determine whether or not you had the 

a b i l i t y w i t h i n your company and under your d i r e c t i o n t o 

determine the percentage i n t e r e s t those i n t e r e s t owners 
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would have i n Sections 8 and Section 9? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. As p a r t of your d u t i e s , d i d they i n c l u d e e f f o r t s 

t o c o n s o l i d a t e the i n t e r e s t owners i n these two se c t i o n s 

f o r purposes of d r i l l i n g the deep gas w e l l t e s t s we're 

about t o describe? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And have you continued on t o the present i n those 

e f f o r t s ? 

A. Continuing, yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. S t r i c k l e r as an 

expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any obj e c t i o n ? 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. S t r i c k l e r i s so 

q u a l i f i e d . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we have presented t o 

you separate e x h i b i t books f o r each case. There are some 

exceptions w i t h regard t o the i d e n t i f y of p a r t i e s , so t h a t 

you can be s p e c i f i c as t o those i n t e r e s t s per s e c t i o n . But 

g e n e r a l l y , the i n f o r m a t i o n i s going t o be a p p l i c a b l e t o 

both cases. 

And so Mr. S t r i c k l e r and I w i l l choose t h e 

e x h i b i t book t h a t deals w i t h the Marcotte w e l l . I t ' s the 

e x h i b i t book 11,809. We w i l l s t a r t w i t h t h a t one, and then 
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as necessary we w i l l supplement from i n f o r m a t i o n f o r t h e 

Scott w e l l . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Do you have the e x h i b i t book 

before you, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , f o r 11,809? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. We'll come back t o some of these d i s p l a y s , but 

l e t ' s t a l k about how the book i s organized. 

F i r s t of a l l , g e n e r a l l y t e l l me what we w i l l see 

when we look behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 1. 

A. E x h i b i t Tab Number 1 i s the A p p l i c a t i o n t o d r i l l 

t h e Marcotte Number 2 w e l l on a nonstandard gas p r o r a t i o n 

and spacing u n i t , and also seeks compulsory p o o l i n g . 

Q. Were you involved i n sending out n o t i c e s of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n t o a l l the a f f e c t e d i n t e r e s t owners i n both 

Section 8 and 9? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Can you r e c a l l the date on which n o t i c e s were 

sent i n both cases? 

A. The noti c e s of compulsory p o o l i n g was sent out 

June 17th, June 18th. 

Q. Let me show you an a f f i d a v i t t h a t has been 

executed by Mr. Alexander. 

A. I'm s o r r y , I was o f f a couple of days. The 

m a i l i n g by c e r t i f i e d m a i l was mailed out on June 16th f o r 

both the Marcotte Number 2 and the Scott 24. 
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Q. So despite the f a c t t h a t E x h i b i t 1 i n d i c a t e s a 

n o t i c e l e t t e r of June 17th, i t was mailed t h e day before 

t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you work w i t h Mr. Alexander i n 

terms of i d e n t i f y i n g the p a r t i e s f o r whom you had not 

obtained agreement and f o r whom you sought t o have the 

D i v i s i o n issue a po o l i n g order? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's look a t the A p p l i c a t i o n . As you move 

through the A p p l i c a t i o n , you get t o an E x h i b i t B. We're 

d e a l i n g w i t h the Marcotte well? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When we look a t the categories of p a r t i e s f o r 

which you're requesting p o o l i n g , are th e r e more than one 

category? 

A. Yes, there are. 

Q. Are there working i n t e r e s t owners uncommitted i n 

Section 8? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y what working i n t e r e s t owners are 

not committed i n Section 8? 

A. T o t a l Minatome Corporation, covering t h e i r 

4.6522-percent gross working i n t e r e s t ; Lee Wayne Moore and 

JoAnne Montgomery Moore, Trustees, covering 2.2517 percent; 
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the balance are approximately 93 percent, a l l committed t o 

d r i l l i n g or farming out i n the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l i n 

Section 8. 

Q. As t o the Marcotte w e l l , apart from the working 

i n t e r e s t owners, are there any unleased m i n e r a l owners f o r 

whom you're seeking t o have pooling? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Are there any r o y a l t y owners f o r which you 

are seeking t o have a p o o l i n g order? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And how would they be i d e n t i f i e d i n E x h i b i t 1? 

A. I f y o u ' l l look a t E x h i b i t C, t h a t — y o u ' l l see a 

l i s t of mineral owners, lessors t h a t are under lease. 

T h e i r leases allow f o r 320-acre spacing. 

We're requesting — We sent these f o l k s n o t i c e s 

of 640-acre spacing, and we also sent these i n d i v i d u a l s 

amendments t o the o i l and gas lease, t o amend t h e i r lease 

t o a l l o w f o r 640-acre spacing. 

Q. Do you know, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t o whom these r o y a l t y 

owners had signed t h e i r various leases? 

A. They v a r i e d . The leases were l o c a t e d p r i m a r i l y 

i n the west h a l f of Section 8. 

Q. And t o what lessee or operator or working 

i n t e r e s t owners — 

A. Amoco Production Company, Amoco Production 
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Company. 

Q. I s t h a t t r u e of a l l the r o y a l t y owners under the 

Marcotte w e l l , t h a t t h e i r i n t e r e s t i s a f f e c t e d by leases t o 

Amoco? 

A. Yes, s i r . I also want t o mention t h a t we do have 

an undivided i n t e r e s t i n some of those leases as w e l l . So 

B u r l i n g t o n also has an ownership i n some of t h e leases t h a t 

we're seeking amendments. 

Q. Describe f o r me what i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h 

regards t o the need t o pool r o y a l t y owners. 

A. These o l d leases were taken i n the 1950s, and 

they allowed f o r 320-acre spacing, which i s customary f o r 

Mesaverde, Dakota, F r u i t l a n d Coal. We're d r i l l i n g a deep 

gas w e l l on a 640-acre u n i t basis — 

Q. Let me ask you t h i s . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do those leases provide t h a t you can commit those 

leases t o a 640-acre spacing u n i t under t h e i r c u r r e n t 

terms? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Are there any other categories of p a r t i e s i n the 

Marcotte w e l l t o be pooled, other than those t h a t you've 

described? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Let's take a moment and f l i p t o the Scott 24 w e l l 
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i n Section 9 and look a t t h a t e x h i b i t book, which i s Case 

11,808. Turning behind E x h i b i t Tab 1, when we look a t the 

Marcotte — the Scott 24 f o r Section 9, are t h e r e 

c a t e g o r i e s of i n t e r e s t owners, which would be working 

i n t e r e s t owners — are they t o be pooled i f t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n i s granted? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Who are those working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Let me r e f e r you t o E x h i b i t B. 

Q. Looking behind E x h i b i t 1 of t h i s book, and you're 

l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t B t h a t ' s attached t o t h e A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and what are we supposed t o see? 

A. Y o u ' l l see the various owners, over 68 owners, i n 

Section 9. 3 5 percent of the owners are committed t o the 

d r i l l i n g of the w e l l , Scott 24. 

Q. How do we know on E x h i b i t B the s t a t u s of 

commitment? 

A. Y o u ' l l see on the ri g h t - h a n d side the i n d i v i d u a l s 

or companies t h a t have not p a r t i c i p a t e d or farmed out t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Okay. I f i t says "yes", they're committed — 

A. Yes, c o r r e c t . 

Q. — i f i t says "no", they're not committed? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

33_ 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Apart from the working i n t e r e s t 

owners f o r the Scott w e l l , are t h e r e any unleased m i n e r a l 

owners? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. I f y o u ' l l look a t E x h i b i t C, on the very end, 

J e r a l d T. Marcotte — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — now, i s he a leased or an unleased m i n e r a l 

owner? 

A. He's a leased mineral owner. 

Q. I'm not sure I understand your answer. 

A. He's — J e r a l d Marcotte i s under an e x i s t i n g o i l 

and gas lease. His lease does not provide f o r 640-acre 

spacing. We sent him an amendment t o h i s o i l and gas 

lease, and we have received i t back — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — so he i s now — he i s now committed — 

Q. So i n Section 9 — 

A. — on 64 0-acre spacing. 

Q. So i n Section 9 f o r the Scott w e l l , t h e r e are no 

unleased mineral owners t h a t you're seeking t o pool? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are there any r o y a l t y owners i n Section 9 f o r 

which you're seeking pooling? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s J e r a l d T. Marcotte. He i s the 
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r o y a l t y owner. And we have obtained an amendment t o h i s 

o i l and gas lease, so he's i n good shape. 

Q. I n Section 9 are there the same k i n d of r o y a l t y 

owners w i t h the same type of l i m i t i n g leases t h a t l i m i t the 

s i z e of the spacing u n i t t o 320 acres? 

A. J e r a l d T. Marcotte was the only one i n Section 9. 

Q. When I look, then, a t E x h i b i t B, I'm l o o k i n g a t a 

t a b u l a t i o n of i n d i v i d u a l s w i t h working i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. With — On E x h i b i t B, w i t h t he e x c l u s i o n of 

Conoco, Amoco, Minatome and Moore, s t a r t i n g on the next 

page, are these working i n t e r e s t owners t h a t are 

c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o as GLA-66 group? 

A. Yes, s i r , s t a r t i n g a t Hope Simpson. 

Q. Down a t the bottom of page 2 w i t h Hope Simpson, 

from t h e r e down, these are uncommitted working i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t have an i n t e r e s t pursuant t o what you 

c h a r a c t e r i z e as GLA-66? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I want t o mention, a l s o , t h a t t h r e e o f these 

owners have agreed t o farm out r e c e n t l y , and t h a t i s not 

updated on t h i s l i s t . 

Q. Let's — 

A. Also, we've acquired two other owners. We 
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acquired their deep rights previously. So they're not 

l i s t e d because they're committed t o B u r l i n g t o n . So we've 

made trades w i t h f i v e of the 63 owners. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Can you t e l l us which of t h e 

t h r e e , then — 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . E l i z a b e t h F a r r i n g t o n on 

page 3 — I ' l l double-check t h i s f o r you — Ralph U. 

F i t t i n g , J r . , Tr u s t , on page 6, and we have one more, Roy 

E. Bard, and I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d him. On page 3, Roy E. 

Bard, J r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Those p a r t i e s have farmed 

out? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , l e t me address 

now the t o p i c of the nonstandard s i z e of Section 8 and 

Section 9. For w e l l s d r i l l e d t o t h i s depth i n the San Juan 

Basin, the D i v i s i o n provides what s i z e f o r a standard-sized 

spacing u n i t ? 

A. 640 acres. 

Q. Are e i t h e r one or both of these s e c t i o n s standard 

640 acres? 

A. No, s i r , they're not. 

Q. Why are they not? 

A. They're both i r r e g u l a r s e c t i o n s . Section 8 

comprises 639.78 acres, and Section 9 comprises 636.01 
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acres. 

Q. How d i d t h a t occur? 

A. Governmental surveys. 

Q. There's simply nothing you can do about t h a t , 

r i g h t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. To your knowledge, does the D i v i s i o n provide f o r 

640-acre spacing u n i t s t h a t would be standard i f they 

contained the acreage you've described here? 

A. Yes. 

Q. These would have t o be approved, then, as 

nonstandard p r o r a t i o n u n i t s ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Correct. 

Q. One of the w e l l s i s a t a proposed unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Which one i s a t the unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

A. The Marcotte Number 2 w e l l i s l o c a t e d 1540 f e e t 

from the south l i n e and 935 f e e t from the east l i n e of the 

s e c t i o n . 

Q. Are there topographical or a r c h e o l o g i c a l reasons 

t o e x p l a i n t h a t l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , we used an e x i s t i n g w e l l pad where two 
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other w e l l s were located t o minimize surface disturbance. 

Q. And was t h a t the reason s e l e c t e d f o r not p u t t i n g 

t h i s w e l l a t a standard l o c a t i o n i n t h a t section? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , there's a l o t of r a v i n e s i n t h i s 

area, and t h i s was the sa f e s t and l e a s t — caused t h e l e a s t 

disturbance t o the surface. There's two s u b d i v i s i o n s i n 

t h i s area. 

Q. Let's look at E x h i b i t Book 11,809 — t h a t ' s the 

one f o r the Marcotte w e l l — and t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 2 and have you i d e n t i f y the f i r s t c o l o r e d d i s p l a y . 

A. What you see here i s a 12-section area p o s t i n g 

the ownership acreage of the Moore Group, and i t ' s posted 

w i t h — 

Q. I'm on — 

A. I'm so r r y . 

Q. I'm on page one. 

A. Oh, I'm so r r y . 

Q. You're ahead of me. 

A. Moving ahead. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , go back t o the f i r s t d i s p l a y behind 

E x h i b i t Tab 2 and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r us. 

A. What you see i s the spacing, Section 8. We've 

posted the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l , and we've crosshatched 

a l l of Section 8 as an i d e n t i f i e r . 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, does t h i s d i s p l a y 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

38 

a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t the approximate l o c a t i o n and t h e 

category of the w e l l s shown on the n i n e - s e c t i o n d i s p l a y ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. When we look i n Section 8, t h e r e i s a red dot. 

What does t h a t approximate? 

A. That i s the l o c a t i o n f o r the Marcotte Number 2 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Turn behind t h a t d i s p l a y , and l e t ' s look 

a t the next i n f o r m a t i o n . 

A. Okay. 

Q. For the p r i o r d i s p l a y and the r e s t of the 

d i s p l a y s behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 2, have you s a t i s f i e d 

y o u r s e l f t o the best of your knowledge t h a t t h e y ' r e 

accurate and c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's look a t t h i s next d i s p l a y . I t ' s got some 

col o r - c o d i n g t o i t ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Describe the c o l o r code. 

A. The acreage colored i n blue represents the Moore 

acreage, which i s s c a t t e r e d throughout t h i s 12-section 

area. The acreage colored i n green describe T o t a l 

Minatome's acreage, which i s s c a t t e r e d throughout the area 

as w e l l . I t gives you a v i s u a l of where t h e i r ownership 

i s . 
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Q. You've shown an area of 12 sections? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n any of those 12 sections have you been able t o 

co n s o l i d a t e on a v o l u n t a r y basis 100 percent of the working 

i n t e r e s t ownership? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. When we look i n Section 9, Moore and GLA-64 have 

i n t e r e s t s i n 9? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. And they have i n t e r e s t s i n 8? 

A. The Moore and T o t a l Minatome group, they have 

i n t e r e s t s i n Section 8 and 9. 

Q. Are t h e i r i n t e r e s t s l i m i t e d only t o 8 and 9? 

A. I n the case of Moore and T o t a l Minatome, they own 

i n both s e c t i o n s . GLA-66 owns i n Section 9. 

Q. Okay. When you look a t t h i s , are the Moore and 

Minatome i n t e r e s t s confined and l i m i t e d only t o Sections 8 

and 9? 

A. Oh, no, s i r . They have acreage a l l throughout 

the area. A l l we're attempting t o do i s c o n s o l i d a t e two 

sec t i o n s . They own an i n t e r e s t i n anywhere from s i x t o 

nine s e c t i o n s . 

Q. I d e n t i f y f o r me what you mean by t h i s code, 

GLA-4 6. 

A. That represents the T o t a l Minatome undivided 
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ownership acreage. We — 

Q. My question was, What does GLA-46 i d e n t i f y ? How 

many i n t e r e s t owners are composed i n the group t h a t ' s 

c o l l e c t i v e l y c a l l e d GLA-46? 

A. Let me r e f e r you t o the e x h i b i t , the Marcotte 8 

w e l l , and I can l i s t them f o r you. The Marcotte Number 2 

w e l l , r a t h e r , E x h i b i t B. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Amoco production company i s a p a r t owner of GLA-

46, T o t a l Minatome i s a p a r t owner, the Umbach b r o t h e r s , 

George and W i l l i a m , the Lowell White Family T r u s t , Walter 

A. Steele, the Estate of G.W. Hannett, T.G. Cornish, 

P a t r i c i a Hueter, Mary Emily Hueter [ s i c ] , and A.T. Hannett, 

als o known as the Walter Steele Group. Those are the 

owners of the GLA-46 acreage. 

Q. Of the group of owners c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o 

as GLA-46, have you received the v o l u n t a r y commitment of 

a l l those i n t e r e s t owners pursuant t o your proposed 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t ' s before the D i v i s i o n today? 

A. Yes, and also farmouts. 

Q. Are there any of those owners not committed. 

A. Only one — 

Q. And — 

A. — T o t a l Minatome. 

Q. That group would have an i n t e r e s t i n both wells? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Are any of those owners, w i t h the exception of 

Minatome, a s s e r t i n g the p r o p o s i t i o n t h a t the 1951 agreement 

covers the deep gas? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. When we go back t o the d i s p l a y you and I were 

l a s t d e s c r i b i n g , which i s the second one behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 2, the c o l o r code f o r GLA-46, i f y o u ' l l look a t the 

c o l o r code i n Section 9, they have some numbers adjacent t o 

t h a t , s t i l l i n green? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The l a s t number i s 3.55. 

A. That i s the — 

Q. What does t h a t represent? 

A. That represents t h e i r working i n t e r e s t i n Section 

9. 

Q. Whose working i n t e r e s t ? 

A. T o t a l Minatome's working i n t e r e s t i n Section 9. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I t has been d i v i d e d so t h a t i t only 

r e f l e c t s T o t a l Minatome's i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When we look a t the blue number, the l a s t of the 

blue numbers i n t h a t column i n Section 9, t h e .2946 — 

A. That represents the Moore i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Correspondingly, when we go over t o Section 8, 
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i d e n t i f y f o r us the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the l a s t i n t h e column 

of t he blue and the green numbers. 

A. The green numbers, GLA-4 6, T o t a l Minatome 1s 

i n t e r e s t , i s posted i n the southeast q u a r t e r of t h i s 

s e c t i o n , and they c o n t r o l 4.6522 percent of the working 

i n t e r e s t . 

The Moore i n t e r e s t , depicted i n blue again, 

they — we post t h e i r working i n t e r e s t a t 2.2517 percent 

working i n t e r e s t i n the northwest q u a r t e r of 8. 

Q. Let's f l i p behind t h i s e x h i b i t and look a t the 

next d i s p l a y . What are you presenting here, Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. This gives you a cleaned up v e r s i o n of T o t a l 

Minatome's i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 12-section area. We i d e n t i f y 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n the Sections 3, 4, 8, 9, 15, 16 and 17. 

Q. Okay. And then the l a s t d i s p l a y i n t h i s e x h i b i t 

t a b , would you i d e n t i f y and describe t h a t ? 

A. This d e p i c t s the Moore acreage l o c a t e d i n a 12-

s e c t i o n area covering ownership i n Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 

9 and 17 and 18. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I n the Marcotte w e l l i n Section 8, 

does the group GLA-66 have any i n t e r e s t i n Section 8? 

A. No, s i r , they don't. 

Q. Are Bard and LaForce some of the working i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t are i n the GLA-66 group? 

A. Yes, they are. 
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Q. When we look a t Section 9, does the GLA-66 group 

have a working i n t e r e s t i n Section 9? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. Let's go t o the e x h i b i t book f o r the Scott w e l l , 

then, which i s 11,808, t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 2. 

The f i r s t d i s p l a y i s simply the same type of i l l u s t r a t i o n 

i n t h e f i r s t book, except you've spotted the Scott w e l l ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. The next d i s p l a y i s j u s t what we've seen before? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I t ' s the composite of Moore/GLA-46/Minatome? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. The next two d i s p l a y s are again the same, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Turn t o the next one, which i s a d e p i c t i o n of 

GLA-66, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Let's describe what you're showing w i t h regards 

t o the Scott w e l l i n r e l a t i o n s h i p t o the GLA-66 group. 

What do we see? 

A. What we've done i s colored i n two leases, two 

f e d e r a l leases. We i d e n t i f y them as Lease Number NM-63 9, 

covering approximately 124 0 gross acres, l o c a t e d i n Section 

3, 4, 9 and 10 of 31 North, Range 10 West. 

The a d j o i n i n g lease i s — we i d e n t i f y t h a t as 
. 
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Lease Number 640. I t covers approximately 1117 acres, and 

i t l i e s i n Section 11 and 12 of the same township and 

range. 

Q. Focus on Section 9. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When I look a t the group c h a r a c t e r i z e d as GLA-66, 

does t h a t group include Burlington? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. How do we i d e n t i f y the other i n t e r e s t owners t h a t 

are c o l l e c t i v e l y c a l l e d GLA-66? 

A. May I r e f e r you t o the E x h i b i t — 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. — E x h i b i t A of the op e r a t i n g agreement? 

A c t u a l l y , i t ' s under — I t h i n k i t ' s e a s i e r t o 

f i n d i t , E x h i b i t 1. And i f y o u ' l l look a t page 2 — 

Q. I l i k e d your f i r s t idea. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Let's see i f we can get everybody where you were 

going. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab 4, you've 

i d e n t i f i e d t h i s as p a r t of E x h i b i t A t o the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

A. Right. 

Q. Take your time, f l i p past the f i r s t e i g h t pages, 
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and there's a spreadsheet. I t ' s captioned "Complete L i s t 

of GLA-66 Owners w i t h 'No' on Farmout". 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Read down t h i s l i s t and s t a r t a t the 

p o i n t where i t a c t u a l l y begins a l i s t i n g of the GLA-66 

owners. 

A. I ' d l i k e t o make a c o r r e c t i o n . We l i s t e d a 

complete l i s t of the GLA-66 owners. We also i n c l u d e d , j u s t 

f o r s i m p l i c i t y ' s sake, T o t a l Minatome's ownership and Lee 

Wayne Moore's ownership. Please make a note t h a t t h e y ' r e 

not p a r t of the GLA-66 group. 

Q. Draw a l i n e below those two names. 

A. Right, then y o u ' l l s t a r t out w i t h Hope Simpson, 

and then y o u ' l l continue on, and we l i s t a l l t he owners and 

t h e i r pro r a t a share of the d r i l l i n g completion costs f o r 

the Scott 24 w e l l . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I also want t o — 

Q. I d e n t i f y f o r me what you are meaning when you 

t a l k about the area covered by the GLA-66 group. That i s 

the area depicted on t h a t l a s t d i s p l a y behind E x h i b i t 

Number 2 ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Geographic area? 

A. Yes, the geographic area, yes. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . W i t h i n t h a t geographic area, t h e r e 

are a group of owners ch a r a c t e r i z e d as GLA-66, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. Describe f o r me v e r t i c a l l y how those 

i n t e r e s t s have been consolidated or not co n s o l i d a t e d , above 

and below the base of the Dakota. 

A. The GLA-66 owners, they own a d i f f e r e n t ownership 

type from the surface t o the base of the Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n . Below the base of the Mesaverde f o r m a t i o n , they 

own a working i n t e r e s t or operating r i g h t s i n t e r e s t , and 

t h a t ' s what you see on t h i s l i s t , i s t h e i r p ro r a t a share 

of t h e i r ownership i n Section 9. 

Q. Let me ask you a question. 

A. Okay. 

Q. From the Mesaverde up, the percentages are 

d i f f e r e n t than Mesaverde down? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , i t ' s a d i f f e r e n t ownership. 

Q. Below the Mesaverde, there i s or i s not an 

ope r a t i n g agreement t h a t covers t h a t deep gas operations? 

A. There i s no operating agreement covering the deep 

gas. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r i n g t o GLA-66 

i s simply a matter of convenience — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — t o determine who these people are? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I t doesn't i n d i c a t e a commitment by c o n t r a c t — 

A. Right. 

Q. — as t o the deep r i g h t s ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . We were i n the e x h i b i t book a t a 

p o i n t behind E x h i b i t 4. We had looked a t the t a b u l a t i o n of 

the GLA-66 owners who had not committed y e t , and beyond 

t h a t , then, i s an operating agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let me d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o t h a t . I n terms 

of operators or working i n t e r e s t owners t h a t have approved 

t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement, what i s the s t a t u s of Amoco's 

commitment t o t h i s operating agreement? 

A. They have farmed out t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o us. 

Q. Are they i n both wells? 

A. Yes, s i r , they are. 

Q. What i s the s t a t u s of Conoco's commitment? 

A. Conoco i s our j o i n t venture p a r t n e r , and t h e y ' r e 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g w i t h us. 

Q. I s t h a t t r u e as t o both wells? 

A. That i s t r u e . 

Q. Has Conoco executed or approved t h i s o p e r a t i n g 

agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. Describe for us the overhead rates that Conoco 

has approved f o r operations of these two w e l l s under these 

agreements. 

A. Please f l i p back t o E x h i b i t C. 

Q. E x h i b i t C i s what, s i r ? 

A. The COPAS accounting procedure, the 1984 onshore 

COPAS accounting procedure. And what we have l i s t e d t h e r e , 

the d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e i s $5100 and the producing w e l l r a t e 

i s $510. 

Q. Now, you've given t h a t t o us r a t h e r c r y p t i c a l l y . 

I s t h i s a monthly r a t e or a d a i l y r a t e or what? 

A. The d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e i s p r o r a t e d d a i l y and the 

producing w e l l r a t e i s a monthly r a t e . 

Q. Okay. So on a monthly basis, i f we're going t o 

t r a n s l a t e t h i s i n t o p o o l i n g order, what are the numbers? 

A. On the monthly — 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. The monthly r a t e i s $510 per month. 

Q. For a producing well? 

A. For a producing w e l l , yes. 

Q. And f o r a d r i l l i n g w e l l , $5100 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — a month? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner as 
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t o what overhead r a t e s t o apply i n both these p o o l i n g 

cases? 

A. We recommend t h a t these r a t e s be approved. The 

most recent COPAS accounting procedure f o r w e l l s 14,000 

f e e t i s roughly $546 f o r a producing w e l l r a t e , so we are 

w e l l under t h a t . The monthly d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e s are i n 

the $58 00 category, and we're w e l l under t h a t . 

So we f e e l l i k e t h i s i s a very f a i r and 

co m p e t i t i v e r a t e , and we recommend t h a t the Commissioner 

adopt these two r a t e s . 

Q. Let's take the Marcotte book — i t ' s 11,809 — 

t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 3, and l e t ' s look a t the top 

map. There i s a s i m i l a r topo map behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 

2 i n the Scott e x h i b i t book; i s t h a t not t r u e , Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Well, l e t ' s r e f e r t o the one i n the Marcotte 

book. Looking a t Section 8, f i r s t of a l l , i d e n t i f y f o r us 

what you were d e s c r i b i n g e a r l i e r when you t a l k e d about the 

p o s i t i o n of the Marcotte w e l l w i t h i n Section 8 being based 

upon topography. 

A. As you can see the r e , i t doesn't r e a l l y show up 

t h a t w e l l on t h i s topographic map, but on the land map t h a t 

we showed you e a r l i e r , there were two e x i s t i n g w e l l s i n 

t h i s v i c i n i t y . One was a PC w e l l , one was a Mesaverde 
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w e l l . And t h i s was the best area t o b u i l d a l o c a t i o n f o r 

the deep Penn. And t h i s also minimizes the surface 

disturbance. 

Q. Has B u r l i n g t o n u t i l i z e d t h a t e x i s t i n g pad f o r the 

l o c a t i o n of the r i g t h a t ' s c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g f o r the 

Marcotte well? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Do you have a s u i t a b l e topographic l o c a t i o n f o r 

the Scott 24 well? 

A. Yes, we do. Y o u ' l l n o t i c e i n the other book t h a t 

the Scott w e l l i s located 1530 f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 

2430 f e e t from the west l i n e , and — 

MR. GALLEGOS: What are we r e f e r r i n g to? You 

sa i d the other book, but — 

THE WITNESS: The --

MR. KELLAHIN: You can probably see i t on the 

same d i s p l a y — 

THE WITNESS: — Scott. You can — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let's not confuse — 

THE WITNESS: — you can. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Wait, don't t a l k y e t . One a t a 

time. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) I f y o u ' l l look a t the Marcotte 

book, there's Section 9 shown. You've asked us t o move t o 
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t h e Scott book where th e r e i s , i n f a c t , a dark t r i a n g l e . 

A. Yes. 

Q. What does t h a t represent, s i r ? 

A. That represents the l o c a t i o n of the Scott 24. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And has t h a t been determined by 

B u r l i n g t o n t o be a s u i t a b l e topographic l o c a t i o n f o r the 

Scot t w e l l i n Section 24? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Once again, l e t me take you back t o the Marcotte 

book. I t ' s 11,809. I want you t o t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 4 and I want t o s t a r t a disc u s s i o n w i t h you w i t h 

regards t o your e f f o r t t o consolidate i n t e r e s t owners f o r 

the Marcotte w e l l i n 8. I do not d e s i r e you t o read t h i s . 

I'm going t o ask you t o summarize i t . 

But l e t me ask you some p r e l i m i n a r y questions. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Behind the chronology of events, there's a s e r i e s 

of l e t t e r s and correspondence, and they are placed i n the 

book i n c h r o n o l o g i c a l order; i s t h a t not true? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are you able t o a u t h e n t i c a t e the accuracy of a l l 

the documents behind t h i s E x h i b i t Tab Number 4? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, th e y ' r e t r u e and 

accurate? 
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A. Yes, they are. 

Q. They've come out of the business records o f 

B u r l i n g t o n t h a t are under your c o n t r o l as a landman f o r 

t h i s p r o j e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I s t h i s intended t o be a complete and f u l l 

chronology of a l l a c t i v i t i e s w i t h regards t o the Marcotte 2 

we l l ? 

A. Only the w r i t t e n correspondence. We've had 

numerous phone conversations amongst a l l the p a r t i e s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , and t h a t i s not shown on t h i s ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Let me ask you t o summarize the items i n the 

chronology, s t a r t i n g w i t h the J u l y of 1996 e f f o r t s , and 

take us down t o the c u r r e n t time w i t h regards t o the 

c o n s o l i d a t i o n of i n t e r e s t owners f o r the Marcotte 2 w e l l . 

A. Okay. I ' d l i k e t o give a b r i e f h i s t o r y on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area. Our j o i n t venture p a r t n e r i s Conoco, Inc. 

We entered i n t o a j o i n t venture w i t h them two and a h a l f 

years ago. I t ' s my understanding t h a t t h e r e was a lead 

area i n t h i s general v i c i n i t y two years ago. 

Over a year ago, we were given i n s t r u c t i o n s , the 

land department was given i n s t r u c t i o n s , t o s t a r t 

c o n s o l i d a t i n g i n t e r e s t s . We began as e a r l y as June 18th of 

1996, over a year ago. We sent out l e t t e r s t o v a r i o u s 
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p a r t i e s . 

We s t a r t e d i n the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l on J u l y 

29th. We sent out o f f e r l e t t e r s t o acquire nonproducing 

deep r i g h t s from T o t a l Minatome and the Moore O i l T r u s t . 

I n February of 1997, we sent a proposal t o T o t a l 

Minatome o f f e r i n g them t o p a r t i c i p a t e , farm out or s e l l 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t , and we enclosed a farmout — proposed 

farmout terms. 

A f t e r many conversations w i t h T o t a l Minatome, 

they sought some r e v i s i o n s t o the farmout terms and 

c o n d i t i o n s . We were happy t o accommodate them, and we sent 

them a new proposal i n A p r i l . 

On A p r i l 22nd, we sent out t o the Wayne Moore 

group a s i m i l a r o f f e r t o p a r t i c i p a t e or farm out t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t or s e l l , i f they would l i k e , on A p r i l 22nd. 

We also sent out a w e l l proposal on A p r i l 22nd t o 

the v a r i o u s working i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 8, asking 

them t o v o l u n t a r i l y p a r t i c i p a t e or farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

i n Section 8. 

We sent out follow-up l e t t e r s t o T o t a l Minatome 

on May 2 2nd, s t a t i n g our p o s i t i o n t h a t the GLA-4 6 agreement 

d i d not cover the deep gas. And then we received back from 

T o t a l Minatome t h e i r acceptance of our AFE, s u b j e c t t o the 

GLA-46 agreement, which we have a disput e over. 

On June 3rd, we sent out l e t t e r s t o a l l the 
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mi n e r a l owners or r o y a l t y owners who owned under leases 

t h a t d i d not allow f o r 640-acre spacing, t o n o t i f y them of 

the i n t e n t t o form a Section 8 spacing u n i t . 

On June 16th, we sent out a d d i t i o n a l l e t t e r s t o 

the m i n e r a l owners, w i t h an amendment t o the o i l and gas 

lease, a l l o w i n g them t o s i g n up and amend t h e i r lease. 

We sent out another proposal t o T o t a l Minatome, 

approving the terms and c o n d i t i o n s of our previous farmout 

requests, on June 16th. 

And then on J u l y 7th we received a 

counterproposal from Mr. Moore, proposing some farmout 

terms. 

And t h a t summarizes — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — the chronology of events i n Section 8. We 

s t a r t e d over a year ago. 

Q. Not a l l the correspondence i s i n d i c a t e d or s e t 

f o r t h i n the e x h i b i t behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 4, i s i t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've simply s e l e c t e d — 

A. — the key elements — 

Q. — the key elements of those l e t t e r s ? 

A. — of v o l u n t a r y support f o r our prospect and 

w e l l , 

A l l r i g h t . Let's t u r n now t o the e x h i b i t book 
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f o r t he Scott w e l l — i t ' s 11,808 — and l e t ' s now look 

behind E x h i b i t Tab 3 and l e t ' s again have you t u r n your 

a t t e n t i o n t o t h i s . 

Once again, t h i s i s not a t o t a l chronology of 

every s i n g l e contact or event w i t h regards t o your e f f o r t s , 

i s i t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. And does i t co n t a i n a l l the correspondence? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've summarized some of t h e key 

items f o r us i n the t a b u l a t i o n , then? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Take us through your e f f o r t s f o r c o n s o l i d a t i n g 

i n t e r e s t s f o r the Scott 24 w e l l . 

A. We s t a r t e d a l i t t l e e a r l i e r i n Section 9. We 

s t a r t e d June 18th, 1996, where we sent o f f e r l e t t e r s t o the 

GLA-66 owners. We also — We've mentioned i n t h e Section 8 

chronology of events the J u l y 29th l e t t e r . 

On September 10th, 1996, we o f f e r e d t o purchase 

the nonproducing deep r i g h t s under the GLA-66 leases. 

And then on November 20th we n o t i f i e d t h e GLA-66 

owners t h a t we have plans t o put together a Pennsylvanian 

t e s t t o approximately 14,000 f e e t . We asked f o r t h e i r 

v o l u n t a r y support of 64 0 acres, and we also mentioned t h a t 

t h i s was — we mentioned the r i s k i n v o l v e d and also the 
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estimated cost a t t h a t time. This was th e e a r l i e s t ideas 

t h a t we had on cost and depths and spacing. 

The r e s t of the l e t t e r s , the r e s t of the e n t r i e s , 

are i d e n t i c a l t o the chronology of events i n the Marcotte 

Number 2 w e l l . 

Q. When I look a t A p r i l 22nd, 1997 — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — there's a l e t t e r t o Moore? 

A. Correct, we also — Yes, s i r , t h e r e i s . 

Q. I s there a s i m i l a r l e t t e r of t h a t date t o 

Minatome? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Am I c o r r e c t i n remembering the d i f f e r e n c e i n the 

books here? 

A. Well, the l e t t e r you see t o Wayne Moore included 

a l l of h i s lands — or — not a l l of h i s lands, but — 

Q. No, my question was, the chronology expresses a 

l e t t e r of A p r i l 22nd t o Moore. 

A. Correct. 

Q. Was the r e also l e t t e r s t o Minatome of A p r i l 22nd? 

A. No, there was not. On A p r i l 22nd t h e r e was a 

l e t t e r proposing — No, I'm g e t t i n g confused. 

On A p r i l 29th was the next l e t t e r t o T o t a l 

Minatome proposing the w e l l i n Section 9. There was not a 

l e t t e r t o T o t a l Minatome i n Section 9. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . So the e n t r y on the 29th — 

A. — was the w e l l proposal — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — f o r the Scott 24. 

Q. And t h a t proposal l e t t e r goes out t o what group 

of i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 9? 

A. A l l the working i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 9 

received t h a t w e l l proposal. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t h a t l e t t e r would have included 

T o t a l Minatome? 

A. Yes, i t would have, but not on A p r i l 22nd. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are you c o n t i n u i n g , Mr. S t r i c k l e r , 

w i t h your e f f o r t s t o ob t a i n v o l u n t a r y agreement w i t h any of 

these owners? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, i t ' s f i v e a f t e r 

t welve. I don't know your d e s i r e . This would be a 

convenient time f o r me t o take a break i f you would l i k e t o 

have a lunch break. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are you done w i t h t h i s 

witness? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm not sure, I need t o gather my 

thoughts and see. But we're g e t t i n g close. I'm j u s t not 

c e r t a i n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Well, l e t ' s do t h a t . That 
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w i l l give Mr. Gallegos a chance to review this data. 

Break f o r an hour, be back here a t one. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 12:05 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 1:10 p.m.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: C a l l the hearing back t o 

order, and I ' l l t u r n i t over t o Mr. K e l l a h i n again. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , l e t me d i r e c t 

your a t t e n t i o n back t o the t o p i c of the r o y a l t y owners, 

those r o y a l t y owners who you're seeking t o have p o o l i n g . 

Can you estimate f o r me the t o t a l number of those r o y a l t y 

owners? 

A. The t o t a l number i s 33. 

Q. Out of t h a t 33, w i t h your e f f o r t s , how many have 

agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e or otherwise modify t h e i r agreements 

so they can share r o y a l t y on 640 acres? 

A. F i f t e e n so f a r , and I haven't checked yesterday 

or today's m a i l . 

Q. So you've got about h a l f of those — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — committed a t t h i s p o int? 

When I d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o the Scott w e l l i n 

Section 9, t h a t ' s the w e l l i n which the GLA-66 group has an 

i n t e r e s t ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Have you been d e a l i n g w i t h any p a r t i c u l a r 

i n d i v i d u a l or group of i n d i v i d u a l s who represent t o you 

t h a t they are the spokesperson f o r t h a t group? 

A. Well, I've been speaking w i t h Mr. Watson LaForce 

i n Midland, Texas, and then — 

Q. Why have you been doing t h a t ? 

A. Mr. LaForce i s one of the owners of GLA-66 and i s 

one of the major spokesmen f o r t h a t group. 

Q. How do you know t h a t t o be so? 

A. Well, he mentioned t h a t t o me, t h a t he has had a 

long-term r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h the 63-some-odd owners. He 

described them as being widows and orphans i n the Chicago 

area and i s r e a l good f r i e n d s w i t h a l l of them, and t h a t ' s 

what I know. 

Q. Have you discussed w i t h Mr. LaForce v a r i o u s means 

by which t h a t group might v o l u n t a r i l y commit t o 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the Section 9 prospect f o r the Scott 24 

w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What type of arrangements have you explored w i t h 

Mr. LaForce on behalf of the 66 group? 

A. Well, back i n J u l y of l a s t year we o f f e r e d t o 

purchase t h e i r deep r i g h t s , and t h a t was on J u l y 29th of 

1996. And then we also o f f e r e d them t o p a r t i c i p a t e — I'm 
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s o r r y , we had a s e r i e s of l e t t e r s a f t e r t h a t . 

On November 20th of 1996 we n o t i f i e d t h e GLA-66 

owners t h a t we have a Pennsylvanian t e s t planned t o be on 

t h e i r acreage, we d i d n ' t know where a t t h a t time, t h a t i t 

would be 14,000 f e e t . We gave them a l l the parameters, the 

approximate costs, and we asked them t o v o l u n t a r i l y 

p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h us on a 64 0-acre spacing — 

Q. What, i f any — 

A. — or s e l l t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

Q. What, i f any, response d i d you r e c e i v e from Mr. 

LaForce w i t h regards t o t h a t proposal? 

A. They weren't i n t e r e s t e d a t t h a t time, u n t i l we 

had a s p e c i f i c l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Have you d e a l t w i t h GLA-66 i n terms of other 

wells? 

A. No, s i r , I have not. 

Q. With regards t o t h i s group, what, i f any, 

understanding do you have about the group's w i l l i n g n e s s t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e and pay t h e i r share of a we l l ? 

A. Since the 63 owners own an o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t i n the shallow r i g h t s , they're not accustomed t o 

having a working i n t e r e s t , and Mr. LaForce explained t h a t 

t o me, t h a t they d i d n ' t want t o p a r t i c i p a t e , i t j u s t wasn't 

p a r t of t h e i r business s t r a t e g y . They don't want a working 

i n t e r e s t , they d i d n ' t want t o have any l i a b i l i t i e s when i t 
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comes t o d r i l l i n g a deep gas w e l l , so — 

Q. And have you o f f e r e d them a l l the — a l t e r n a t i v e 

terms, other than — 

A. Yes, s i r . Because of t h a t , we sent out farmout 

terms, a farmout proposal, f o r t h e i r c o n s i d e r a t i o n , w i t h — 

f o r t h e i r review. And we've received t h r e e f a v o r a b l e 

responses so f a r . And l i k e I said e a r l i e r , we acquired two 

of the owners i n the summer, l a s t summer. 

Q. Okay. During the break I have marked as 

B u r l i n g t o n E x h i b i t 7 i n each of the cases, Mr. Alexander's 

c e r t i f i c a t e of n o t i f i c a t i o n i n the case. I ' l l ask you t o 

take a moment and look a t those c e r t i f i c a t i o n s . 

Did you a s s i s t Mr. Alexander i n the t a b u l a t i o n 

and the co m p i l a t i o n of those r e t u r n r e c e i p t cards t o v e r i f y 

t h a t t o the best of your e f f o r t you had n o t i f i e d a l l t h e 

p a r t i e s t h a t were l i s t e d on both A p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And what i s your answer? Have you done so? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, t h a t concludes my 

examination of Mr. S t r i c k l e r . We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of 

E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 i n each case, plus E x h i b i t 7 i n each 

case. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any obje c t i o n ? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Seven i s the — 
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MR. KELLAHIN: C e r t i f i c a t e — 

MR. GALLEGOS: — notice? 

MR. KELLAHIN: — of n o t i c e , Gene. 

MR. GALLEGOS: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 i n both 

cases and E x h i b i t s 7 i n both cases w i l l be admitted as 

evidence. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , l e t ' s go back t o the summer of 

l a s t year. I understand t h a t t h a t ' s when you were assigned 

the p r o j e c t t h a t r e t a i n e d p a r t i c i p a t i o n — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — of the acreage i n the d r i l l i n g of these two 

wells? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I s t h a t a d e s c r i p t i o n of your assignment, or what 

was i t ? What acreage was the t a r g e t t h a t you were t o work 

on? 

A. Back i n August of 1996, I was assigned t h i s area, 

and my j o b was t o consolidate deep r i g h t s , mainly through 

a c q u i s i t i o n s , mainly through purchase, and t h a t ' s what we 

attempted t o do, and my predecessors attempted t o do, back 

i n June of l a s t year. 

So as f a r as the area i s concerned, t h e area 
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v a r i e d i n s i z e . I t changed w i t h the g e o s c i e n t i s t s and 

t h e i r work, and we checked t i t l e on a l o t of s e c t i o n s i n 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area. 

Q. Was a gentleman by the name of Walter Parks 

working on t h i s — 

A. Yes, s i r , he's an i n d - — 

Q. — before you? 

A. He's an independent landman, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And how long d i d you understand t h a t he 

had been working on the a c q u i s i t i o n p r o j e c t ? 

A. Walt Parks s t a r t e d , again, i n e a r l y summer of 

l a s t year and wrote l e t t e r s t o the various GLA-66 owners 

back i n June of l a s t year. 

Q. Were you involved a t t h a t time? 

A. No, s i r , I wasn't. I d i d n ' t come on board u n t i l 

August of l a s t year. 

Q. I n your p o s i t i o n as — you are the manager of the 

land department? 

A. I'm a senior s t a f f land depart- — excuse me, I'm 

a senior s t a f f landman, assigned t o t h i s — the Penn team. 

So I have two other supervisors. 

Q. Okay. Who c o n s t i t u t e s the Penn team? 

A. The Penn team, I'm the designated landman. We 

have a g e o l o g i s t by the name of Mike Dawson, a g e o p h y s i c i s t 

by the name of David Schoderbeck and a petroleum engineer 
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by the name of Chip Lane and a d r i l l i n g engineer by the 

name of Curt Shipley. 

Conoco has a s i m i l a r team. 

Q. Curt S c h i l l i n g ? 

A. Shipley. 

Q. Curt Shipley? 

A. Yes, s i r . Y o u ' l l hear him i n a minute. 

Q. Okay. And then Amoco, you say, has a s i m i l a r 

team? 

A. I'm not sure about Amoco, no, s i r . Conoco has a 

s i m i l a r team. 

Q. Conoco. 

A. Conoco has a s i m i l a r team. 

Q. I see, okay. You said i n your d i r e c t testimony, 

unless I misunderstood, t h a t t h i s was a j o i n t venture w i t h 

Amoco. 

A. With Conoco. 

Q. Did you s t a t e — 

A. I'm s o r r y , I meant t o say Conoco. 

Q. You meant — 

A. We have a j o i n t - v e n t u r e agreement w i t h Conoco. 

Q. Okay. And then so we would understand t h a t 

Conoco has what you might c a l l a cohort, s i m i l a r Penn team 

w i t h a landman, a g e o l o g i s t , a ge o p h y s i c i s t and the two 

engineer p o s i t i o n s ? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you work j o i n t l y ? 

A. We work together, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. How long — I r e a l i z e you've only been on 

the team since August of l a s t year, but how long has t h e 

team been assembled — 

A. That I don't know. 

Q. — f o r Burlington? 

A. That I don't know. I've been w i t h the company 

almost t h r e e years, and the Conoco-Burlington j o i n t venture 

s t a r t e d two and a h a l f years ago. So... 

Q. For what you'd c a l l the c a l l the deep 

Pennsylvania — 

A. J o i n t e x p l o r a t i o n program — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — yes, s i r . 

Q. Well, j u s t t e l l us — We'll discuss changes, but 

when you came on board i n August of 1996, what was the 

acreage t a r g e t t h a t you were given a t t h a t time? 

A. That i s c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n . The g e o l o g i s t s 

and geop h y s i c i s t s came up w i t h an o u t l i n e . The asked me t o 

concentrate w i t h i n t h a t o u t l i n e , and I'm not a t l i b e r t y t o 

d i s c l o s e t h a t . 

Q. Well, was i t — 

A. But i t ' s centered around Section 8, I can t e l l 
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you t h a t . 

Q. Okay. One se c t i o n t o each side of Section 8, 

generally? 

A. Much l a r g e r . 

Q. Well, are we t a l k i n g about nine sections? 

A. I'm j u s t not able t o d i s c l o s e t h a t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, I ' d ask t h a t the witness be 

d i r e c t e d t o answer the question, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We'll pose an o b j e c t i o n , Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: What's the relevance, Mr. 

Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: What the j u s t i f i c a t i o n i s f o r the 

w e l l and f o r v o l u n t a r y agreement. Some of the overtures t o 

these p a r t i e s f o r agreement have been f o r s u b s t a n t i a l 

acreage — i t hasn't been j u s t f o r Section 8 or Section 9 

— and we want t o know why. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I'm not sure t h a t i t ' s 

r e l e v a n t t o the case. This A p p l i c a t i o n i s f o c u s i n g on 

Sections 8 and Section 9; t h a t ' s what we're d e a l i n g w i t h 

here. 

MR. GALLEGOS: So, what — Are you r u l i n g ? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yeah, I would say t h e witness 

doesn't have t o answer t h a t question. 

Q. (By Mr. Gallegos) Then a f t e r August of 1996 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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t h e r e were changes i n the t a r g e t acreage t h a t you were 

assigned t o work on? 

A. I t changed a l i t t l e b i t . 

Q. Just a l i t t l e b i t . Five percent? 

A. I t ' s hard f o r me t o q u a n t i f y t h a t . 

Q. Well, give us your best estimate. 

A. The g e o l o g i s t s and g e o s c i e n t i s t s from both 

companies, they have t h e i r various ideas, and we as a land 

department w i l l check a maximum area, and i t w i l l have 

co n t r a c t e d or expanded as t h e i r f e e l i n g s d i c t a t e . So I 

r e a l l y can't give you a b a l l p a r k f i g u r e . 

Q. Did the Conoco g e o l o g i s t s and g e o p h y s i c i s t s 

s e l e c t the l o c a t i o n s f o r — 

A. That was a j o i n t — 

Q. — the w e l l i n Section 8 and Section 9? 

A. That was a j o i n t d e c i s i o n , yes, s i r . 

Q. What do you mean when you say t h e r e i s a j o i n t 

venture? What i s the — 

A. Well, the deep Penn, as you know, there's not any 

p r o d u c t i o n i n the e n t i r e Basin. I t ' s a very h i g h - r i s k 

p l a y , and we don't want t o s u f f e r gambler's r u i n , and we 

went out and found a partner t o help us spread the r i s k 

because of the expensive d r i l l i n g cost and the other 

e x p l o r a t i o n a c t i v i t i e s necessary t o work a l a r g e area. 

So Conoco was our j o i n t - v e n t u r e p a r t n e r i n t h i s 
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endeavor, and we're spreading the r i s k . We don't want t o 

d r i l l w e l l s w i t h o u t having a pa r t n e r . 

Q. What I was t r y i n g t o ask i s the general terms of 

the j o i n t venture. Are you 50-50? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And are each of the companies p u t t i n g — 

donating acreage t o the j o i n t venture? 

A. We do have acreage, both companies have acreage. 

And yes, t h a t i s p a r t of the j o i n t - v e n t u r e agreement. 

Q. Okay. And obviously you're sharing a l l t he 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t i s g e t t i n g between the two p a r t i e s , 

g e o l o g i c , seismic, everything — 

A. That's what a j o i n t venture — That's how a j o i n t 

venture operates, yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t h e y ' l l share the expenses of 

d r i l l i n g the wells? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And share the r i s k ? 

A. You bet. 

Q. And i f there's revenue completion, they would 

share i n t h a t , correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. When you j o i n e d the Penn team i n August of 

1996, were there any farmouts of acreage t h a t had been 

accomplished? Or I should say farm-ins, from your 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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s t a n d p o i n t . 

A. Right, r i g h t . We were c o n c e n t r a t i n g on 

c o n s o l i d a t i o n of i n t e r e s t a t t h a t time, so t h e farmouts 

were t o come l a t e r . 

Q. Okay. So d i d you work on o b t a i n i n g t h e Amoco 

farmout? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. But t h a t was accomplished since you've 

been on the team? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When was t h a t accomplished? 

A. I'm not sure of the date. Another — My land 

manager took care of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t r a n s a c t i o n or t r a d e , 

w i t h h i s counterpart a t Amoco. 

Q. Trade, you say? 

A. That's another d e f i n i t i o n of a fa r m - i n or a 

farmout; i t ' s a tr a d e . 

Q. Did you provide — Did B u r l i n g t o n provide 

t e c h n i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n t o Amoco i n the course of the 

n e g o t i a t i o n of t h a t farmout? 

A. I'm not a t l i b e r t y t o say t h a t . That was between 

my manager and the manager a t Amoco. They worked out the 

deal — 

Q. Well, I'm not asking f o r what the i n f o r m a t i o n 

i s — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Oh, r i g h t . 

Q. — I'm simply asking — That i n f o r m a t i o n was 

fu r n i s h e d t o Amoco, so i t could make a d e c i s i o n on whether 

or not t o farm out; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. I'm not a t l i b e r t y t o say. That i n f o r m a t i o n , 

t h a t agreement, i s c o n f i d e n t i a l between Amoco and 

B u r l i n g t o n , and I'm not i n a p o s i t i o n or have the a u t h o r i t y 

t o discuss the terms and co n d i t i o n s of t h a t agreement. 

Q. I d i d n ' t ask you t h a t , s i r . 

A. Well — 

Q. I j u s t asked you, i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t t e c h n i c a l 

data was fu r n i s h e d t o Amoco — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o o b j e c t on relevance 

grounds. 

Q. (By Mr. Gallegos) — surrounding t he making of 

the farmout agreement? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s c o n f i d e n t i a l c o n t r a c t s 

between these people, and I don't see i t ' s r e l e v a n t , Mr. 

Examiner. 

MR. GALLEGOS: I'm not asking f o r t he terms of 

the c o n t r a c t . I t can j u s t simply be answered yes or no, 

the i n f o r m a t i o n was fu r n i s h e d ; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I t h i n k i t ' s r e l e v a n t . I'm 

going t o d i r e c t the witness t o answer t h a t question. 

THE WITNESS: The answer i s yes. 
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Q. (By Mr. Gallegos) Okay. There's also a farmout 

obtained from Cross Timbers on the Section 8 p r o p e r t y , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay, d i d you work on t h a t ? 

A. I sure d i d . 

Q. Okay. And about when d i d you accomplish 

agreement w i t h Cross Timbers? 

A. That was i n — I ' l l have t o r e f e r t o my book. I 

don't have t h a t w i t h me. Late May, e a r l y June. 

Q. Of t h i s year? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t Cross Timbers was provided 

t e c h n i c a l data and i n f o r m a t i o n concerning t h i s p r o j e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, as t o i n t e r e s t owners such as the Moores and 

the GLA-66 owners, what i n s t r u c t i o n s were you given i n 

regard t o your e f f o r t s at o b t a i n i n g t h e i r i n t e r e s t , e i t h e r 

by purchase or some other means? 

A. Their acreage was important t o our w e l l s , and 

n a t u r a l l y we attempted t o purchase t h e i r i n t e r e s t or o f f e r 

them a farmout or o f f e r them t o p a r t i c i p a t e . That's a 

normal procedure i n p u t t i n g together a land area t o support 

a deep h i g h - r i s k w e l l . 

I s t h a t what you're r e f e r r i n g to? 
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Q. Well, l e t me make the question more s p e c i f i c . 

What was the a u t h o r i t y t h a t you were given i n 

terms of d o l l a r s you could o f f e r t o purchase t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t ? Let's s t a r t w i t h t h a t . 

A. We had the — Gosh. Not knowing the market value 

of the deep Penn, because there's no pr o d u c t i o n i n the 

e n t i r e Basin, we sent out i n i t i a l o f f e r s t o t r y t o f i n d a 

market value, so we s t a r t e d back i n June and J u l y of l a s t 

year. And as the market would respond t o us, o f f e r s were 

increased i n the hopes of making a neg o t i a t e d d e a l . So i t 

was — That was a j o i n t d e c i s i o n between Conoco and 

B u r l i n g t o n as f a r as d o l l a r s , I guess, t o — 

Q. So were you i n s t r u c t e d t o s t a r t out w i t h a 

l o w b a l l , $10-an-acre — 

A. Absolutely. We had no idea what i t was worth. 

Again, i t ' s an unknown formation. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So we s t a r t e d out a t t h a t l e v e l and we went up 

from t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Then what — Was t h a t a u t h o r i t y increased? 

A. Yes, yes, as p a r t i e s n e g o t i a t e d , the a u t h o r i t y 

was increased t o make a deal. 

Q. Okay. Was a c t u a l l y your f i r s t o f f e r s i x 

d o l l a r s — 

A. That was — 
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Q. — an acre? 

A. Those were lump-sum numbers. The acreages were 

l e s s , were f r a c t i o n a l acres. And so i f they had s i x - t e n t h s 

of an acre, i t would amount t o s i x d o l l a r s . 

Q. Okay, so then t h a t would have been i n the summer 

of 1996 — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — r i g h t ? 

A. June and — Right. 

Q. Then i n September d i d you come up w i t h a $20-an-

acre o f f e r ? 

A. I b e l i e v e so. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Would B u r l i n g t o n be w i l l i n g t o s e l l i t s 

acreage i n Section 9, the deep r i g h t s , f o r $20 an acre? 

A. No, s i r , because i t ' s i n one of our prospects, 

and i f i t wasn't i n a prospect we would e n t e r t a i n a 

reasonable o f f e r . 

Q. Okay. You d i d n ' t o f f e r r e c i p r o c a l l y t o these 

people who o f f e r e d $20 — You'd say, Or w e ' l l take $20 an 

acre f o r ours? That wasn't the nature of the — 

A. No. 

Q. — neg o t i a t i o n ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. And then i n November your basic approach 

t o everybody was, w e ' l l give you a — what? A two-percent 
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o v e r r i d e , or w e ' l l force-pool you, and here's a j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement w i t h a 400-penalty and a l l the other 

p r o v i s i o n s t h a t are i n t h i s j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement 

t h a t * s i n your e x h i b i t — 

A. No, s i r , we — 

Q. — t h a t step? 

A. No, s i r , we d i d n ' t say t h a t . We o f f e r e d a — We 

d i d o f f e r the GLA-66 owners the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e . 

We set out some parameters f o r the v o l u n t a r y 64 0-acre u n i t , 

and we d i d increase our o f f e r . We o f f e r e d them an o v e r r i d e 

o p p o r t u n i t y . 

Nowhere d i d we say t h a t we were going t o f o r c e 

pool t h e i r i n t e r e s t — 

Q. I n the November — 

A. — i n the November 20th, 1996, l e t t e r . We s t a t e d 

the depths and the formation, the r i s k and the estimated 

c o s t . We d i d n ' t know what the l o c a t i o n was going t o be a t 

t h a t time. We would want t o put everybody on n o t i c e . 

Q. But you knew there was going t o be a w e l l i n 

Section 9? 

A. Not a t t h i s time, no. 

Q. Did the team know that ? 

A. Not a t t h i s time. Not November 20th, 199 6. 

Q. Who were you speaking t o a t t h a t time r e g a r d i n g 

whether t h e r e was t o be a w e l l i n Section 9? 
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A. The GLA-66 owners. 

Q. No, I mean w i t h i n the Penn team. 

A. The Penn team? At t h a t time they were s t i l l 

f i n a l i z i n g t h e i r data and t h e i r i n f o r m a t i o n , and the exact 

l o c a t i o n s weren't determined u n t i l the s p r i n g of t h i s year. 

Q. I wasn't asking about exact l o c a t i o n s — 

A. Right. 

Q. — I was j u s t asking about w e l l s i n Section 8 and 

Section 9. You knew i n November t h a t t h e r e were going t o 

be w e l l s i n those two secti o n s ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. No, s i r , not — No, not i n November, I d i d not. 

We — 

Q. I n November, 1996, you were not making o f f e r s of 

the k i n d t h a t were sent out on November 20th, except t o 

i n t e r e s t owners i n Section 8 and Section 9; i s n ' t t h a t 

t r u e , Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. I'm not sure I understand the question. 

Q. The o f f e r s t h a t you sent out on November 20, 

1996, were only d i r e c t e d a t working i n t e r e s t owners i n 

Section 8 and Section 9; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. Section 9. 

Q. Only Section 9? 

A. Section, 3, 4, 9, 11 and 12. 

Q. Your farmout agreement a t a l a t e r time 

encompassed a l l the acreage under these — 
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A. Right, r i g h t . 

Q. Was t h a t the o f f e r t h a t you made i n November of 

1996? I s t h a t what you're saying? 

A. I n November of 1996 we asked f o r acreage support 

on the s i x sections on the l e t t e r h e a d . 

Q. Well, l e t ' s take a look a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — o f f e r . Maybe I've got them confused. 

F i r s t of a l l , no o f f e r s i n November, 1996, on 

Section 8; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. We made o f f e r s a t a l a t e r date on Section 8. 

Well, a c t u a l l y e a r l i e r , June 18th, we sent out o f f e r s . 

J u l y 29th we sent out o f f e r s t o the Section 8 — 

Q. I'm t a l k i n g about the f a l l of 1996, i f we can — 

A. We sent e a r l i e r o f f e r s out. 

Q. Okay. I'm loo k i n g a t the notebook f o r Case 

11,808, and under E x h i b i t 3 you have the chronology t h a t 

you r e f e r r e d t o before. Are you w i t h me? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And the your chronology shows a date of 

11-20-96, letters to Watson LaForce, Jr., et al. 

What I f i n d a t t h a t day i s a l e t t e r t o Walter B. 

Farnham, and then a l e t t e r t o a H i l l , Louis H i l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Are those meant t o — 
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A. These are sample l e t t e r s . 

Q. Sample l e t t e r s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Right. They went t o — 

Q. I t wasn't ne c e s s a r i l y LaForce but i t was one of 

the — 

A. Right — 

Q. — the GLA-66 group. 

A. — we d i d n ' t want t o t h i c k e n up the book here. 

Q. Okay. And doesn't the l e t t e r , f i r s t of a l l , t e l l 

the r e c i p i e n t t h a t i t ' s a very h i g h - r i s k w e l l , ten-percent 

chance of success? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You were discouraging v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. No, s i r , t h a t ' s j u s t our e s t i m a t i o n of the r i s k 

i n v o l v e d . 

Q. Haven't you t o l d various p a r t i e s t h a t you've 

t a l k e d t o p e r s o n a l l y t h a t you wouldn't i n v e s t i n t h i s ; i t 

would be b e t t e r o f f p u t t i n g t h e i r money i n the stock 

market? 

A. That's my personal f e e l i n g . 

Q. And t h a t ' s what you t o l d people? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t h a t ' s discouraging them from 
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p a r t i c i p a t i n g , r i g h t ? 

A. You can read i t t h a t way. 

Q. Okay. Then y o u ' l l — You say i f you p a r t i c i p a t e , 

y o u ' l l enter i n t o a 1982 form operating agreement p r o v i d i n g 

f o r a 400-percent nonconsent penalty — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — w i t h the r i g h t - t o - p u r c h a s e p r o v i s i o n deleted? 

A. Correct, those are — 

Q. That's a b i t discouraging f o r anybody who wants 

t o — 

A. How so? 

Q. — sign up. 

A. I don't f e e l t h a t — I t ' s p r e t t y standard. With 

the nature of t h i s w e l l , the 1982 model form o p e r a t i n g 

agreement i s customarily used, the r i s k p e n a l t y i s 

reasonable f o r a h i g h - r i s k w e l l of t h i s nature, and a 

p r e f e r e n t i a l r i g h t t o purchase i s almost always d e l e t e d , so 

i t ' s p r e t t y much standard joint-operating-agreement 

language. 

Q. Well, wouldn't — 

A. I don't f i n d t h a t unusual. 

Q. Wouldn't anybody w i t h common sense say, Rather 

than s i g n up v o l u n t a r i l y w i t h you I might as w e l l be f o r c e -

pooled because i t ' s only a 200-percent penalty? I s n ' t t h a t 

t r ue? 
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A. The — To be equivalent t o what you're saying, 

t h i s 400-percent nonconsent penalty t h a t we're proposing 

would be equi v a l e n t t o a 300-percent p e n a l t y , w i t h t he 200-

percent r i s k penalty t h a t you're r e f e r r i n g t o , so the only 

d i f f e r e n c e — Yeah, i t i s 100-percent d i f f e r e n c e . 

I n other words, t o be equal t o the maximum 

pe n a l t y i n New Mexico i t ' s 3 00 percent, and we d i d request 

400 percent because we f e l t t h a t was more a p p r o p r i a t e a 

r i s k p e n a l t y f o r t h i s type of w e l l . 

Q. The dryhole cost, j u s t the d r i l l i n g cost on the 

Scott 24, i s $1.7 m i l l i o n i n round f i g u r e s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. I b e l i e v e you're r i g h t . Yes, s i r , $1,713,800. 

Q. And roughly 65 percent of t h a t , i f you're the 

GLA-66 owners, how much, Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. The — 

Q. $1.2 m i l l i o n , roughly? 

A. I don't have a c a l c u l a t o r here, but t h a t sounds 

about r i g h t , I guess. We have p a r t i c i p a t i o n or we have 

commitments from 35 percent of the owners. I t h i n k t he 

GLA-66 group represents a l i t t l e under 60 percent, so 60 

percent times — 

Q. Well, your own l i s t over here shows t h a t i t 

represents 64.2 percent. 

A. That's the t o t a l . That counts T o t a l Minatome and 

also the Wayne Moore i n t e r e s t . The GLA-66 owners who 
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you're r e p r e s e n t i n g , i t ' s approximately 60 percent. 

Q. Okay. Well, f o r purposes of i l l u s t r a t i o n — We 

can get the exact number, but 60 percent. 

A. Okay. Roughly a m i l l i o n d o l l a r s , $1,027,000. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . A hundred percent i s , i n t h i s case 

w i t h t h i s group, a m i l l i o n d o l l a r s ? 

A. Right, r i g h t . 

Q. So anybody i s b e t t e r o f f not agreeing and j u s t 

saying, Well, f o r c e pool us then, on the terms t h a t you 

were o f f e r i n g , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's a business d e c i s i o n t o be made by the GLA-

66 owners. I r e a l l y can't answer t h a t . 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , d i d you o f f e r t o n e g o t i a t e t h a t ? 

Did you say t o people, We want you t o j o i n up w i t h us, and 

w e ' l l ease back on t h a t penalty, w e ' l l come back t o a lower 

percentage? Did you o f f e r t h a t t o anybody? 

A. Nobody wanted t o p a r t i c i p a t e , Mr. Gallegos. No, 

t h a t d i d n ' t come up. They're not i n the business of — 

Q. Did you have a u t h o r i t y — Did you have a u t h o r i t y 

t o do anything other than simply send out these w r i t t e n 

o f f e r s and have people take i t or leave i t ? 

A. Oh, no, we would neg o t i a t e w i t h them i n good 

f a i t h , hear any counterproposals t h a t they might have, i f 

i t ' s reasonable, and — Yeah, we'd love t o work w i t h 

everybody. 
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Q. So you — 

A. But the general impression I got from the owners 

i s , they j u s t don't l i k e a working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. So you'd be open t o reducing the penalty? 

A. Oh, i f they're not comfortable w i t h t he 400-

percent p e n a l t y — We t h i n k i t ' s f a i r , we'd l i k e t o s t i c k 

w i t h t h a t . That's what we have w i t h t h e i r p a r t n e r s . We 

would — We would work w i t h them and go w i t h 300-percent 

p e n a l t y . 

Q. Well, how about going w i t h a 200-percent penalty? 

A. Well, 300-percent penalty i s the maximum t h a t 

we're allowed, and so 300-percent penalty i s r e a l l y the 

minimum, we t h i n k , t h a t would help support a w e l l of t h i s 

nature. 

Q. But f o r the sake of agreement — 

A. Right. 

Q. — so t h a t people would agree, what you're saying 

i s , you're not w i l l i n g t o reduce the pen a l t y below the 

maximum amount allowed by s t a t u t e ? 

A. No one — the — Very few people have asked t h a t , 

asked f o r t h a t . That r e a l l y d i d n ' t come up. 

Q. I'm asking what B u r l i n g t o n i s w i l l i n g t o do i n 

order t o t r y and get agreement on the p a r t of other owners. 

A. Any ideas t h a t these owners have, I w i l l be happy 

t o submit t o management f o r t h e i r approval. 
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Q. Well, Mr. — I p e r s o n a l l y don't have t h e 

a u t h o r i t y t o a l t e r our o r i g i n a l p e nalty request, but i f I 

— I can go t o management and ask f o r t h e i r approval, and 

I'm sure they would be very f a v o r a b l e . 

Q. Well, Mr. LaForce, a t l e a s t on h i s p a r t , 

suggested a l a r g e r o v e r r i d e — 

A. Oh, yes, he d i d . 

Q. — i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, he d i d . And the o v e r r i d e was so excessive 

t h a t our economics would f a i l on a l l counts. The normal 

leases out t h e r e have an e i g h t h r o y a l t y , and I b e l i e v e they 

wanted t o d e l i v e r a 60-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t lease, 

which i s a 25-percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , and I haven't — 

That was j u s t too tough. 

Q. Well, 22.5-percent o v e r r i d e — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — r i g h t ? But there's already a f i v e - p e r c e n t — 

A. That's r i g h t , t here i s . There i s , 22.5 percent. 

But the bottom l i n e i s a 60-percent net revenue, we 

wouldn't be t o d r i l l t h i s prospect, or t h a t w e l l , i t ' s too 

onerous. 

Q. So then — But you'd be w i l l i n g t o make i t a 65-

percent? 

A. Oh, not at a l l . 

Q. Okay. 
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A. Not a t a l l . 

Q. Well, you said near the close of your d i r e c t 

testimony j u s t before the lunch break t h a t you continue i n 

your e f f o r t s t o get v o l u n t a r y agreement. What have you 

done since — Well, l e t ' s j u s t take the l a s t two weeks. 

What have you done i n the month of J u l y t o continue t o get 

agreement? 

A. Well, I've f i e l d e d phone c a l l s from some of the 

GLA-66 owners. Three of them have come i n . Those are the 

only o p p o r t u n i t i e s t h a t I've had, when I presented my o f f e r 

t o them. We've gotten three responses, and so f a r t h a t ' s 

been the — 

Q. That's your e f f o r t — 

A. Or, so f a r — 

Q. — t o receive three — t h r e e — 

A. No, we c e r t a i n l y want t o do b e t t e r than t h a t , but 

so f a r we have received three responses t o farm out t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t t o us, and we — we're wrapping up the paperwork 

on those now. 

Q. Tom Moore sent you — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — a counterproposal — 

A. Yes, he d i d . 

Q. — J u l y 1 — 

A. Yes, he d i d . 
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Q. — and you haven't responded t o i t y e t , have you? 

A. No, s i r , I haven't. I haven't had a chance t o . 

Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e , Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t h a t i n co n s i d e r i n g 

these o f f e r s you've made t o both the GLA-66 group and t o 

the Moore i n t e r e s t , requests have been made of you t o 

provide some i n f o r m a t i o n i n order t h a t these people could 

make an informed d e c i s i o n ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you've t o l d them they can't have i t ? 

A. No, s i r , I t o l d them t h a t t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n i s 

c o n f i d e n t i a l between the p a r t i e s t h a t acquired t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n . I have no a u t h o r i t y t o d i s c l o s e p r o p r i e t a r y 

seismic or geology over any area i n the e n t i r e Basin or — 

l e t alone t h i s area. That i s not mine t o g i v e . 

Q. I s n ' t i t also t r u e t h a t i n reque s t i n g t h i s 

i n f o r m a t i o n , you were advised i n w r i t i n g t h a t i f you would 

provide i t , i t would be accepted under terms of 

c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y and kept c o n f i d e n t i a l ? 

A. That has no m e r i t , because these are c o n t r a c t u a l 

arrangements, they're p r o p r i e t y nature, and we're not 

allowed t o d i s c l o s e t h a t w i t h o u t p a r t n e r approval, and 

t h a t ' s — Whether you keep i t c o n f i d e n t i a l or not, there's 

n o t h i n g I could do t o accommodate you. 

Q. Okay. But i t was provided t o Cross Timbers? 

A. I t was provided t o Cross Timbers w i t h t h i s 
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p r o v i s i o n : They agreed i n advance t o e i t h e r farm out t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t or p a r t i c i p a t e or s e l l t h e i r i n t e r e s t on 

prearranged terms. On t h a t basis only, were we able t o 

give them a summary b r i e f i n g of the prospect. They saw the 

h i g h - r i s k nature of i t , and they've e l e c t e d t o farm out. 

So they pre-agreed i n w r i t i n g as t o , you know, 

what they would do. And i n t h i s case, they farmed out 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o us. 

Q. Did you give the GLA-66 owners or the Moores the 

same opport u n i t y ? 

A. No, s i r , I d i d not, f o r t h i s reason. They asked 

i t w i t h o u t any s t r i n g s attached, and we're not able t o do 

so. For one t h i n g they s a i d , We want a f r e e look a t your 

i n f o r m a t i o n i n order t o make a d e c i s i o n . I s a i d I couldn't 

help them i n t h a t regard. 

Q. No, I'm saying, d i d you say, We can't do i t t h a t 

way, but w e ' l l do i t the way we d i d w i t h Cross Timbers? 

A. Oh, no, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And they d i d n ' t say no s t r i n g s attached? 

They, i n f a c t , wrote you — I wrote you i n t h e i r behalf — 

A. Right. 

Q. — saying i t w i l l be kept c o n f i d e n t i a l — 

A. But you d i d n ' t agree t o make a t r a d e w i t h us. 

That l e t t e r means nothing t o us. You want a f r e e look a t 

our i n f o r m a t i o n , and y o u ' l l keep i t c o n f i d e n t i a l ? How does 
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t h a t a l l o w you t o c o n t r i b u t e your acreage t o our w e l l ? 

Q. Did you j u s t simply advise these people t h a t 

you'd l i k e t o do i t on the basis of a f r e e agreement, t h a t 

a t r a d e would be made? You d i d n ' t do t h a t , d i d you? 

A. Oh, no, s i r . 

Q. The Marcotte w e l l , Marcotte Number 2, i s being 

d r i l l e d , i s n ' t i t , Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I t was spudded on J u l y 1, 1997? 

A. I b e l i e v e June 25th. 

Q. June 25th? A l l r i g h t . At what depth i s t h a t 

w e l l now? 

A. I ' l l defer t h a t our d r i l l i n g engineer t h a t i s 

here today. H e ' l l — I'm not sure. 

Q. Well, approximately. 

A. 3200 f e e t , l a s t I heard a couple days ago. 

Q. Have you been d r i l l i n g steady since June 25th? 

A. As f a r as I know. 

Q. Okay. Have you been p r o v i d i n g d a i l y d r i l l i n g 

r e p o r t s t o the working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. To the Moores? 

A. No, s i r . They're not a p a r t i c i p a n t . 

Q. I s t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e ? 

A. I f you're going t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l and 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

87 

pay up — and pay your costs of the w e l l , then t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n i s a v a i l a b l e . 

Q. Are you — 

A. They've ele c t e d not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . 

Q. Are you aware t h a t your counsel has f i l e d papers 

i n t h i s proceeding saying t h a t t h i s group has the 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o , quote, w r i t e down, end quote, t h e Marcotte 

Well Number 2 and le a r n the r e s u l t s from t h a t d r i l l i n g 

b efore making an e l e c t i o n concerning committing t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t t o the d r i l l i n g of the Scott 24 w e l l i n Section 9? 

A. Yes, s i r , I read t h a t . 

Q. Okay, so t h a t ' s — Do you stand by t h a t ? 

A. Well, t h a t ' s t r u e . 

Q. Okay. Well, where i s the information? Why i s n ' t 

i t being furnished? 

A. The i n f o r m a t i o n i s not a v a i l a b l e t o a 

n o n p a r t i c i p a n t . They're not t a k i n g the r i s k w i t h us. They 

own a working i n t e r e s t i n Section 8, 2.25-percent i n t e r e s t , 

but they've e l e c t e d not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n our w e l l — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — t h e r e f o r e they're not e n t i t l e d t o any 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Well ~ 

A. I f they p a r t i c i p a t e then they — 

Q. — doesn't t h a t c o n t r a d i c t what I've j u s t s t a t e d 
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has been represented by your counsel and papers f i l e d i n 

t h i s case? 

Are you — Let me ask you d i r e c t l y . 

A. I don't understand the question. 

Q. Are you going t o provide the r e s u l t s on t h e 

Marcotte Number 2 w e l l t o my c l i e n t s , who both have an 

i n t e r e s t i n Section 9, so they can make a d e c i s i o n whether 

or not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Scott 24 we l l ? 

A. That i n f o r m a t i o n i s not mine t o g i v e . I don't 

have the a u t h o r i t y t o give w e l l i n f o r m a t i o n t o a p a r t y t h a t 

has e l e c t e d not t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the d r i l l i n g and 

completion of the w e l l . 

Q. So the answer i s no? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. So no matter what the circumstances, i f 

the p a r t i e s , i n order t o make a d e c i s i o n i n Section 9, ask 

the o p p o r t u n i t y t o have the r e s u l t s on the Section 8 w e l l , 

t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n w i l l not be provided t o them? 

A. That i n f o r m a t i o n i s handled by our d r i l l i n g 

department, and they're — t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n i s not 

a v a i l a b l e u n t i l — unless you p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . So 

i t ' s not a v a i l a b l e t o those who don't p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

Section 8 w e l l . 

Q. Do you understand t h a t the o r d i n a r y procedure on 

a f o r c e - p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n would be t h a t i f the order 
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issues g r a n t i n g the a p p l i c a t i o n , the p a r t i e s t o be f o r c e 

pooled are allowed a per i o d of time a f t e r again r e c e i v i n g 

an AFE, proposed j o i n t operating agreement, a p e r i o d of 

time t o make a dec i s i o n whether they want t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

v o l u n t a r i l y — 

A. Yes, yes, I am f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t , yes. 

Q. But i n t h a t p e r i o d of time, and assuming t h a t 

we're t a l k i n g about 60 t o 90 days, the order t o be issued, 

the time p e r i o d , even though B u r l i n g t o n w i l l have r e s u l t s 

concerning the Marcotte w e l l , t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n w i l l not be 

furnished? 

Well, you're shrugging your shoulders and — 

A. No. No, i t won't be f u r n i s h e d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Okay. Do you have any plans t o 

respond t o the J u l y 1, 1997, o f f e r t h a t Tom Moore sent you 

on the Moore i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I do. I t ' s unacceptable t o our 

management. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t ' s your response? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. You j u s t haven't been able t o w r i t e him t o t h a t 

e f f e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. That o f f e r i s contained i n your — 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 
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Q. — booklet here? 

A. I t sure i s . 

Q. Are you prepared t o speak t o the r i s k p e n a l t y 

a p p l i c a t i o n or the r i s k penalty terms sought by the 

A p p l i c a t i o n , or i s t h a t t o be addressed by the engineer 

w i t h you? 

A. I t i s t o be addressed by the engineer. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let me ask you a couple of questions 

about w e l l l o c a t i o n . I guess e i t h e r one of these booklets 

probably serves as w e l l as the other. 

I'm l o o k i n g a t the 11,808 under Tab E x h i b i t 2. 

The very l a s t p l a t t h e r e , although i t ' s headed Scott 24, 

the s t a r i n Section 8 shows the l o c a t i o n of the Marcotte 

w e l l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. I'm l o o k i n g a t — 

Q. Are you w i t h me? 

A. I'm l o o k i n g a t a d i f f e r e n t map, apparently. Oh, 

see, the topographic — 

Q. I t ' s the topographic. 

A. Okay, yes, I'm w i t h you now. 

Q. Okay. They're the same i n both of the books? 

A. They are. 

Q. Okay. The l o c a t i o n of the Marcotte w e l l was, 

i s n ' t i t a f a c t , Mr. S t r i c k l e r , s elected by the g e o l o g i s t 

and the geophysicist? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t ' s why i t was placed o u t s i d e of t h e 

o r d i n a r y or standard window? 

A. Well, l e t me c l a r i f y , because Section 8 — the 

Section 8 was a prime l o c a t i o n . The l o c a t i o n was chosen t o 

use an e x i s t i n g wellpad, and i t was an acceptable l o c a t i o n 

t o minimize surface disturbance. 

So f o r topographic reasons and the using e x i s t i n g 

wellpad and using e x i s t i n g roads, t h a t l o c a t i o n was picked. 

Q. There are e x i s t i n g wellpads a l l over Section 8, 

aren't t h e r e Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. Oh, yes. This was, I guess, the best l o c a t i o n . 

Q. This s p e c i f i c l o c a t i o n was sele c t e d by the 

g e o l o g i s t and geo p h y s i c i s t , based on t h e i r e v a l u a t i o n and 

d e c i s i o n s ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Based on t h e i r s t u d i e s , yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, what — We can use any of these maps. 

Let's j u s t look a t the f i r s t one i n here, which i s t h i s 

Scott 24. I t ' s colored, and you were using i t t o show the 

Section 9 spacing u n i t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What i s the l o c a t i o n d i s t a n c e from 

the q u a r t e r - s e c t i o n l i n e , f o r the Scott 24? 

A. 210 f e e t . 

Q. Do you have a p l a t or an APD p l a t or something 
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that --

A. Yes, I have a p l a t . The l e g a l l o c a t i o n i s 1530 

f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 2430 f e e t from the west l i n e 

of Section 9, which f a l l s i n the northwest q u a r t e r of the 

s e c t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h a t ' s an i r r e g u l a r section? 

A. Yes, i t i s , 636.01 acres. 

Q. Okay. And how do you c a l c u l a t e t h a t i t ' s — 

You're saying t h a t i t ' s 230 f e e t west — 

A. 210, approximately 210. 

Q. 210, excuse me, 210. You're saying i t ' s 210 from 

the q u a r t e r - s e c t i o n l i n e between the northeast and 

northwest quarter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have a d r i l l i n g permit t h a t a l lows t h a t 

w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. I ' l l have t o defer t h a t t o the engineering 

department. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm not — 

Q. You've a r r i v e d a t t h a t by making the c a l c u l a t i o n 

from the west l i n e ? I s t h a t how you come t o your — 

A. Well, I have a survey p l a t . Yeah, we've staked 

the l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Oh, okay. 
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A. Yeah, we have a survey p l a t , and I have i t i n 

f r o n t of me. 

Q. The survey p l a t ? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. I s t h a t contained anywhere i n these e x h i b i t s — 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. — t h a t we've missed? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Have you — I'm not c l e a r . I've asked a s i m i l a r 

q u e s t i o n . I wasn't sure where we ended up w i t h t h i s . Has 

B u r l i n g t o n f i l e d an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a permit t o d r i l l t h a t 

w e l l ? 

A. I don't know the answer t o t h a t q u e s t i o n . The 

engineering department would know. 

Q. Okay. Can you e x p l a i n t o the Examiner why 

B u r l i n g t o n began d r i l l i n g the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l on 

June 25, 1997, instead of w a i t i n g u n t i l t h i s f o r c e - p o o l i n g 

proceeding was able t o go forward and be completed? 

A. The next speaker w i l l address t h a t more 

s p e c i f i c a l l y . I can elaborate a l i t t l e b i t on t h a t . 

There's a r i g shortage i n the San Juan Basin. 

There's not a r i g i n the Basin t h a t can handle a 14,000-

f o o t t e s t . There's a nationwide shortage of d r i l l i n g r i g s 

t h a t are capable of d r i l l i n g a 14,000-foot Pennsylvanian 

t e s t , and a nationwide search was conducted — and the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

94 

d r i l l i n g department w i l l elaborate on t h i s , but they were 

able t o f i n d a s u i t a b l e d r i l l i n g r i g , t he Parker Number 

218, t h a t would be capable of d r i l l i n g these two w e l l s . 

And so time was of the essence t o secure t h a t r i g 

under c o n t r a c t , or there would have been a six-month t o 

nine-month delay i n securing another s u i t a b l e r i g . And you 

get i n the w i n t e r months, you'd have weather-condition 

problems. And so we f e l t very f o r t u n a t e t h a t t h e d r i l l i n g 

department — t h a t they were successful i n f i n d i n g a good 

r i g . But the next speaker w i l l e laborate more on t h a t . 

Q. So i t ' s your testimony B u r l i n g t o n could not 

t o l e r a t e a six-month delay? What d i f f e r e n c e would t h a t 

make? 

A. Well, we f e l t t h a t t h i s prospect was ready t o go. 

We saw no need t o delay the d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l . A r i g 

was a v a i l a b l e , and a c t i o n was taken. 

You know, when you work on a p r o j e c t f o r two 

years, you work the d i f f e r e n t pieces and p a r t s 

simultaneously, and the d r i l l i n g r i g was a p r e t t y important 

p a r t . N a t u r a l l y , the land and geology and the geoscience 

i s a l l important. But they a l l came together a t t h i s 

a p p r o p r i a t e time, and there was no l o g i c a l reason t o delay 

the d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l . 

Q. Explain t o us what you mean when you say the 

prospect was ready t o go. 
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A. What I really want to say is that putting 

t o g e t h e r the land, the geology, the geophysics, t h e 

engineering, and the securing of a d r i l l i n g r i g , i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r p r o j e c t , took over two years t o get i t a l l 

t o g e t h e r . The d r i l l i n g r i g was the l a s t — was c e r t a i n l y a 

necessary item t o t e s t the idea. 

I hope I answered your question. I'm not sure I 

understand i t . But you've got a la b o r i o u s process p u t t i n g 

t o g e t h e r a prospect of t h i s nature, and — 

Q. And t h a t was a l l done? What you're saying, t h a t 

was a l l completed? 

A. I t was a l l completed as best we could, and the 

r i g was a v a i l a b l e , and we put i t t o work. 

Q. No, but I meant a l l the p r e p a r a t i o n t o zero i n on 

the prospect, t h a t was — has a l l been done? Correct? 

A. Yeah. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And f o r how long has t h a t a l l been done? 

A. Oh, gosh, I — What do you mean exac t l y ? When 

was what done? The — 

Q. Prospect ready t o go, you s a i d . 

A. The prospect was ready t o go — 

Q. Except f o r — 

A. We've got a l o t of loose ends here — 

Q. — making the hole — 

A. — t h a t ' s why we're here today. We have a l o t of 
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loose ends, so there's no p e r f e c t prospect. So I r e a l l y 

can't answer your question. 

Q. Okay, so — but — So then i f you've got some 

loose ends, you need some time t o t i e up the loose ends? 

A. That's why we're here a t the f o r c e - p o o l i n g 

hearing. This helps us t i e up those loose ends. 

Q. I t h i n k your testimony meant t o i n d i c a t e t h a t 

aside from a c t u a l l y d r i l l i n g , from a t e c h n i c a l s t a n d p o i n t , 

e v e r y t h i n g was decided about the prospects, where and what 

i t was and t h a t k i n d of t h i n g , p r i o r t o June, r i g h t ? 

A. Oh, yeah. Yes. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now I'm t r y i n g t o say, a t what time p r i o r t o June 

of t h i s year was i t a t t h a t stage? 

A. I don't know the exact date. 

Q. Well, approximately. 

A. The — Sometime i n February, e a r l i e r t h i s year. 

Q. Okay. By the way, I n o t i c e t h a t i n these — i n 

v a r i o u s of your m a i l i n g s , you have the name, the address 

and the working i n t e r e s t of each and every one of the GLA-

66 owners, corre c t ? 

A. Where are you r e f e r r i n g to? 

Q. Various documents. 

A. The document t h a t you're r e f e r r i n g t o i s E x h i b i t 
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A t o the proposed operating agreement where we l i s t — 

Q. That's one of them. 

A. That's one them. 

Q. And then your — yeah, your — 

A. We have a — 

Q. — t h a t ' s a good example. 

A. We have a cost breakout. That's another one. 

Q. Okay. Do you have some k i n d of computerized 

m a i l i n g c a p a b i l i t y so t h a t when you want t o communicate 

w i t h these 62 or 63 people you can shoot a m a i l i n g out t o 

them? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you aware, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t h a t both Sections 

8 and Section 9 contai n f e d e r a l o i l and gas leased acreage? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And you know, of course, t h a t the east 

h a l f of Section 9 and the southwest qu a r t e r of Section 9 

are p a r t of the Federal O i l and Gas Lease SF-078389? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Are you of the view t h a t the D i v i s i o n 

compulsory p o o l i n g order i s e f f e c t i v e as t o t h a t f e d e r a l 

lease acreage? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What, i f anything, have you done t o seek approval 

of the Bureau of Land Management t o the compulsory p o o l i n g 
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of the f e d e r a l lease acreage? 

A. Nothing t h a t I'm aware o f . I d i d n ' t know t h e r e 

was — t h a t i t was necessary. 

MR. GALLEGOS: I pass the witness. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , i f you would, please, I ' d l i k e t o 

t a l k t o you about the GLA-46 somewhat. F i r s t l e t me 

e s t a b l i s h something. 

There's no question about your a u t h o r i t y t o speak 

f o r B u r l i n g t o n Resources here today; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Objection, the question i s 

ambiguous about the nature of h i s a u t h o r i t y . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: C l a r i f y t h a t , Mr. H a l l . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Your statements are made on behalf 

of B u r l i n g t o n Resources today, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you can speak f o r and represent B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I n what — 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) — i n the context of t h i s p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Objection t o the same question. 

I t ' s too vague. We've q u a l i f i e d t h i s gentleman as a 

landman. The scope of the question i s f a r beyond t h a t . 
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THE WITNESS: I'm not a manager, i f t h a t ' s what 

you mean. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I understand. Well, w i t h i n t he 

scope of your q u a l i f i e d e x p e r t i s e , the scope of your 

c r e d e n t i a l s here e s t a b l i s h e d — 

A. I ' l l l e t you know i f I can't answer. 

Q. Okay. But w i t h i n the scope of your e s t a b l i s h e d 

c r e d e n t i a l s , you're authorized t o speak on behalf of 

B u r l i n g t o n . No question about t h a t , i s there? 

A. Concerning t h i s f o r c e - p o o l i n g matter, yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Give the Hearing Examiner a l i t t l e 

b i t of background on the GLA-46. F i r s t of a l l , what does 

GLA-4 6 mean? 

A. GLA-46 i s a 1951 agreement entered i n t o between 

our predecessors i n t i t l e t o T o t a l Minatome and t o 

B u r l i n g t o n , and the purpose of t h a t agreement was t o d r i l l 

18 Mesaverde w e l l s over a p e r i o d of fou r years, f o u r per 

year. 

I f t h e r e was a w e l l d r i l l e d above or below the 

Mesaverde formation, t h a t w e l l would count towards t h a t 

d r i l l i n g commitment. That d r i l l i n g commitment was 

f u l f i l l e d i n approximately 1956, thereabouts. 

That's about the extent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And so everyone i s c l e a r , 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s predecessor under t h a t agreement was San Juan 
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Production Company, correc t ? 

Q. And Tota l ' s predecessor was Brookhaven? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

MR. CARROLL: Pardon me, what do the i n i t i a l s 

"GLA" stand f o r ? 

THE WITNESS: General land agreement. 

MR. CARROLL: Okay. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Gas lease sale agreement. 

MR. HALL: Perpetual commitment. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , I want t o read you 

something t h a t your a t t o r n e y , Mr. K e l l a h i n , f i l e d i n 

co n j u n c t i o n w i t h h i s r e p l y t o Minatome's — T o t a l 

Minatome's Motion t o Dismiss. You don't need t o have t h i s 

i n f r o n t of you; i t ' s very b r i e f . 

But i n a heading summary Mr. K e l l a h i n wrote, t h e , 

quote, deep gas r i g h t s , unquote, are excluded from the 

GLA-4 6, November 27th, 1951, farmout/operating agreement. 

Do you agree w i t h t h a t ? I s t h a t B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n here today? 

A. I ' d l i k e t o defer t h a t t o Mr. K e l l a h i n . We have 

an issue w i t h B u r l i n g t o n ' s l e g a l department. I'm not 

r e a l l y — I'm not a lawyer and I'm not p a r t of our l e g a l 

department, so — 

Q. Well, what's the land issue? You deal i n matters 
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of land t i t l e , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. HALL: I t h i n k he can speak t o i t so i t — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o o b j e c t , Mr. 

Examiner — 

THE WITNESS: As f a r as i n t e r p r e t i n g — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Excuse me. I'm going t o o b j e c t , 

Mr. Examiner. I t ' s not appropriate f o r t h i s landman or 

Minatome's land people t o express opinions and make 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s of these o l d c o n t r a c t s . 

Besides, i t ' s beyond your j u r i s d i c t i o n here. 

We've a l l acknowledged t h a t there's a d i f f e r e n c e of o p i n i o n 

about t h i s agreement. B u r l i n g t o n takes the p o s i t i o n the 

deep gas i s not included, Minatome says i t i s , and we're 

going t o have t o resolve t h a t somewhere e l s e . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Catanach, I t h i n k we need t o have 

the witness answer the question. I t ' s c l e a r l y w i t h i n t he 

scope of h i s experience and e x p e r t i s e . I t ' s r e a l l y — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s i r r e l e v a n t and beyond h i s 

e x p e r t i s e . 

MR. HALL: Excuse me, Mr. K e l l a h i n . I t ' s a t the 

very h e a r t of our p o s i t i o n here, i s whether or not T o t a l 

Minatome has v o l u n t a r i l y committed i t s acreage t o the w e l l . 

I want t o know t h i s witness's understanding of B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n , whether or not the deep r i g h t s are a f f e c t e d by 
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GLA-46. Simple question. I t h i n k he can answer i t . 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. H a l l , you're asking him t o give 

h i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the GLA-46. 

MR. HALL: No, I'm simply asking him what h i s 

p o s i t i o n i s , p e r i o d . 

MR. CARROLL: And you t h i n k i t ' s d i f f e r e n t than 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s a t t o r n e y , Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. HALL: There's no reason he can't answer t h a t 

question. He said he could speak f o r B u r l i n g t o n . I ' d l i k e 

t o hear i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s not r e l e v a n t , Mr. Examiner, 

what t h i s man's opinion — 

MR. CARROLL: Oh, i t ' s probably not r e l e v a n t , and 

w e ' l l take i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n t h a t Mr. S t r i c k l e r i s not an 

at t o r n e y . But yeah, i f you can give your thoughts on 

whether deep gas i s included or not. 

THE WITNESS: I t h i n k not. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) A l l r i g h t . I s i t B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n t h a t i t does not own the op e r a t i n g r i g h t s on the 

GLA-46 as t o any formation below the Mesaverde? 

A. Please r e s t a t e the question. 

Q. I s i t B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t i t does not own 

or c o n t r o l any of the operating r i g h t s under t h e GLA-46 as 

t o any formations below the Mesaverde? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Objection, Mr. Examiner. He's 
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asking the landman l e g a l conclusions. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Catanach, t h i s i s a p r o f e s s i o n a l 

landman. He has reviewed t h i s document, he's f a m i l i a r w i t h 

i t s terms. I t ' s p a r t of h i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s t o make 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s of t h e i r a p p l i c a b i l i t y , make judgments 

whether or not such an i n t e r e s t should be pooled or whether 

i t ' s already committed. He ought t o answer t h a t q uestion. 

I t ' s a t the heart of t h i s case. 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, he can s t a t e h i s o p i n i o n 

again. Go ahead and answer. 

THE WITNESS: I don't b e l i e v e the deep gas r i g h t s 

are covered by the agreement. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) What do you mean by "deep gas 

r i g h t s " ? I s t h a t defined i n GLA-46? 

A. You can define i t any way you want t o . Deep gas 

r i g h t s would be any r i g h t s below the base of t h e Mesaverde 

f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. And t h a t ' s how you've defi n e d i t i n the conte x t 

of GLA-46? 

A. Subject t o , I'm sure, l e g a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t o you as a landman, you've made a 

judgment t h a t B u r l i n g t o n has no t i t u l a r i n t e r e s t , i n t e r e s t 

i n t he op e r a t i n g r i g h t s , or any type of e x e c u t i v e - r i g h t s 

i n t e r e s t under the GLA-46 below the base of the Mesaverde, 

c o r r e c t ? 
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Do you understand the question? 

A. No. We own i n t e r e s t i n the lease. That's 

o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s , okay? 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. We own 50 percent of t h a t acreage. So yes, we do 

own a working i n t e r e s t i n t h a t lease, or i n the leases. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And those working i n t e r e s t — How 

about the ope r a t i n g r i g h t s ? Are the op e r a t i n g r i g h t s 

d e r i v e d — 

A. Same t h i n g , operating r i g h t s — 

Q. Let me f i n i s h my question. 

The operating r i g h t s t h a t B u r l i n g t o n claims, are 

they d e r i v e d under the GLA-46? 

A. We own undivided i n t e r e s t i n those lands. 

Q. My question t o you, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , i s , under t h e 

GLA-4 6, does B u r l i n g t o n claim any s o r t of ownership 

i n t e r e s t i n the operating r i g h t s below the base of the 

Mesaverde? 

A. A l l depths, yes. 

Q. And so we're c l e a r about your answer, those 

o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s , B u r l i n g t o n claims, are de r i v e d under the 

GLA-4 6? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o — 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — ob j e c t again. He's asking t h i s 
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man to reach legal conclusions with regards to a contract 

d i s p u t e t h a t has yet t o be l i t i g a t e d . And I t h i n k i t ' s 

i n a p p r o p r i a t e t o s i t here and guess about i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

those agreements. 

Quite f r a n k l y , i f y o u ' l l look a t the Rules of 

Evidence and read t h i s farmout, i t ' s not ambiguous. You 

can read i t i n t e n minutes. And yet here we are, t r y i n g t o 

debate what t h i s means. I t h i n k t h i s i s nonsense. 

MR. CARROLL: How f a r are you going t o go w i t h 

t h i s , Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I n terms of time? 

MR. CARROLL: Yes. 

MR. HALL: Maybe about 3 0 minutes or so w i t h t h i s 

witness. 

MR. CARROLL: You're going t o lead him through 

the GLA-46 agreement? 

MR. HALL: I ' l l be very b r i e f on the GLA-46. 

MR. CARROLL: And then what else are you going t o 

touch on? 

MR. HALL: About h i s e f f o r t s t o secure v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n d e r , e x e r c i s i n g good f a i t h . 

MR. CARROLL: Okay. Well, i f you only have a 

couple more guestions on the GLA-46 w e ' l l accept h i s 

testimony f o r what i t ' s worth. 

MR. HALL: D i r e c t i n g him t o answer the l a s t 
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que s t i o n , then? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't know what the l a s t 

q uestion was. Could we repeat i t ? 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, please r e s t a t e i t . 

MR. HALL: Would you read i t back, Mr. Brenner? 

(Thereupon, the question a t page 104, l i n e s 20 

through 22, was read.) 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Would you answer, please? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, w i l l you note my 

c o n t i n u i n g o b j e c t i o n t o t h i s l i n e of i n q u i r y so t h a t I 

don't have t o i n t e r r u p t opposing counsel? But I o b j e c t t o 

t h i s and a l l the r e s t of the questions — 

MR. CARROLL: So noted. 

MR. KELLAHIN: ~ on t h i s t o p i c . 

THE WITNESS: I'm c l e a r t h a t we own a h a l f 

i n t e r e s t i n t h a t lease. That's a l l I'm c l e a r about. Your 

reference t o GLA-4 6, I'm not able t o answer. 

MR. HALL: Fa i r enough. 

I f I may approach the witness w i t h GLA-46. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , again, you've 

reviewed GLA-46. You're f a m i l i a r w i t h i t s terms, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y the language i n GLA-4 6 t h a t 

l i m i t s a p p l i c a b i l i t y e x c l u s i v e l y t o the Mesaverde? 

A. Mr. H a l l , I've read the agreement, and t h i s 
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agreement i s under study w i t h our l e g a l department, and I 

don't see what I — what else I can do t o add t o our l e g a l 

department's p a r t i c u l a r work on t h i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

There's nothing I can do here t o circumvent the l e g a l 

department's review of t h i s . 

Q. What i s — 

A. I'm not a lawyer and — 

Q. What i s — 

A. — I'm not q u a l i f i e d t o i n t e r p r e t t h e — 

Q. What i s Bur l i n g t o n ' s l e g a l — Are you f i n i s h e d 

w i t h your answer? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. What i s B u r l i n g t o n l e g a l department's 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of GLA-46? 

A. They're not here t o answer t h a t . I'm not here — 

I'm not going t o put words i n t h e i r mouth. I — 

Q. You said you knew what t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n was. 

What i s i t ? 

A. That — Well, the bottom l i n e i s t h a t t he deep 

gas r i g h t s are not covered by t h i s agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, t o get back t o my o r i g i n a l 

q uestion — by the way — 

A. Right. 

Q. — GLA-46 has been marked as T o t a l ' s E x h i b i t 1. 

Can you i d e n t i f y any language i n GLA-46 t h a t l i m i t s i t s 
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a p p l i c a b i l i t y t o the Mesaverde? 

A. I'm going t o defer t h a t t o our l e g a l department. 

Q. So the answer t o my question i s , no, you 

cannot — you're unable t o — 

A. I'm not going t o answer your question, i s the — 

i s my response. 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , do you agree w i t h Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

r e p r e s e n t a t i o n i n Response t o our Motion t o Dismiss t h a t 

the GLA-4 6 may apply t o the Dakota? 

A. I'm going t o defer t h a t also t o our l e g a l 

department. 

Q. Do you have a view on t h a t , Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. There's been over 3 0 amendments t o t h i s 

agreement. Each time t h i s agreement has been amended, due 

t o new proposals over the years — I don't have a l l t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n i n f r o n t of me. I can't speak s p e c i f i c t o the 

Dakota r i g h t s . So I'm going t o pass. 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, Mr. H a l l , i t seems these 

questions are beyond Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s e x p e r t i s e or a u t h o r i t y 

t o answer. So — Are you going t o f i n i s h up here w i t h the 

GLA-4 6? 

MR. HALL: P r e t t y soon, p r e t t y soon. 

MR. CARROLL: How many more questions do you 

have? 

MR. HALL: Several. I ' l l be very b r i e f — 
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GLA-4 6. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) I s n ' t i t t r u e , Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t h a t 

a t the very l e a s t B u r l i n g t o n viewed the GLA-46 as a t l e a s t 

c a s t i n g some cloud on t i t l e t o the deep r i g h t s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s why you went out and s o l i c i t e d 

amendments t o i t ? 

A. As p a r t of the n e g o t i a t i n g process, yes. 

Q. I f you would look a t your e x h i b i t book i n Case 

11,809, under your Tab Number 4, th e r e i s a l e t t e r from you 

t o Deborah G i l c h r i s t , land manager a t T o t a l , dated A p r i l 1, 

1997. Can you f i n d t h a t ? 

A. I found i t . 

Q. I f y o u ' l l look a t the second f u l l paragraph of 

t h a t l e t t e r on the f i r s t page, would i t be accurate t o 

summarize t h a t you were s o l i c i t i n g an amendment t o GLA-46? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You used the term, "agrees t o amend th e November 

27, 1951 Operating Agreement", c o r r e c t ? 

A. As has been done 3 0 times before, yes. 

Q. And i n your l e t t e r , as I understand i t — and you 

may c o r r e c t me i f my understanding i s not r i g h t , but your 

amendment would have applied t o a l l depths. There was no 

reference i n your l e t t e r as t o any depth r e s t r i c t i o n ? 

A. No, s i r . 
— . . 
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Q. I believe I asked you a compound question, but is 

i t c o r r e c t t h a t there was no l i m i t a t i o n as t o depth 

r e s t r i c t i o n ? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n t h a t same l e t t e r , you also propose t h a t t he 

amendment apply t o a l l of Tota l ' s i n t e r e s t under the GLA-46 

Basinwide, c o r r e c t ? 

A. I n the A p r i l 1, 1997, l e t t e r , yes. 

Q. Do you have any idea how many acres t h a t was? 

A. No. 

Q. More than 2000? 

A. Quite a — Quite a few. 

Q. More than 2000? 

A. That's j u s t an estimate. 

Q. Among the terms of your proposed amendment t o 

GLA-46 were 400-percent nonconsent p e n a l t y ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes s i r . 

Q. I f you would t u r n back t o E x h i b i t 1, Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r , t he GLA-46 agreement, j u s t b r i e f l y . I f you 

would look a t Paragraphs 4b and 4f. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Where are we a t , Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I t ' s page 3. I f y o u ' l l look a t 

E x h i b i t 1, top page i s farmout agreement. E x h i b i t B t o the 

farmout agreement, E x h i b i t 1, i s the op e r a t i n g , t h a t i s , 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

111 

the GLA-46 operating agreement. Page 3 of t h a t , Paragraph 

4b, c o n t i n u i n g on t o page 4, and then on page 5, Paragraph 

4f . Take a moment t o look a t those, Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

Have you reviewed those p r o v i s i o n s before? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You're f a m i l i a r w i t h them? 

A. (No response) 

Q. Would you e x p l a i n b r i e f l y your understanding of 

t h e i r operation? 

A. As I said before, t h i s agreement was designed t o 

d r i l l 18 Mesaverde w e l l s and — over a four-year p e r i o d or 

f o u r w e l l s per year. Any w e l l s d r i l l e d above and below 

would account t o t h a t w e l l count. Those 18 w e l l s were 

d r i l l e d i n a t i m e l y fashion back i n — through 1951, 

through 1956, according t o my understanding, and t h a t 

o b l i g a t i o n was met. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, those p a r t i c u l a r Paragraphs 4b 

and 4 f , would i t be accurate t o say t h a t they c o n t a i n an 

acreage reassignment provision? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. And you're nodding your head yes. You need t o 

answer — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — v e r b a l l y . 

A. Yeah, I see t h a t . 
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Q. To your knowledge, has B u r l i n g t o n or any of i t s 

predecessors, Meridian, El Paso, ever reassigned or 

r e l i n q u i s h e d acreage back t o Brookhaven or i t s successors 

under these acreage reassignment — 

A. I don't now the answer t o t h a t question. 

Q. I s B u r l i n g t o n d i s c l a i m i n g any o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s or 

other r i g h t s under GLA-4 6 i t might have i n the deep 

formations now? 

A. I'm not going t o — I'm not able t o answer t h a t 

q uestion. 

Q. I f you look a t Paragraph 1, the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement t o GLA-46 — You see Paragraph 1 there? 

A. I see d e f i n i t i o n s . Oh, t h a t ' s accounting 

procedure. 

MR. CARROLL: Where are you a t i n t h i s e x h i b i t , 

Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I t ' s page 1 of the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

MR. CARROLL: Okay, i t ' s about the s i x t h page? 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) That numbered Paragraph 1 i s 

lab e l e d "Assignment of Operating Rights." I s t h e r e any 

depth l i m i t a t i o n i n Paragraph 1 t h a t you see a t a l l ? 

A. Not i n A r t i c l e 1. 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , l e t me hand you what's been marked 

as T o t a l ' s E x h i b i t 2, i f you would i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the 
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record, please. 

Mr. S t r i c k l e r , i s E x h i b i t 2 lab e l e d "Supplement 

t o Operating Agreement Dated November 27, 1951"? 

A. Yes. 

Q. With a date of the 30th day of November, 1962? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you seen t h i s — 

A. No. 

Q. — document before? 

A. No. 

Q. Let me r e f e r you t o page 2 of t h a t document, the 

second f u l l paragraph t h e r e , the second "WHEREAS". Would 

you read t h a t paragraph, please, s i r ? 

A. "WHEREAS" — I s t h i s on page 2, the second 

"WHEREAS"? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Okay. "WHEREAS Section 5d2 of s a i d Agreement of 

November 27, 1951, as amended, provides i n substance t h a t 

i n the event any w e l l be d r i l l e d upon s a i d acreage t o a 

gr e a t e r depth than a Mesaverde w e l l , the maximum d r i l l i n g 

costs (except casing t o be fu r n i s h e d by San Juan) t o be 

pa i d out of production by Brookhaven s h a l l be agreed upon 

by the p a r t i e s i n the manner comparable t o the maximum cost 

of the Mesaverde w e l l , as defined i n Section 5 d l of the 

su b j e c t Agreement..." 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you would look a t the f i n a l page 

of E x h i b i t 2, does i t r e f l e c t a signa t u r e by a 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e f o r El Paso Natural Gas Company? 

A. Yes, I see one. 

Q. And again, back on page 2, do you agree — does 

B u r l i n g t o n agree w i t h t h a t second "WHEREAS", i n t e r p r e t i n g 

Section 5d2 of the GLA-46? 

A. Again, t h i s i s the l e g a l department's 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . They have reviewed t h i s agreement and they 

have t h e i r a n a l y s i s of i t , so I can't answer t h a t question. 

That's t h e i r j o b . 

Q. You don't have a p o s i t i o n one way or another; i s 

t h a t — 

A. I'm not going t o make a p o s i t i o n w i t h o u t a l l o w i n g 

the land department — excuse me, the l e g a l department, t o 

come up w i t h t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

Q. So I understand, the p r o t o c o l w i t h i n B u r l i n g t o n 

i s t h a t a l l d e c i s i o n s , a l l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s of land t i t l e 

documents l i k e t h a t are deferred t o leg a l ? 

A. I n t h i s case, where we have a d i s p u t e , yes. 

Q. And has l e g a l advised you what B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n i s w i t h respect t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r document? 

A. No, s i r , I don't know a t h i n g about t h i s 

p r o v i s i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Going back t o your e x h i b i t book, Mr. 
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S t r i c k l e r , i n the 11,809 case f o r the Marcotte 2, you have 

a l e t t e r dated May 22nd, 1997. I t ' s your l e t t e r t o Deborah 

G i l c h r i s t , Land Manager, a t T o t a l Minatome Corporation. 

A. I'm w i t h you. 

MR. CARROLL: What date i s t h a t l e t t e r , Mr. Ha l l ? 

MR. HALL: I t ' s May 22nd, 1987. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I s i t i n 11,809? 

MR. HALL: Correct. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t h a t f i r s t f u l l 

paragraph f o l l o w i n g your numbered paragraphs on t h a t May 

22nd l e t t e r , accurate t o say i n t h a t paragraph you 

i n t e r p r e t e d the GLA-46, then, t o a t l e a s t apply t o the 

P i c t u r e d C l i f f s and Mesaverde formations? 

A. Yes. 

Q. E a r l i e r , d i d I understand your testimony 

c o r r e c t l y t h a t i t was your view the GLA-46 a p p l i e d t o only 

the Mesaverde formation? 

A. As I s t a t e d e a r l i e r , the 18 w e l l s t h a t were p a r t 

of t he i n i t i a l o b l i g a t i o n i n t h i s agreement r e q u i r e d the 

d r i l l i n g of 18 Mesaverde w e l l s . But any w e l l s d r i l l e d 

above and below the Mesaverde w e l l would apply t o t h a t 18-

w e l l count. And t h i s i s a PC area, so th e r e were PC w e l l s , 

i t ' s my understanding, t h a t would apply t o t h a t 18-well 

count. 

So t h a t was my f e e l i n g , t h a t t he 18 w e l l s 
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inc l u d e d not only Mesaverde w e l l s but also PC w e l l s , and 

t h a t we're covered. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So i f I understand, your 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , then, i s t h a t the 18-well d r i l l i n g program 

has been performed, corr e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And as a consequence of t h a t , t he GLA-46 i s 

extinguished? I s t h a t accurate? 

A. That i s not — I'm not — I can't speak on t h a t 

e i t h e r . That's, again, the l e g a l department's 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Was i t the l e g a l department t h a t 

d i r e c t e d you t o t r y t o o b t a i n amendments t o GLA-46 f o r the 

Marcotte 2? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you do t h a t on your own? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why d i d you do th a t ? 

A. The — This agreement over the years has been 

handled by amendment. Everybody has — Because the 

agreement i s on a case-by-case basis over the years, we 

f o l l o w e d t h a t same format. 

Looking i n the f i l e s , there's 3 0 amendments t o 

the agreement, and so we f e l t t h a t — I f e l t t h a t was the 

best methodology t o handle the — you know, the t r a d e , t he 
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proposed t r a d e w i t h T o t a l , along w i t h the other owners. 

They agreed t o amend the agreement a l s o , or 

t h a t ' s how they've been — the t r a d i t i o n of handli n g t h i s 

agreement. 

And i t ' s a 46-year-old agreement, and I'm 

f a m i l i a r w i t h i t the l a s t , you know, s i x t o nine months. 

So we f o l l o w e d t h a t same h i s t o r y i n amending the agreement, 

and t h a t ' s why I wrote the l e t t e r of May 22nd. 

Q. Well, I be l i e v e there's some confusion, though, 

Mr. S t r i c k l e r . Does GLA-4 6 apply t o the deep r i g h t s or 

not? 

A. I t h i n k , again, t h i s i s something t h a t the l e g a l 

department a t B u r l i n g t o n i s — has a good handle on. I'm 

j u s t t r y i n g t o make a trade w i t h a l l the v a r i o u s p a r t i e s i n 

t h i s prospect. This seems t o be the ea s i e s t path t o take, 

t o get a v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

So by o f f e r i n g p a r t i c i p a t i o n and farmout and 

purchase of r i g h t s , t h a t ' s the rou t e we took. I mean, I 

don't know what else t o t e l l you. 

Q. As I understood — I'm s o r r y , were you f i n i s h e d ? 

A. Yeah, j u s t t r y i n g t o make — 

Q. As I understood your e a r l i e r testimony, you 

i n d i c a t e d i t was your d e c i s i o n , you made the d e t e r m i n a t i o n 

t h a t i t would be appropriate t o o b t a i n amendments t o GLA-46 

f o r deep r i g h t s , correct? 
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A. That's the way the agreement has been handled 

over the years. I saw i t i n the f i l e and we went the same 

way. 

Q. You weren't d i r e c t e d by the l e g a l department — 

A. No. 

Q. — t o do that? 

A. No, not when these l e t t e r s were w r i t t e n , no. 

Q. And so i t was your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of GLA-46 t h a t 

t h a t would be appropriate? 

A. My f e e l i n g i s , since we got cooperation from a l l 

the other GLA-4 6 owners t o e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e or farm out, 

t h a t t h a t would be the appropriate a c t i o n w i t h T o t a l 

Minatome. And they were very cooperative w i t h us, so 

t h a t ' s the ro u t e we took. 

Q. Indeed, hasn't T o t a l p a r t i c i p a t e d i n any number 

of w e l l s outside of the Mesaverde formation under GLA-4 6, 

w i t h B u r l i n g t o n , w i t h El Paso, w i t h Meridian? 

A. I don't have the h i s t o r y of a l l the w e l l s d r i l l e d 

under GLA-46. There are a larg e number. So I r e a l l y don't 

— I'm not an expert on t h a t . 

Q. But th e r e are a t l e a s t some, would you 

acknowledge? 

A. I would assume so. 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r — Get o f f the GLA-4 6 f o r j u s t a 

moment and ask you about the expedited d r i l l i n g of the 
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Marcotte w e l l i n t h i s case and why t h a t was done. 

I n your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h T o t a l , you d e a l t w i t h 

Deborah G i l c h r i s t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, p r i m a r i l y . 

Q. Did you represent t o Ms. G i l c h r i s t t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n was r e q u i r e d t o expedite d r i l l i n g of the 

Marcotte 2 because the BLM had given you a l i m i t e d d r i l l i n g 

window? 

A. We've had so many conversations t h a t I may have 

mentioned t h a t . I don't r e c a l l s p e c i f i c a l l y . We're 

running f u l l speed ahead on d r i l l i n g t h i s prospect, so — 

What's the issue here? 

Q. Well, my question was, d i d you represent t o Ms. 

G i l c h r i s t or anyone t h a t you had a s h o r t time frame i n 

which t o d r i l l the Marcotte Number 2 because of a 

l i m i t a t i o n the BLM placed on you? 

A. I don't r e c a l l s p e c i f i c a l l y saying t h a t . I do 

r e c a l l saying t h a t the BLM i s r e a l e x c i t e d about t h i s new 

Penn t e s t , because there's — there hasn't been any 

d r i l l i n g i n 13-some-odd years, and t h a t t h e y ' r e being very 

c a r e f u l i n g r a n t i n g APDs. They're w o r r i e d about the 

environmental impact statements and t h i s s o r t of t h i n g , 

so — and as the next speaker w i l l t e l l you, we do have a -

- we had a — we located a d r i l l i n g r i g t h a t we were happy 

t o o b t a i n and put t o work. 
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So yeah, I guess there was a sense of urgency. 

There always seems t o be w i t h an e x p l o r a t i o n w e l l l i k e 

t h i s . 

Q. Well, l e t me be more s p e c i f i c . I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n 

what th e BLM might have t o l d B u r l i n g t o n . I n connection 

w i t h a — B u r l i n g t o n ' s r e p l y t o a motion t o dismiss i n t h i s 

case, you provided an a f f i d a v i t ; do you r e c a l l t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let me simply read t h i s t o you — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — see i f you r e c a l l t h i s . Paragraph 18 of your 

a f f i d a v i t : This r i g was contracted w i t h a two-well 

commitment i n order t o d r i l l the Marcotte Well Number 2 and 

a subsequent w e l l d u r i n g good-weather months and d r i l l i n g 

windows allowed by the BLM and t o avoid any bad w i n t e r 

weather delays. 

I'm s o r r y , I don't have e x t r a copies, but I ' l l 

show you — 

A. Right, I remember t h a t . 

Q. What was the basis of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r statement, 

d r i l l i n g windows allowed by the BLM? 

A. Well, there's some — You have the antelope, you 

have the r a p t o r s , you have the various d r i l l i n g 

r e s t r i c t i o n s by the BLM. I was simply making a broad 

statement about t h a t . 
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The — I guess the main t h i n g i s , we found t h i s 

r i g i n Ozona, Texas, over 700 miles away, t o d r i l l the 

Marcotte Number 2. I n order t o get t h a t r i g , the Parker 

218 r i g , out here, we committed t o two w e l l s , and so we're 

readying two l o c a t i o n s f o r t h i s — so we can keep t h i s r i g 

busy. And t h a t ' s — We also wanted t o avoid w i n t e r weather 

and any delays t h a t might come our way through d r i l l i n g , 

you know, window r e s t r i c t i o n s t h a t the BLM might have. 

Q. Well, here's my question about t h a t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you know i f the BLM imposed any s o r t of time 

l i m i t a t i o n on the d r i l l i n g of the Marcotte Number 2 because 

of weather? 

A. Oh, no, we're — That's j u s t normal p l a n n i n g by 

any o i l company or gas company, t o pl a n your operations i n 

good-weather months. So t h a t ' s p r e t t y basic. 

Q. So i s the answer t o my question, no, t h e r e i s no 

time l i m i t a t i o n imposed by BLM? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

Q. G e t t i n g back t o the May 22nd, 1997, l e t t e r , you 

s t i l l have t h a t i n f r o n t of you there? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You make a comment i n the n e x t - t o - l a s t paragraph 

t h a t — I ' l l j u s t read i t . " B u r l i n g t o n does not agree w i t h 

your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the agreement which allows you t o be 
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c a r r i e d or e f f e c t i v e l y b r i n g down the p r o j e c t on t h e 

s u b j e c t w e l l . " 

Let me ask you about t h a t . What d i d you mean by 

t h a t , " b r i n g down the p r o j e c t " ? 

A. We — I f e l t t h a t w i t h a l l the other GLA-46 

owners p a r t i c i p a t i n g or farming out, t h a t having a 4.65-

percent i n t e r e s t would hold up t h i s p r o j e c t , t h a t wanted — 

wished t o be c a r r i e d under an o l d agreement t h a t we f e l t 

d i d n ' t apply. So t h a t was my f e e l i n g s , you know, a t the 

time t h i s l e t t e r was w r i t t e n . 

Q. Your f e e l i n g s were t h a t i f T o t a l Minatome 

Corporation d i d not p a r t i c i p a t e , d i d not agree t o your 

program, the w e l l would not go forward? 

A. That was my f e e l i n g i n t h i s statement. 

Q. And t h i s i s — We're t a l k i n g about a 4.5-percent 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. 4.6522, yes, $107,000 c a r r y . 

Q. Under GLA-46, are you aware of whether or not 

t h e r e i s a requirement t h a t any assignment by B u r l i n g t o n of 

i t s i n t e r e s t under GLA-46 re q u i r e d consent of any other 

party? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t p r o v i s i o n . 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y who i n B u r l i n g t o n ' s management 

the Penn team reported to? 

A. Let's see, J e r r y Zieche i s the — not t h e 
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e x p l o r a t i o n manager, but he's one of the d i r e c t o r s . We 

r e p o r t t o J e r r y Zieche. 

Q. Others? 

A. Then the v i c e p r e s i d e n t i s Mark E l l i s . I guess 

he's the d i v i s i o n VP, so he's the u l t i m a t e boss. Danny 

H i l l i s i n between him. So you have Mark E l l i s , Danny H i l l 

and J e r r y Zieche t h a t are i n charge of t h i s area, I guess, 

the Penn pl a y . 

Q. Of those i n d i v i d u a l s , or others, who a u t h o r i z e d 

you t o undertake n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h T o t a l or any of the 

other unjoined i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. The — My land manager, Bobby Kennedy, back i n 

August of 1996 assigned me t o t h i s area. 

Q. And d i d he l i k e w i s e impose l i m i t a t i o n s on your 

a u t h o r i t y i n terms of d o l l a r f i g u r e s you could o f f e r t o 

acquire acreage, e t cetera? 

A. Everything i s subject t o management approval, so 

yes. 

MR. HALL: No f u r t h e r questions of t h i s witness, 

Mr. Catanach. 

I ' d move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 and 

ask t h a t the D i v i s i o n take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of GLA-46 

and the 19 62 supplement. They are instruments of r e c o r d i n 

San Juan County. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We o b j e c t , Mr. Examiner. 
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MR. CARROLL: To what? 

MR. KELLAHIN: To the admission of those 

documents as not being r e l e v a n t t o t h i s case. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I be l i e v e t h a t we w i l l admit 

those and consider those w i t h due c o n s i d e r a t i o n , whatever 

t h e y ' r e worth — 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — f o r our purposes. So 

w e ' l l go ahead and admit E x h i b i t s 1 and 2 and take 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of GLA-46. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I s Mr. H a l l concluded w i t h h i s 

examination? 

MR. HALL: Yes, I am. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Gallegos, d i d you have an 

o b j e c t i o n or no objection? 

MR. GALLEGOS: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have some r e d i r e c t , Mr. 

Examiner, i f I may. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Let's go back t o the May 22nd l e t t e r , Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r , the one t h a t Mr. H a l l was t a l k i n g t o you about, 

the one you wrote t o Minatome. 

I n a d d i t i o n , I want you t o t u r n t o GLA-46 and 
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look a t the operating agreement. Find page 7. Do you have 

t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you see the c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t p r o v i s i o n s t h a t 

are t h e r e f o r Brookhaven? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Back i n 1951, when these w e l l s were 

being d r i l l e d by San Juan i n the Mesaverde, was someone i n 

Brookhaven's p o s i t i o n o b l i g a t e d t o pay f o r any of the share 

of the cost i n cash? 

A. Would you repeat your question, please? 

Q. When you look a t the c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t on page 7, 

my question f o r you i s , how was Brookhaven's share of t h e 

cost of the w e l l t o be col l e c t e d ? 

A. Out of h a l f of production. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does t h a t mean t h a t i f the w e l l i s 

succ e s s f u l , then the operator d r i l l i n g t he w e l l w i l l 

recover Brookhaven 1s share of the cost only out of 50 

percent of Brookhaven's share of production? 

A. Correct. 

Q. The other 50 percent gets p a i d t o them d i r e c t l y ? 

A. Right. 

Q. I f the production i s i n s u f f i c i e n t t o recover the 

cos t , t h e r e i s no penalty otherwise imposed? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. I s that right? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f the w e l l i s a dry hole, t h e r e are no o u t - o f -

pocket expenses f o r Brookhaven? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . That i s the p o s i t i o n t h a t Minatome 

would l i k e t o be i n w i t h regards t o the deep gas; i s t h a t 

not true? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That they would be a c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t f o r which 

you would recoup t h e i r share of cost only out of f u t u r e 

production? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i f there i s no production, you bear the t o t a l 

cost of t h a t e f f o r t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I f th e r e i s production, you recover i t a t th e 50-

percent r a t e w i t h o u t any penalty? 

A. Correct. 

Q. When you look a t the May 22nd l e t t e r , you're 

o f f e r i n g amendments t o GLA-4 6? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do those amendments e n v i s i o n a c o n t i n u a t i o n of 

t h i s c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t p r o v i s i o n from the 1951 co n t r a c t ? 

A. No. 
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Q. I n f a c t , t h a t ' s what these amendments were doing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Doing away w i t h t h a t arrangement? 

A. Exactly. 

MR. HALL: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o the le a d i n g 

nature of the questions. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) What were you proposing on May 

22nd, when you're suggesting an amendment? 

A. Simply f o l l o w the same procedures over the l a s t 

4 0-some-odd years t o — each new proposal would stand on 

i t s own and everybody would e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e or farm out. 

Q. Did you inte n d by those amendments t o have a 

continued c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t p r o v i s i o n as we see i n t h i s o l d 

agreement? 

A. No. 

Q. Have the other GLA-4 6 owners t h a t have agreed t o 

t h i s amendment agreed t o amendments t h a t exclude t h i s type 

of c a r r y p r o v i s i o n ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. Let's look a t the op e r a t i n g agreement. 

You've got an operating agreement, and you've got some 

p r o v i s i o n s i n there f o r a 400-percent penalty? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Would you look at the p o r t i o n of the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement where you f i n d t h a t p r o v i s i o n ? 
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A. Page 6 of the operating agreement. 

Q. That's a c o n t i n u a t i o n of an a r t i c l e t h a t s t a r t s 

back over on page 5, i s i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When you look a t page 5, which contains the f u l l 

c o n t e x t of the s e c t i o n t h a t has the 400-percent p e n a l t y i n 

i t , what's the c a p t i o n of the section? 

A. "Subsequent Operations". 

Q. Under "Operating Agreements", does the nonconsent 

p r o v i s i o n under subsequent operations apply t o the i n i t i a l 

w e l l t h a t i s being proposed? 

MR. HALL: Objection — 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. HALL: — Mr. Catanach. E a r l i e r — and I 

don't mean t o be t r i t e about t h i s , but Mr. K e l l a h i n 

interposed an o b j e c t i o n because i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of l e g a l 

c o n t r a c t s i s outside the e x p e r t i s e of t h i s witness. 

MR. CARROLL: And we accepted i t , t a k i n g due 

n o t i c e of h i s q u a l i f i c a t i o n s of experience and a u t h o r i t y . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) A l l r i g h t . When we look a t 

the f u n c t i o n s of the operating agreement t h a t you have 

proposed here, and you apply them t o i n t e r e s t owners making 

an i n i t i a l investment f o r the Marcotte w e l l , t h e r e i s no 

o p p o r t u n i t y f o r those v o l u n t a r y committed i n t e r e s t owners 

t o go nonconsent under t h i s agreement; i s t h a t not true? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. They pay t h e i r money, they commit t o the w e l l , 

and only t h e r e a f t e r , i f there's subsequent o p e r a t i o n s , does 

the 400 percent k i c k in? 

A. Correct. 

Q. When we look a t the penalty f a c t o r f o r t h e f o r c e 

p o o l i n g , t h a t i s a cost-plus-200-percent, and t h a t a f f e c t s 

people who have not v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o t h e i n i t i a l 

investment f o r t h a t well? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i f they do not v o l u n t a r i l y commit, then the 

l i m i t a t i o n of t h e i r f i n a n c i a l exposure i s t o t h e i r share of 

f u t u r e p r o d u c t i o n plus a penalty? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i f they make no commitment and you spend the 

money and i t ' s a dry hole, they're out free? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 

MR. HALL: B r i e f recross? 

MR. CARROLL: Recross? 

MR. HALL: Very b r i e f l y . 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , GLA-4 6 farmout agreement and 

ope r a t i n g agreement, there's a p r e - e x i s t i n g c o n d i t i o n of 
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t i t l e , Marcotte Number 2 and Scott Number 24, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i t applies t o deep r i g h t s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s not c o r r e c t . 

Q. Then what was the purpose of s o l i c i t i n g an 

amendment t o GLA-46, i f i t was i n a p p l i c a b l e , a t a l l ? 

A. My j o b as a landman, and not a lawyer, i s t o 

n e g o t i a t e hard w i t h a l l the owners and s o l i c i t t h e i r 

support t o where a l l p a r t i e s are happy, and the amendment 

rou t e was the simplest and easiest r o u t e t o go. We d i d n ' t 

want t o do anything out of the norm. 

This agreement had been handled by amendments a l l 

these years. I f a new w e l l was proposed, p a r t i e s would 

p a r t i c i p a t e and pay t h e i r b i l l s , and t h a t ' s a l l we were 

a f t e r . Okay? 

I n t h i s case, the GLA-4 6 owners, e i t h e r one 

farmed out or p a r t i c i p a t e d . And we were hoping t h a t T o t a l 

Minatome would cooperate w i t h us i n the same manner. 

So the amendment process was the s i m p l e s t 

s o l u t i o n and, you know, we wanted t o get t h i s prospect 

ready t o go and move forward w i t h the d r i l l i n g of t h i s 

w e l l . 

Q. Understand, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , i f GLA-4 6 d i d not 

apply, you could have j u s t as e a s i l y s u p p l i e d T o t a l w i t h a 

610 form operating agreement and AFE, got t o t h e same 
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place, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. HALL: No f u r t h e r questions. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Gallegos, do you have any? 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , thank you. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are the r e any other questions 

of t h i s witness from anybody? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's take a s h o r t break here 

before I prepare my questions. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 2:57 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 3:16 p.m.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A l l r i g h t . Let's reconvene 

a t t h i s time, and we have a few questions, Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Are you the primary witness i n terms of 

t e s t i f y i n g w i t h regards t o the unorthodox l o c a t i o n f o r the 

Marcotte w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay, can you answer a few questions on t h a t ? 

As I understand i t , the unorthodox l o c a t i o n i s 

based on topographic and archaeologic c o n d i t i o n s ? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. Can you b r i e f l y , again, describe what these 

c o n d i t i o n s are? 

A. Give me a moment t o f l i p back t o the topo map. 

I t ' s my understanding when the s t a k i n g took place 

t h a t t h i s l o c a t i o n took advantage of two e x i s t i n g d r i l l 

pads, and i f I can show you the map, on E x h i b i t 2, you have 

the — you have a Mesaverde w e l l and a PC w e l l i n t h a t 

v i c i n i t y , and t h a t was the most f a v o r a b l e l o c a t i o n i n t h a t 

southwest q u a r t e r t o lo c a t e t h i s w e l l . 

MR. GALLEGOS: May I i n q u i r e , j u s t so we're a l l 

l o o k i n g a t the same — t h i s i s the — 

THE WITNESS: That's the topo. 

MR. GALLEGOS: — topo map? 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , were — 

the r e are d r i l l i n g — There are orthodox d r i l l i n g windows 

i n each of the quarter sections i n Section 8. Do you know 

i f an orthodox l o c a t i o n was explored i n any of the other 

d r i l l i n g windows? 

A. No, s i r , I be l i e v e the goal was t o stay w i t h i n 

the southwest quarter of 8, and t h i s l o c a t i o n avoided a l o t 

of houses and other — There's a couple of s u b d i v i s i o n s i n 

t h i s area, so they f e l t t h a t t h a t was the s a f e s t l o c a t i o n 

from a — I guess an environmental sense. 

And they needed a f i v e - a c r e d r i l l p a d , and a 
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s u i t a b l e f i v e - a c r e d r i l l p a d was — the best spot was where 

you see i t now. 

Q. Are you saying t h a t the other t h r e e q u a r t e r 

s e c t i o n s w i t h i n Section 8 were not acceptable due t o 

topographic problems as well? 

A. I t ' s my understanding t h a t the g e o l o g i s t s and 

geop h y s i c i s t s from Conoco and B u r l i n g t o n i d e n t i f i e d s e c t i o n 

— the southwest quarter — excuse me, southeast q u a r t e r as 

being the best l o c a t i o n , and t h a t ' s what the BLM surface 

personnel — 

Q. This unorthodox l o c a t i o n i s a combination, then, 

of topographic and geologic considerations? 

A. The Section 8 — I can't answer, I'm not sure of 

t h a t . I'm sure — I'm j u s t — The drawing department 

handled the s t a k i n g of t h i s w e l l i n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h the 

g e o l o g i s t and geophysicist, and they explained t o me t h a t 

i t was f o r topographic reasons t h a t they picked t h a t 

l o c a t i o n , because we needed a f i v e - a c r e d r i l l p a d . 

Q. Okay, you can't d e f i n i t i v e l y say whether or not 

the r e are no standard l o c a t i o n s w i t h i n the other t h r e e 

q u a r t e r sections i n Section 8? 

A. When t h i s w e l l was — I'm not aware of t h e 

d r i l l i n g department reviewing any other l o c a t i o n s , other 

than the one i n the southeast quarter of Section 8. I t ' s 

1540 f e e t from the south l i n e and 935 f e e t from the east 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

134 

l i n e , so i t ' s — We're okay from the south l i n e , and we're 

w i t h i n the 12 00-foot setback from the east l i n e . I b e l i e v e 

the setbacks are 12 00 f e e t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , i s B u r l i n g t o n 

prepared t o put on any geologic evidence w i t h regards t o 

t h i s w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I had not intended 

t o . The geologic i n f o r m a t i o n , as I understand i t , i s 

p r o p r i e t a r y . The s e l e c t i o n of the l o c a t i o n w i t h i n Section 

8 was not d r i v e n by a geologic preference. I t was simply a 

matter of convenience i n Section 8 t o f i n d a wellpad t h a t 

already e x i s t e d . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Do you know i f any of the 

other q u a r t e r sections had e x i s t i n g wellpads t h a t could 

have been u t i l i z e d ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I do not know, and I would have t o 

f i n d t h a t out. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I t h i n k we need some more — 

some more evidence concerning the unorthodox l o c a t i o n f o r 

t h i s w e l l , e x a c t l y what the reasons were. There's a 

question i n my mind about how i t was determined. I t h i n k 

we need t o address t h a t f u r t h e r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: B u r l i n g t o n has p e r m i t t i n g people 

t h a t go out i n t o the f i e l d a l l the time t o do t h i s k i n d of 

work, and I apologize, I should have brought one of those 
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people t h a t could address the topography. 

This case looks l i k e i t w i l l go i n t o tomorrow. 

Perhaps I can arrange t o have a B u r l i n g t o n r e p r e s e n t a t i v e 

come tomorrow, and we f u r t h e r discuss the l o c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , i f the q u a r t e r -

s e c t i o n l o c a t i o n was d r i v e n by some geologic c o n s i d e r a t i o n s 

— and maybe you can f i n d t h a t out too — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I w i l l f i n d t h a t out. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — i f t h a t i s the case, we 

may need, i n f a c t , t o have some geologic testimony on t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay. The predicament t h a t — I f 

t h a t i s what occurred, the predicament t h a t i t gives me i s 

t h a t we w i l l have t o d i s c l o s e p r o p r i e t a r y seismic 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, you want an unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n t oo. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I understand t h a t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Which may, i n f a c t , may be 

l i m i t e d t o Section 8. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let me examine t h a t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, w e ' l l address t h a t 

f u r t h e r tomorrow. 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Catanach, may I have a word 

w i t h Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes. 
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THE WITNESS: I j u s t want t o show him something. 

(Off the record) 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) Just, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , 

b r i e f l y , w i t h regards t o the i n t e r e s t ownership, i n Case 

Number 11,808 I j u s t want t o make sure I understand the 

breakdown of i n t e r e s t here. Who, i n f a c t — Which of these 

i n t e r e s t owners are subject t o GLA-4 6 or are associated 

w i t h GLA-46? 

A. Are you r e f e r r i n g t o Section 8? 

Q. I'm r e f e r r i n g t o the Scott w e l l . 

A. The Scott well? T o t a l Minatome. 

Q. That's the only i n t e r e s t owner t h a t — 

A. That's uncommitted. 

Q. Well, what I'm asking you i s , you s a i d you've had 

some — th e r e were some other i n t e r e s t owners who were 

p r e v i o u s l y subject t o GLA-46 or who were — t h a t have 

otherwise committed already? 

A. Yes, yes, l e t me mention those t o you. 

Q. Yeah. 

A. You have Amoco Production Company — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — you have George and Robert Umbach — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — you have the Lowell White Family T r u s t — 

Q. Okay. 
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A. — Walter A. Steele — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — G.W. Hannett, T.G. Cornish, P a t r i c i a Hueter — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — Mary Emily V o l l e r — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — and A.T. Hannett. 

Q. Okay. How about the Wayne Moore i n t e r e s t ? 

A. They're not subject t o GLA-4 6. 

Q. Okay. And from there on, the Hope Simpson — 

where you s t a r t w i t h Hope Simpson, a l l the way t o the end, 

those are the GLA-66 group? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. Now, of the i n t e r e s t owners who are p a r t 

of t he GLA-4 6, you say you've reached agreement w i t h some 

of those i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. A l l by T o t a l Minatome. 

Q. Okay. Did those i n t e r e s t owners s i g n the new 

JOA? 

A. They farmed out t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

Q. They a l l farmed out? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes, s i r . So they d i d n ' t need t o s i g n the JOA. 

May I make a co r r e c t i o n ? Robert Umbach 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

138 

p a r t i c i p a t e d , and he d i d sign the o p e r a t i n g agreement. So 

a l l but one farmed out. Robert Umbach e l e c t e d t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e , and he d i d sign the new o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

The r e s t farmed out. 

Q. Signed the new j o i n t o p e r ating agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r , c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. So as I understand i t , w i t h regards t o the 

Scott w e l l , we're j u s t — Let's see. You've got 3 5 percent 

v o l u n t a r i l y committed? 

A. Committed, yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And the r e s t of the i n t e r e s t owners 

you're p o o l i n g — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — or seek t o pool? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n c l u d i n g one r o y a l t y owner, J e r a l d — 

A. — Marcotte. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And he has signed an amendment t o h i s o i l and gas 

lease, so he's agreed t o the 640 acres. 

Q. So he's not — You're not seeking t o pool h i s 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. We have an amendment from him, so he's 

v o l u n t a r i l y amended h i s o i l and gas lease. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . With regards t o the Marcotte w e l l , 
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you've got v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n from 93 percent of the 

working i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the only p a r t i e s you're p o o l i n g i n t h i s case 

are T o t a l and the Moore i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Plus some r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners are being given 

the o p p o r t u n i t y t o amend t h e i r lease? 

A. Correct, and we sent out amendments t o t h e i r o i l 

and gas leases f o r them t o review and execute. 

Q. And some of them have executed? 

A. Out of the 33, we've received 15 so f a r , and I 

haven't checked the m a i l the l a s t couple of days. 

Q. As I understand i t , i n your — i n the cross-

examination, I b e l i e v e you t e s t i f i e d t h a t B u r l i n g t o n was 

w i l l i n g t o reduce the r i s k penalty i n t h e i r o p e r a t i n g 

agreement? 

A. This was brought t o — We put i n our proposed 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreements 400 percent. With the maximum 

r i s k p e n a l t y , t h a t would be reduced t o 300 percent, i n 

e f f e c t . 

Q. So you'd be — You were w i l l i n g t o drop t h a t 100 

percent? 
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A. Exactly, i f they would prefer going to 300 

percent, which makes sense because t h a t ' s the maximum 

pe n a l t y . 

N a t u r a l l y , we were seeking v o l u n t a r y support f o r 

our o p e r a t i n g agreement, which d i d provide f o r 400 

percent — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — because of the r i s k of t h i s w e l l . 

Q. There was some testimony about an agreement 

between B u r l i n g t o n and Cross Timbers where B u r l i n g t o n d i d 

provide some t e c h n i c a l evidence t o Cross Timbers. 

A. Cross Timbers, they agreed t o e i t h e r farm out, 

p a r t i c i p a t e or s e l l t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o us, i n w r i t i n g , on 

mut u a l l y acceptable terms and c o n d i t i o n s . With t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n we showed them an abbreviated prospect 

p r e s e n t a t i o n . They took t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n and e l e c t e d t o 

farm out because i t was a l i t t l e too r i s k y f o r them. 

Q. Are you i n a p o s i t i o n t o say whether or not t h a t 

same o f f e r could be made t o these — t o other i n t e r e s t 

owners? 

A. I f we receive a w r i t t e n agreement from the other 

i n t e r e s t e d owners t h a t they w i l l want t o p a r t i c i p a t e and up 

f r o n t w i t h our operating — I mean w i t h our AFE, s i g n our 

op e r a t i n g agreement t o farm out or t o r e s e l l t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

on m u t u a l l y agreeable terms, yes, s i r , we can do t h a t . 
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The GLA-66 owners t h a t comprise 61 i n d i v i d u a l s , 

they gave me the overwhelming impression, i s t h a t they 

d i d n ' t want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l . They j u s t don't l i k e 

a working i n t e r e s t because of the l i a b i l i t y of 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n a w e l l of t h i s nature. So t h a t r e a l l y was 

an a p p r o p r i a t e avenue w i t h those 61 owners, and t o get them 

t o a l l s i g n an agree- — you know, an acceptable agreement, 

was d i f f i c u l t . 

Q. But i f they requested t h a t k i n d of — 

A. Oh — 

Q. — o f f e r , you would — 

A. — ab s o l u t e l y , a b s o l u t e l y . 

Q. So — 

A. No, none of them requested i t , but as f a r as 

committing t h e i r acreage t o us on prearranged terms, we've 

had a request f o r f r e e looks a t our data, which we were not 

able t o comply. With no commitments t o e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e 

or farm out, we're unable t o accommodate, you know, those 

f o l k s . 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , what's the date of the l a s t v a l i d 

sanding o f f e r t o the i n t e r e s t s you're pooling? And then 

how was t h a t set f o r t h ? Can you p o i n t t o the l e t t e r ? 

A. On June 16th, we made an o f f e r , a new, r e v i s e d 
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o f f e r t o the GLA-66 owners t o farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t or 

p a r t i c i p a t e or go nonconsent. Let me see i f I can f i n d 

t h a t f o r you. 

That's the Hope Simpson, e t a l . That may be the 

Hope Simpson l e t t e r , dated June 6th, I'm s o r r y , June 6 t h . 

Acreage support proposal f o r Scott 24. 

Q. So t h a t ' s s t i l l e f f e c t i v e ? 

A. Yes, s i r . Yes, s i r , and we're working w i t h f o l k s 

on t h i s basis r i g h t now. 

We sent a new proposal t o T o t a l Minatome on June 

16th — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — and we sent a proposal t o the Moore i n t e r e s t 

on A p r i l 22nd. 

Q. What about the Marcotte well? 

A. The same l e t t e r s apply t o both. The June 16th — 

T o t a l Minatome owns an i n t e r e s t on both the Section 8 and 

9, and Moore owns an i n t e r e s t i n both Section 8 and 9. And 

then the June 6th l e t t e r deals w i t h the GLA-66 owners i n 

Section 9. 

Q. Okay, you t e s t i f i e d Mr. Moore's proposal dated 

J u l y 1st, 1997, i s unacceptable? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. W i l l you t e l l me why t h a t ' s unacceptable? 

A. The terms and c o n d i t i o n s are, from an economic 
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st a n d p o i n t , too l i t t l e net revenue and too b i g a back-in 

f o r us t o accept those terms. 

Q. Does B u r l i n g t o n have a standard net revenue 

i n t e r e s t t h a t — 

A. Seventy-five percent. 

Q. Seventy-five? 

A. Eighty t o 75 percent i s the norm. 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , what are the advantages of a p a r t y 

j o i n i n g by s i g n i n g an operating agreement, r a t h e r than 

w a i t i n g f o r a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order and then paying t h e i r 

money up f r o n t ? 

A. The — again, the — our op e r a t i n g agreement w i t h 

the — as we presented i t , was on a v o l u n t a r y b a s i s . And 

i f they d i d n ' t l i k e t h a t , then f o r c e p o o l i n g would be t h e i r 

second o p t i o n . 

Q. Well, do they have any r i g h t s under t h e o p e r a t i n g 

agreement they wouldn't have under a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order? 

A. Well, they'd have the r i g h t s t o propose a w e l l . 

Q. What? 

A. Under an operating agreement they have r i g h t s t o 

propose a w e l l . They do have c e r t a i n r i g h t s as a 

nonoperator t o — 

Q. Well, are they going t o be provided i n f o r m a t i o n 

t h a t p a r t i e s j o i n i n g under a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order wouldn't 

r e c e i v e , or do you provide the same i n f o r m a t i o n t o both 
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sets of p a r t i e s t h a t pay t h e i r money up f r o n t , whether 

th e y ' r e under an operating agreement or under a f o r c e -

p o o l i n g order? 

A. Well, the — We do not f u r n i s h any p r o p r i e t a r y 

seismic or geology. 

Q. How about d r i l l i n g reports? 

A. D r i l l i n g r e p o r t s are a v a i l a b l e , yes, i f you 

p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. Under e i t h e r a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order or an 

op e r a t i n g agreement, or j u s t under an o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Under an operating agreement, t h a t ' s provided, 

because they're paying t h e i r money and th e y ' r e e n t i t l e d t o 

t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. But what i f they're under a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order 

and e l e c t t o pay t h e i r money up f r o n t ? Do they get the 

d r i l l i n g reports? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. C a r r o l l , our p r a c t i c e i s t o 

prov i d e t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r o l l ) Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t h e r e ' s a l i t t l e 

— I t h i n k some of the p a r t i e s are confused r e g a r d i n g the 

r i s k p e n a l t y , and the 3 00 percent which i s e q u i v a l e n t t o 

the D i v i s i o n ' s 200 percent i s a l i t t l e b i t apples and 

oranges, i s n ' t i t ? I mean, the D i v i s i o n i s cost p l u s 200 

percent, which i s , i n e f f e c t , 300 percent? 

A. Exactly. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

145 

Q. And under an operating agreement i t ' s 3 00 percent 

of c o s t , which i s the 300 percent? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. So 3 00 under an operating agreement i s e q u i v a l e n t 

t o 200 under our s t a t u t e ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And I hate t o ask a question about t h i s GLA-46, 

but I'm going t o ask one. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t ' s my understanding t h a t both p a r t i e s b e l i e v e 

t h i s agreement i s e f f e c t i v e . See i f you agree w i t h my 

understanding. The d i f f e r e n c e of o p i n i o n here i s t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n believes t h a t t h i s — a c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t 

p r o v i s i o n only applies t o the f i r s t 18 w e l l s under t h a t 

agreement, and there's no p r o v i s i o n f o r f u t u r e development, 

and t h a t ' s why the amendments were c o n s t a n t l y made? 

A. That's my understanding, the way t h i s agreement 

was handled — 

Q. And i t ' s Total's — 

A. — over the years. 

Q. — understanding, i s t h a t t h i s c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t 

p r o v i s i o n continues a f t e r t h i s f i r s t — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — 18-well development? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. But you would agree with me that both parties 

b e l i e v e t h i s agreement i s e f f e c t i v e and i t covers t h e deep 

gas r i g h t s , but t h a t anything a f t e r the f i r s t 18 w e l l 

development as t o these deep gas r i g h t s , t h a t ' s an issue? 

A. There's a d i f f e r e n c e of op i n i o n on the deep 

r i g h t s between both p a r t i e s . T o t a l Minatome b e l i e v e s i t ' s 

covered, and we don't t h i n k so. 

And al s o , by the a d m i n i s t r a t i o n of t h i s 

agreement, there's been ad hoc amendments as you go along, 

and the Pennsylvanian was never envisioned i n the 1951 

agreement, deep gas e x p l o r a t i o n . 

Q. And when you sign an op e r a t i n g agreement, you're 

committing f o r the w e l l — 

A. On your p ro r a t a share — 

Q. — the i n i t i a l w e l l — 

A. Yes, s i r , your pro r a t a share. 

Q. — under t h a t operating agreement? 

And i f you don't pay, you can get sued? 

A. Well, there's some l i e n p r o v i s i o n s and — 

Q. Right, but — 

A. Right. 

Q. — you've o b l i g a t e d t o pay the costs of the w e l l 

proposed by t h a t operating agreement, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . That's the purpose o f s i g n i n g 

t h e o p e r a t i n g agreement and s i g n i n g the AFE, agreeing t o 
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t h e costs. 

MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , the i n t e r e s t owners who were 

su b j e c t t o GLA-4 6 who elected t o farm out, i s i t your 

o p i n i o n t h a t they f e l t they couldn't p a r t i c i p a t e under t h a t 

agreement? I s — 

A. No, s i r , t h e i r m o t i v a t i o n was the m e r i t s o f the 

w e l l , and whether or not they wanted — They had t o make a 

d e c i s i o n , and t h e i r d e c i s i o n , except f o r one owner, was t o 

farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t because of the h i g h - r i s k nature of 

the w e l l . 

And so they — That's what they d i d . They 

supported our two w e l l s w i t h t h e i r d e c i s i o n t o farm out. 

And w i t h the exception of Mr. Umbach, he e l e c t e d t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e , and he's the only one. 

Q. Well, wouldn't they have been i n a b e t t e r 

p o s i t i o n i f they had p a r t i c i p a t e d under GLA-46? 

A. They f e l t i t d i d n ' t apply. 

Q. Okay, t h a t ' s what I'm asking. 

A. Yes, s i r , they f e l t i t d i d not apply. 

Q. They f e l t i t d i d n ' t apply? 

A. Exactly r i g h t . 

Q. And so they farmed out? 
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A. They farmed out, and one signed a new op e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , the p o o l i n g of these r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t s , under t h e i r leases, t h e i r acreage i s allowed t o 

be pooled up t o 320 acres? 

A. Some of the leases, yes. 

Q. Okay. So, i n e f f e c t , you're — i f t h e y ' r e f o r c e 

pooled i n t h i s order, they would be g e t t i n g h a l f as much 

i n t e r e s t and twice as much acreage? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Right. 

A. They get t o share — they get t o share i n the 

pr o d u c t i o n — 

Q. — i n the production of much acreage — 

A. They get t o share i n the pro d u c t i o n on a 64 0-acre 

basis on the deep gas only. I t would a f f e c t t h e i r shallow 

p r o d u c t i o n , which i s set up on 32 0s. 

Q. Right, and i f a w e l l i s d r i l l e d on t h e 320 added 

t o t h e i r 320, they can share i n t h a t w e l l , even though t h a t 

w e l l i s not d r i l l e d — 

A. That's r i g h t — 

Q. — i n t h e i r 320? 

A. — t h a t ' s r i g h t . 
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MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l t h e 

questions we have of t h i s witness. 

I s t h e r e anything else? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have another witness, and I 

have — 

MR. GALLEGOS: I have some f u r t h e r questions, i f 

I may, generated by the Examiner's questions, unless Mr. 

K e l l a h i n has questions. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I s t h a t an ap p r o p r i a t e procedure? 

Do you want t o go around again? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yeah, i f we can keep i t 

b r i e f . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Yes, i t ' s a new area t h a t was j u s t 

opened up by your questions. Thank you. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , I want t o focus on t h i s 

h y p o t h e t i c a l s i t u a t i o n where you sa i d you would share data 

i f my c l i e n t s had a prearranged agreement. Remember the 

questions you were asked by Examiner Catanach and your 

answers j u s t a few moments e a r l i e r — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — on t h a t s ubject, focusing on t h a t , i s i t 

absolute t h a t you do that ? 
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Okay, l e t ' s t a l k about t h a t . Now, you s a i d you 

would want an arrangement where i t would already be agreed 

t h a t t he p a r t i e s would e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e , farm out, or 

s e l l t h e i r deep r i g h t s i n t e r e s t , t h a t ' s — 

A. Correct. 

Q. Those were the three a l t e r n a t i v e s ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Number one, i f they were t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e , they would be agreeing t o accept the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t B u r l i n g t o n has p r o f f e r e d j u s t as 

i s , no n e g o t i a t i o n , s o f t e n i n g , changing of any terms; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's the arrangement we have w i t h Cross 

Timbers, yes. 

Q. Okay, I understand. 

A l l r i g h t . Now, second a l t e r n a t i v e , farm out. 

I s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t you have made o f f e r s t o farm out the 

acreage of the GLA-66 group and the Moore group, but i n 

both instances i t was not the acreage i n Section 8 or 

Section 9 but a l l of t h e i r acreage, some 3000 acres f o r 

Moore and 2 48 0 acres f o r the GLA-66 owners? 

A. That's the c o n s i d e r a t i o n f o r showing you the 

seismic data and the geology, i s t h a t you c o n t r i b u t e your 

acreage i n the prospect area. Otherwise, there's no 

i n c e n t i v e f o r us t o show you p r o p r i e t a r y seismic and 
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geology without your supporting the entire prospect. 

Q. I j u s t wanted the Examiner t o understand what — 

A. That's Cross Timbers d i d . 

Q. — where you're coming from — 

A. That's what Cross Timber d i d . 

Q. We're here — With the GLA-66 owners, we're here 

t o f o r c e - p o o l t h e i r 480 acres i n Section 9 — 

A. Right. 

Q. — but when you say you would be w i l l i n g t o show 

t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , you would expect them t o agree t o farm 

out 2480 acres? 

A. Abs o l u t e l y , yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. That i s the c o n s i d e r a t i o n f o r — 

Q. That's the c o n d i t i o n t h a t you place on i t ? 

A. — showing you the — That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. That's ~ 

Q. And i n the case — 

A. — customary. 

Q. — of Moore i t ' s some — several s e c t i o n s , 3000-

some acres? 

A. Roughly 160 net acres i s the Moore i n t e r e s t . 

Q. No, but I mean when you made the farmout — 

A. I t covered — Yeah, i t covered a l l of h i s lands 
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in the area, yes. 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s what you're t a l k i n g about here — 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s the normal farmout procedure. 

Q. I wanted Mr. Catanach t o understand, you're not 

saying you'd make t h i s arrangement f o r the acres t h a t 

you're seeking t o f o r c e pool. You would want a l l of t h e i r 

acreage i n the area? 

A. I n the prospect area, yes. 

Q. Okay. And then on the t h i r d a l t e r n a t i v e , f o r the 

s e l l o u t , t h a t ' s what you want too, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. They would have t o agree i n advance, before they 

saw anything, t h a t they're going t o s e l l out e v e r y t h i n g 

they had i n the area? 

A. On mutually acceptable terms, yes. They'd have 

t o be comfortable w i t h the terms, j u s t as Cross Timbers was 

comfortable w i t h t h e i r terms. This i s prearranged — These 

are m u t u a l l y acceptable terms and c o n d i t i o n s . 

Q. But j u s t t o be c l e a r , you're not t a l k i n g about, 

i n a l t e r n a t i v e number three where they would be s e l l i n g you 

the acreage t h a t you're seeking t o f o r c e - p o o l , but r a t h e r 

a l l the acreage they have — 

A. The farmout — the farmout request covers t h e i r 
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lands i n the prospect, and the acreage covers t h e i r lands 

i n the prospect, the acreage sale. 

Q. And i f they were t o enter i n t o such a prearranged 

agreement, what i s i t t h a t you would provide? 

A. I t ' s a data package. I t ' s a — The g e o l o g i s t s 

and g e o p h y s i c i s t s w i l l give a geologic and geophysical 

p r e s e n t a t i o n , e x p l a i n i n g the prospect as we see i t , and 

b a s i c a l l y t h a t ' s i t . 

Q. I f o r g e t the exact term you used about doing i t 

w i t h Cross Timbers, but i t was something l i k e i t was a 

shortened look or something — 

A. Oh, what I meant by t h a t i s , i t ' s not a — I t ' s 

an hour or t h i r t y - m i n u t e , t h i r t y - m i n u t e t o an hour geologic 

and geophysical p r e s e n t a t i o n . That's about a l l — I t ' s 

p r e t t y basic s t u f f , apparently. 

Q. So you wouldn't provide a l l of the data — 

A. Oh, no. 

Q. — and i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s — 

A. Oh — 

Q. — and any of — No. 

A. Oh, there's — no data would be — would be — 

You would see some data, but you wouldn't — We're not 

allowed t o give any copies away, but you're allowed t o see 

the data and see our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , geologic 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , which i s h e l p f u l . I t was h e l p f u l t o Cross 
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Timbers. They el e c t e d t o farm out. 

Q. But i t would c e r t a i n l y be something l e s s than a l l 

of what the Penn team — 

A. Oh, abs- — 

Q. — put together t o come up w i t h these prospects? 

A. I t ' s a s p e c i f i c area p r e s e n t a t i o n t h a t w i l l a l l o w 

enough i n f o t o make a de c i s i o n t o farm out, p a r t i c i p a t e or 

s e l l your i n t e r e s t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Okay, t h a t ' s — I wanted t o 

c l a r i f y t h a t . Thank you. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l done. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, one more. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. So the deal s t r u c k w i t h Cross Timbers and Amoco 

covered more than j u s t these two sections? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. And may I p o i n t out one thing? I f y o u ' l l look a t 

the map showing t h e i r acreage, we're d e a l i n g w i t h two 

sec t i o n s . The GLA-66 owners, the GLA-46 owners, and the 

Moore i n t e r e s t s , they have acres s p r i n k l e d throughout t he 

area, so they're going t o b e n e f i t by the d r i l l i n g and 

completion of t h i s w e l l . T h e y ' l l have o f f s e t s t h a t they 

can do w i t h what they wish. We're only d e a l i n g w i t h two 
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s e c t i o n s , not w i t h twelve. 

MR. GALLEGOS: May I — 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. What i s the acreage t h a t was farmed out by Cross 

Timbers? 

A. I don't have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h me. But i t 

was i n the prospect area, which I can't d i s c l o s e t o you. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Catanach, a couple of GLA-46 

questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: B r i e f , b r i e f . 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. C l a r i f y something w i t h you, Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

E a r l i e r you said t h a t Amoco had farmed out i t s 

GLA-4 6 i n t e r e s t t o you. Of a l l of Amoco's farmout t o 

B u r l i n g t o n , how much of t h a t was deriv e d from t h e GLA-46? 

A. I don't have t h a t breakdown f o r you. The Amoco 

farmout covered a l l t h e i r lands, which in c l u d e d some GLA-46 

lands. 

Q. I s i t safe t o say t h a t i t ' s — only a small 

percentage of the Amoco farmout i s su b j e c t t o GLA- — 

A. I don't have t h a t breakdown f o r you. I don't 

have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Can you t e l l me i f i t ' s a small or a l a r g e 
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percentage? 

A. Well, they have — Amoco has the second l a r g e s t 

ownership i n GLA-46, so I wouldn't say i t ' s s m a l l . 

Q. Now, w i t h respect t o the other nonoperator GLA-46 

i n t e r e s t owners, you provided some testimony t h a t you 

be l i e v e d t h a t they farmed out t o you because i t was t h e i r 

o p i n i o n , t h e i r view, t h e i r p o s i t i o n , t h a t GLA-46 d i d n ' t 

apply t o t h e i r i n t e r e s t ; i s n ' t t h a t what you said? 

A. They were cooperative — They were cooperative 

w i t h B u r l i n g t o n , and we made a negotiated deal — 

Q. My question i s — 

A. — so — 

Q. — d i d you t e s t i f y — 

A. — whether they — I don't know what t h e i r 

f e e l i n g s were. That was t h e i r d e c i s i o n . 

Q. You can't o f f e r testimony as t o t h e i r reasons f o r 

farming out, can you? 

A. They wanted t o cooperate w i t h our deep t e s t . 

That was t h e i r reason. 

MR. HALL: No f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: This witness may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Catanach, I ' d l i k e t o , w i t h 

your permission, o f f e r you a tender of proof w i t h regards 

t o t h i s l o c a t i o n question you r a i s e d w i t h me a w h i l e ago. 

I b e l i e v e y o u ' l l f i n d i f we search and look a t 
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t h e w e l l f i l e s f o r the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l , y o u ' l l find-

t h a t i t s APD was f i l e d , i t s C-102 was approved, and th e APD 

was approved a t a p o i n t i n time when 160 acres was the deep 

gas spacing, and i t would have been a t a standard l o c a t i o n . 

The Marcotte wellpad, as staked where i t i s , 

would have been standard under 160-acre spacing, which 

would be 790 setbacks. 

A f t e r the Commission changed General Rule 104, 

es t a b l i s h e d 64 0 spacing, t h i s w e l l had already been staked 

and approved. And so t h e r e a f t e r , an amended C-102 was 

f i l e d , d e d i c a t i n g 64 0 t o t h i s l o c a t i o n , and t h a t amended 

C-102 f o r 640 spacing was approved. 

And so t h a t ' s the sequence, and i t has stayed i n 

t h i s l o c a t i o n i n the southwest quarter simply by the 

topography t h e r e and u t i l i z i n g an e x i s t i n g pad. 

So I t h i n k y o u ' l l f i n d when we look a t the f i l e 

t h a t t h i s w e l l was staked a t a standard l o c a t i o n and only 

became unorthodox as a r e s u l t of the o p e r a t i o n of General 

Rule 104. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , would t h a t be 

— would t h a t be a l l you had t o o f f e r i n terms of t h i s 

l o c a t i o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A l l r i g h t . So you don't plan 

on p r o v i d i n g an a d d i t i o n a l witness or evidence as t o t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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— as t o the lo c a t i o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , t h a t was the sequence. 

This i s an unusual circumstance. We are not l o o k i n g a t 

approving an NSL a f t e r the r u l e s are i n place. 

need t o search the f i l e t o make sure I'm c o r r e c t i n my 

r e c o l l e c t i o n , but I t h i n k we have the o d d i t y where t h i s 

becomes an NSL simply as a r e s u l t of changing the spacing. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. K e l l a h i n , when was the r i g 

moved on lo c a t i o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I be l i e v e — I ' l l have t o go back 

and look. I don't know when i t was moved on l o c a t i o n . I t 

was spud about the 25th of June. 

My r e c o l l e c t i o n i s — and I ' l l — and I'm — I 

MR. CARROLL: And when was the A p p l i c a t i o n i n 

t h i s case f i l e d ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: The a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the f o r c e 

pooling? 

MR. CARROLL: And the unorthodox l o c a t i o n as p a r t 

of the A p p l i c a t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t was f i l e d on June 11th f o r the 

Marcotte w e l l . 

MR. GALLEGOS: The changed spacing r e s u l t e d from 

an order issued June 5th. 

(Off the record) 

MR. CARROLL: When was i t staked, Mr. Ke l l a h i n ? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I ' l l have t o go look. I do not 

r e c a l l . I know i t was staked and approved — Well, i n 

f a c t , here i t i s . Here's the C-102. I t was surveyed and 

staked on February 16th. 

MR. CARROLL: And when was i t spud? I've 

f o r g o t t e n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: 2 5th of June, Mr. C a r r o l l . 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , who were 

n o t i f i e d i n terms of the unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? Was i t 

o f f s e t i n t e r e s t owners? 

MR. KELLAHIN: There i s a l i s t , and I ' l l have t o 

f i n d i t , but we were n o t i f y i n g the operators t h a t — 

towards whom the w e l l encroached, and I ' l l have t o go back 

and look because memory f a i l s me on who those p a r t i e s were. 

We picked up n o t i f i c a t i o n s f o r the i n t e r e s t 

owners i n 9, as p a r t of the f o r c e - p o o l i n g n o t i f i c a t i o n . 

And 17 t o the south — That's Amoco, i f I 

remember c o r r e c t l y . They were n o t i f i e d . 

And then over i n 16 I ' l l have t o w a i t f o r Mr. 

Alexander t o t e l l me, but my understanding i s , the 

c e r t i f i c a t e includes the o f f s e t s towards whom the w e l l 

encroached. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And I am not aware of any 
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o p p o s i t i o n t o the l o c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Y o u ' l l v e r i f y t h a t w i t h — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — data from Mr. Alexander? 

Okay. 

Okay, l e t ' s move on. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t . C a l l Mr. Kurt Shipley. 

KURT A. SHIPLEY, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Shipley, would you please s t a t e your name and 

occupation? 

A. My name i s Kurt Shipley. I'm a senior d r i l l i n g 

engineer w i t h B u r l i n g t o n Resources. 

Q. And where do you r e s i d e , Mr. Shipley? 

A. I n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n as a petroleum engineer? 

A. Yes. Yes, I have. 

Q. Summarize f o r us your education. 

A. I have a mechanical engineering degree from Texas 

Tech U n i v e r s i t y . 

Q. I n what year d i d you o b t a i n t h a t ? 
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A. I n 1991. 

Q. Subsequent t o graduation you became employed by 

Bur l i n g t o n ? 

A. Meridian O i l a t the time. 

Q. Okay. And where were you stationed? 

A. I've been i n Farmington f o r j u s t over s i x years. 

Q. During t h a t p e r i o d of time, d i d you devote any 

p a r t of your e x p e r t i s e and your work schedule t o the 

p r e p a r a t i o n of AFEs and i n f o r m a t i o n concerning w e l l costs? 

A. Yes, I have. That's the primary focus o f my j o b . 

Q. During t h i s p e r i o d of time, can you estimate the 

approximate number of AFEs t h a t you may have prepared, 

reviewed or been involved w i t h on behalf of your company? 

A. The number i s a great deal. I t ' s anywhere from 

700 t o 1000 cost estimates f o r AFE p r e p a r a t i o n . 

Q. Were the AFEs t h a t we're about t o look a t , the 

one f o r the Marcotte w e l l and the one f o r the Scott 24 

w e l l , AFEs t h a t you compiled w i t h the assistance of others 

but were t o t a l e d and presented under your c o n t r o l ? 

A. Yes, t h i s w e l l — I'm the c h i e f d r i l l i n g engineer 

over t h i s w e l l , but I work c l o s e l y w i t h another number of 

other d r i l l i n g engineers and f i e l d personnel t h a t have a 

grea t deal of experience i n d r i l l i n g w e l l s . 

Q. When we begin t o look a t the AFEs, then, i t 

represents your work product? 
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A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. As p a r t of t h a t e f f o r t , d i d you also look f o r 

examples of 14,000-foot-deep gas w e l l s i n the San Juan 

Basin by which t o get some h i s t o r i c a l p e r s p e c t i v e on t h e i r 

costs and on the days involved i n d r i l l i n g them t o p o i n t s 

a t t h a t depth? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. As a r e s u l t of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , have you 

determined the number of pene t r a t i o n s i n the San Juan Basin 

t h a t would have been s u f f i c i e n t l y deep enough t o access the 

i n t e r v a l you're attempting t o t a r g e t here, which l i e s a t a 

depth of approximately 14,000 feet? 

A. Yes, there was — I n the San Juan Basin t h e r e 

have only been 14 — or there have only been t h r e e w e l l s 

t h a t have been d r i l l e d t o a t o t a l depth of 14,000 f e e t . 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , have you looked a t the d r i l l i n g 

program f o r the Pennsylvanian w e l l s o u t s i d e of the San Juan 

Basin, up i n the Barker Creek Paradox Dome area? 

A. Yes, I'm the c h i e f d r i l l i n g engineer over — i t ' s 

our Barker Dome f i e l d , and we do d r i l l Pennsylvanian w e l l s 

t h e r e . I d i d compare them t o t h i s w e l l as best I could, 

but I don't f e e l t h a t they are r e l e v a n t t o the types of 

w e l l s we d r i l l — or the type of w e l l t h a t we are d r i l l i n g 

i n the San Juan Basin, because t h e i r depth i s only around 

8000 f e e t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

163 

Q. In preparation of the AFEs, did you also avail 

y o u r s e l f of determining the a v a i l a b i l i t y of a r i g t h a t was 

s u i t a b l e t o d r i l l a w e l l t o t h i s depth? 

A. Could you say t h a t again? 

Q. Yes, s i r . I n terms of developing an AFE, p a r t of 

the cost of the AFE i s conditioned upon what p a r t i c u l a r r i g 

you choose t o use? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And p a r t of t h a t cost component i s the 

a v a i l a b i l i t y of such a r i g ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . Prices f o r r i g s have i n f l a t e d i n the 

past couple of months. 

Q. Based upon your examination of the cost and the 

w e l l s i n v o l v e d i n the San Juan Basin t h a t d r i l l e d t o t h i s 

depth, have you also been able t o formulate an o p i n i o n w i t h 

regards t o an appropriate r i s k - f a c t o r p e n a l t y t o apply i n a 

p o o l i n g case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: At t h i s time we tender Mr. Shipley 

as an expert witness. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any obj e c t i o n ? 

MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

MR. GALLEGOS: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Shipley i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Let's s t a r t w i t h the e x h i b i t 
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book. I t ' s 11,809. We may have t o f i n d you one here. 

When we look a t the e x h i b i t book f o r t h e Marcotte 

w e l l , 11,809, and t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 6, are we 

lo o k i n g a t i l l u s t r a t i o n s , d i s p l a y s and f i n a l l y t he AFE t h a t 

you have prepared? 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. Are you the author of a l l these displays? 

A. With the exception of the completion cost 

estimate, the f a c i l i t i e s cost estimate and then the AFE 

cover sheet. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. But I worked very c l o s e l y w i t h Chip Lane on those 

two cost estimates. 

Q. Have you examined h i s work product and 

independently reached the conclusion about the 

reasonableness of h i s recommendations as t o those cost 

components? 

A. Yes, I have. We worked very c l o s e l y t o g e t h e r , 

and I f e e l t h a t they are reasonable f o r t h i s w e l l . 

Q. Let's s t a r t w i t h the f i r s t d i s p l a y . I d e n t i f y and 

describe what we're seeing w i t h the f i r s t c o l o r d i s p l a y . 

A. This i s a general map of the San Juan Basin, and 

i t a l s o shows the r e l a t i o n s h i p of where our Barker Dome 

f i e l d i s i n respect t o the San Juan Basin. 

And roughly spotted on the map are a l l the 
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Pennsylvanian penetrations i n the San Juan Basin. There 

are 2 8 of them. 

And then i t shows the l o c a t i o n of our proposed 

e x p l o r a t i o n w e l l , which i s about e i g h t miles n o r t h of 

Aztec, between Aztec, New Mexico, and Durango, Colorado. 

Q. From the v i c i n i t y of the Marcotte w e l l , as w e l l 

as the Scott 2 4 w e l l , how f a r do we have t o go i n terms of 

miles before you f i n d the f i r s t e s t a b l i s h e d gas p r o d u c t i o n 

out of the Pennsylvanian formations? 

A. Did you ask production i n the Pennsylvanian? 

Q. Yes, s i r . How f a r do you have t o go t o f i n d i t ? 

A. There i s no production known i n the Pennsylvanian 

f o r m a t i o n a t t h i s time i n the San Juan Basin. Now — 

Q. I f you go outside the San Juan Basin, how f a r i s 

i t before you f i n d Pennsylvanian gas production? 

A. Outside the San Juan Basin, i t ' s about t e n miles 

t o Barker Dome where Pennsylvanian w e l l s produce. Our w e l l 

i s a c t u a l l y about 20 miles from the Barker Dome f i e l d . 

Q. When you get t o the Barker Dome, you s a i d t h a t 

t h a t was production a t a d i f f e r e n t depth than what you're 

f o r e c a s t i n g f o r the e x p l o r a t i o n e f f o r t s f o r the Marcotte 

w e l l ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. The depth of the Barker Dome pr o d u c t i o n i s what, 

s i r ? 
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A. They're — They range from 8000-foot w e l l s down 

t o around 9500 f e e t . I t h i n k there's one t h e r e t h a t ' s 

close t o 10,000 f e e t . 

Q. When we look a t a l l the p e n e t r a t i o n s e x p l o r i n g 

f o r deep gas i n the San Juan Basin area, t h e r e was a t o t a l 

of what? Twenty-eight, you said? 

A. Yes, the r e i s . 

Q. Were any of those w e l l s capable of producing gas 

i n commercial q u a n t i t i e s out of the Pennsylvanian 

formation? 

A. No, they weren't, they were — They were a l l dry 

holes or noncommercial. 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the D i v i s i o n 

concerning a r i s k f a c t o r penalty t o apply i n these p o o l i n g 

cases? 

A. I would recommend a 200-percent r i s k f a c t o r , 

based on the OCD's r u l e . 

Q. And why do you reach t h a t conclusion? 

A. Well, i t ' s a — This i s a h i g h l y r i s k y g e o logic 

p r o j e c t and a d r i l l i n g p r o j e c t , and the r e are no w e l l s t h a t 

have ever produced out of those 28 t h a t have ever been 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the next d i s p l a y and t a l k about the 

vi n t a g e of the 28 w e l l s . I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the next 

i l l u s t r a t i o n . What have you p l o t t e d here? 
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A. This i s a histogram of Pennsylvanian e x p l o r a t i o n 

w e l l s i n the San Juan Basin. Going up the scale on the 

l e f t s i d e , i t s t a t e s the number of w e l l s from one t o f i v e , 

and then i t s t a r t s i n terms of years on the X a x i s . From 

1950 t o present date there's a t o t a l of 28 w e l l s . 

And what i t shows i s sporadic d r i l l i n g of the 

Pennsylvanian formation. Some years t h e r e were w e l l s 

d r i l l e d , and some years there were no w e l l s d r i l l e d . And 

th e r e was anywhere from one up t o thr e e w e l l s d r i l l e d i n a 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l — i n a p a r t i c u l a r year. And i t has been 

since the mid-1980s since any Pennsylvanian w e l l s have been 

d r i l l e d . 

So not only have t h e r e been very few 

Pennsylvanian w e l l s d r i l l e d , i t has been a long time since 

a Pennsylvanian w e l l has been d r i l l e d i n the San Juan 

Basin. 

Q. I n order t o formulate and analyze the cost 

estimated f o r these w e l l s , you had t o examine the type of 

d r i l l i n g program you a n t i c i p a t e d t o occur a t both of these 

l o c a t i o n s ; i s t h a t not true? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the next i l l u s t r a t i o n , which i s 

la b e l e d a w e l l p r o f i l e , and have you walk us through how 

you have designed the d r i l l i n g program, and then w e ' l l move 

i n t o the cost components of the program. 
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A. Okay, t h i s w e l l program was designed s i m i l a r t o 

successful Pennsylvanian w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d t o 

t h i s depth. I've l i s t e d some of the challenges t h a t we 

w i l l see i n order t o t r y t o d r i l l a w e l l of t h i s depth i n 

the San Juan Basin. 

Q. You said you were using i l l u s t r a t i o n s of 

successful Pennsylvanian wells? 

A. Successfully d r i l l e d — 

Q. D r i l l e d . 

A. — but not produced. Like the t h r e e 14,000-foot 

w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d before, t h i s has a s i m i l a r casing 

design t o them, and t h a t ' s the only way these w e l l s are 

r e a l l y r e l a t e d — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — i n t h a t they — they have s i m i l a r casing 

p o i n t s and casing sizes. 

Q. Okay. Describe f o r us what you have planned t o 

occur. 

A. Again, the challenges, some of the challenges 

t h a t we face, are along the l e f t - h a n d side. The surface 

casing p o i n t i s o b l i g a t o r y by onshore t o number two from 

the Federa l R e g i s t e r . That was — 

Q. We're loo k i n g a t s e t t i n g surface casing, 20-inch 

surface casing? 

A. Twenty-inch surface casing t o 500 f e e t and 
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d r i l l i n g a 26-inch hole. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Once we set t h a t surface casing, we are d r i l l i n g 

through the Ojo Alamo and F r u i t l a n d Coal formations. 

There's also a p o t e n t i a l f o r great loss of c i r c u l a t i o n i n 

the P i c t u r e d C l i f f formation, which i s about 2 000 f e e t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s come back up t o the Ojo Alamo i n 

the F r u i t l a n d . The caption says "wet". 

A. Yes. 

Q. What are you i l l u s t r a t i n g t h a t challenge t o be? 

A. When I say "wet" t h e r e , I mean water wet and t h a t 

they cannot be s u c c e s s f u l l y a i r - d r i l l e d through t h a t 

f o r m a t i o n , i n order t o — They can't be s u c c e s s f u l l y a i r -

d r i l l e d through the Ojo Alamo and the F r u i t l a n d f o r m a t i o n , 

because they're water-wet. 

Q. So what do you have t o do? 

A. You have t o m u d - d r i l l through t h a t s e c t i o n . 

Q. And what's the purpose of t h a t ? 

A. To c o n t r o l water, t o c o n t r o l f l o w of water i n t o 

the w e l l b o r e , also t o p r o t e c t the i n t e g r i t y of the we l l b o r e 

and c i r c u l a t e d r i l l c u t t i n g s out of the hole. 

Q. You weight up the mud i n the d r i l l i n g p o r t i o n of 

t h i s a c t i v i t y so i t has a r e s e r v o i r pressure g r e a t e r than 

t h e r e s e r v o i r pressure outside the wellbore? 

A. Yes, and t h a t ' s — Another primary use of 
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d r i l l i n g mud i s t o c o n t r o l the formation pressures and keep 

the weight of the mud above the formation pressures so t h a t 

they don't f l o w i n t o the wellbore. 

Q. You said there i s a challenge of l o s t 

c i r c u l a t i o n . What do you mean, and where might i t occur? 

A. Again, t h i s — We t a l k e d b r i e f l y about a w e l l 

t h a t t h i s w e l l was twinned on the same wellpad. That i s a 

P i c t u r e d C l i f f w e l l . I t was a f a i r l y — I t i s s t i l l a 

f a i r l y p r o l i f i c P i c t u r e d C l i f f w e l l , and i t i s depleted 

down t o a formation equivalent of less than 2.0-pound-per-

g a l l o n e q u i v a l e n t mud weight. The weight of water i s 8.3 

pounds per g a l l o n . So you're g r e a t l y overbalanced. 

And when you d r i l l i n t o a depleted, f r a c t u r e d 

f o r m a t i o n l i k e t h a t , i t wants t o take your d r i l l i n g f l u i d 

out of the wellbore and i n t o the form a t i o n . I t presents a 

gr e a t , great challenge t o d r i l l through some — through 

g r e a t l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n p o t e n t i a l . 

Q. As you're going through the Ojo Alamo and the 

F r u i t l a n d you are overbalanced? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But then when you encounter the depleted P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f , t h a t overbalance i s going t o create a l o s t 

c i r c u l a t i o n problem? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. How do you handle t h a t ? 
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A. With l o s t - c i r c u l a t i o n m a t e r i a l . I f i t gets too 

g r e a t , cement squeeze jobs can be performed here. But 

t y p i c a l l y i n t h i s area i t can be handle w i t h l o s t -

c i r c u l a t i o n m a t e r i a l . 

Q. You propose t o set the 13-3/8-inch i n t e r m e d i a t e 

casing a t approximately 313 5 feet? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why a t t h a t point? 

A. The purpose f o r t h a t casing p o i n t i s t o i n t e r r u p t 

mud d r i l l i n g p r i o r t o e n t e r i n g the very depleted Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n , which i s also h i g h l y f r a c t u r e d , and i t i s a two-

pound-per-gallon-equivalent formation. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's assume t h a t you're successful 

on s e t t i n g your intermediate casing a t 3135. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Once you set the casing, do you place cement 

between the formation and t h a t casing s t r i n g ? 

A. Yes, we do. A l l of these s t r i n g s of casing have 

cement placed behind the casing. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , i f you're successful, w i l l you 

have t i e d cement t o surface a t a depth of 3135, back on up? 

A. Yes, we w i l l , and t h a t ' s i n order t o p r o t e c t any 

freshwater a q u i f e r s or shallow — prevent m i g r a t i o n of 

f l u i d s behind t h a t casing. 

Q. Let's assume the p r o j e c t i s successful a t t h a t 
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p o i n t . Then what happens? 

A. At t h a t p o i n t we w i l l d r i l l out from underneath 

the 13 3/8 casing, and we w i l l v i r t u a l l y have t o — This 

s e c t i o n v i r t u a l l y r e q u i r e s a i r d r i l l i n g or gas d r i l l i n g , 

and — 

Q. Because why? 

A. Because h i s t o r i c a l l y speaking i n the area, i t 

cannot be s u c c e s s f u l l y m u d - d r i l l e d , no matter what l o s t 

c i r c u l a t i o n m a t e r i a l you pump. 

Q. You're t r y i n g t o move through the Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n a t t h i s point? 

A. Yes, we're t r y i n g t o d r i l l through the Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n down t o another casing p o i n t a t 7425, which i s 

above the Morrison formation, which i s , again, water-wet, 

and i t cannot be s u c c e s s f u l l y a i r - d r i l l e d or g a s - d r i l l e d . 

Q. The estimates are t h a t a t 742 5, then, you're 

below the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And above the Morrison? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What do you do then? 

A. Then we would set casing and cement t h a t . And 

due t o the low formation pressures we would cement t h i s 

casing s t r i n g and overlap back i n t o the 13 3/8 casing a t 

3135. But due t o the i n a b i l i t y of the Mesaverde f o r m a t i o n 
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t o h o l d any column of f l u i d , we f e e l l i k e we would be 

unsuccessful t o t r y t o make an attempt t o cement t h a t back 

t o surface. So --

Q. Let's — Before you t a l k about t h i s contingency, 

l e t ' s look a t the f i r s t o p t i o n . The f i r s t o p t i o n , then, i s 

t o set the 9 5/8 a t 7425 and t o do what? 

A. Well, don't be confused w i t h the way t h i s diagram 

i s w r i t t e n . 

Q. I've misread the diagram, haven't I ? 

A. Well, t h e r e i s a c o n t i n - — We have set ourselves 

up, h o p e f u l l y , f o r success by planning on a contingency. 

We f u l l y b e l i e v e t h a t we w i l l have t o d r i l l t h e diagram on 

the r i g h t , which i s t o d r i l l an 8-1/2-inch hole down t o 

12,000 f e e t and set casing a t — or 7-inch casing, and then 

set another l i n e r as we d r i l l i n t o the Pennsylvanian — 

a f t e r we d r i l l the Pennsylvanian for m a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t a l k about why you do t h a t . I f 

you look a t the contingency side of the p l a t , i f you look 

a t the 8-1/2-inch hole i n which you're going t o put the 

7-inch casing — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — what's accomplished by t h a t procedure? 

A. We have a concern by another l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n 

zone which p o t e n t i a l l y w i l l be encountered around 10,000 

f e e t i n the Entrada formation. I t ' s a g r e a t water-disposal 
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water formation in the San Juan Basin. And i t can take — 

I t can be a tremendous problem f o r l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n . 

We f e e l l i k e i n t h i s area t h a t we needed t o be 

prepared f o r l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n i n the Entrada f o r m a t i o n , 

because i f we d r i l l e d one 8-1/2-inch hole from 7425 a l l the 

way t o the Pennsylvanian, not knowing what we're going t o 

encounter i n the Pennsylvanian, i f t h e r e i s a p r o l i f i c 

f o r m a t i o n down the r e we could get i n t o a severe w e l l -

c o n t r o l s i t u a t i o n where we could be l o s i n g c i r c u l a t i o n i n 

t h e Entrada formation and t a k i n g a k i c k out of t h e 

Pennsylvanian formation a t the same time, and t h a t could be 

p o t e n t i a l l y a dangerous s i t u a t i o n . 

So i f l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n i s encountered, which 

we're expecting, we would set the 7-inch l i n e r t o p r o t e c t 

any l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n zones p r i o r t o d r i l l i n g t h a t 

Pennsylvanian formation, and we do p r o t e c t i t very w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s assume t h a t you're successful t o 

12,000 f e e t and t h a t you can s u c c e s s f u l l y set the 7-inch 

casing and s u c c e s s f u l l y cement t h a t and t i e a l l the cement 

columns back t o the surface and maintain your w e l l b o r e 

i n t e g r i t y a t t h a t p o i n t . What then do you do? 

A. Then we would d r i l l a 6-1/8-inch hole from 12,000 

f e e t down t o the proposed t o t a l depth of 14,225 f e e t . A 

6-1/8-inch hole i s the minimum hole s i z e t h a t we can — 

t h a t we wanted t o work i n t o s u c c e s s f u l l y evaluate the 
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Pennsylvanian formation w i t h cores t h a t might be c u t or 

lo g g i n g t o o l s . And t h a t was the smallest hole s i z e t h a t we 

f e l t comfortable or t h a t i s safe t o r e a l l y work i n and do 

the type of e v a l u a t i o n t h a t we a n t i c i p a t e t o do i n t h i s 

w e l l . 

Q. I f you ignore f o r the moment the f a i l u r e of 28 

other attempts i n the San Juan Basin and set aside the f a c t 

t h a t there's no es t a b l i s h e d gas production i n the San Juan 

Basin a t t h i s depth, does the r i s k of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

d r i l l i n g o p e ration alone j u s t i f y the maximum penalty? 

A. Yes, I f e e l t h a t i t does. Down t o 742 5, t h a t 

casing design i s l i k e any other Mesaverde or Dakota w e l l 

t h a t we d r i l l i n the San Juan Basin, and we have extensive 

knowledge of the — of a l l those d r i l l i n g f ormations and 

parameters down t o t h a t depth, w i t h the exception t h a t 

these hole sizes are j u s t l a r g e r . 

From 7425 down t o 14,225, we v i r t u a l l y know 

not h i n g . There i s j u s t no data, there's no d r i l l i n g data, 

except f o r those few w e l l s . And we have records on those, 

and we're using t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n as best we can, but we 

t r u l y do not know what we w i l l encounter when we d r i l l 

below 7425 i n t h i s area. The c o n t r o l i s j u s t too f a r away 

from t h i s w e l l . 

Q. I n terms of f o r e c a s t i n g the reasonable 

p r o b a b i l i t y of the length of time i n which t o d r i l l e i t h e r 
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of these w e l l s , have you made an a n a l y s i s t o approximate 

what your best f o r e c a s t i s of the d r i l l i n g time r e q u i r e d 

f o r the Marcotte w e l l or the Scott 24? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you reduced t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o an 

i l l u s t r a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the i l l u s t r a t i o n . I t ' s captioned 

"Marcotte 2 - Days versus Depth Comparison". Before we 

look a t the data, show us how t o read the scales. 

A. What t h i s i s i s a — I t ' s not uncommon i n 

d r i l l i n g engineering t o f o r e c a s t a days-versus depth c h a r t . 

On the — Down the l e f t - h a n d side of the scale, there's a 

depth c h a r t from zero down t o 14,000 f e e t , and then the 

days record i s recorded along the top — the X a x i s again, 

but i n t h i s case i t ' s across the top. 

What we do i s — I have h i s t o r i c a l data t h a t 

shows the previous three 14,000-foot w e l l s t h a t were 

d r i l l e d and where they were i n r e l a t i o n t o depth and on 

what day they were at those p a r t i c u l a r depths. 

Q. Let's look a t the blue l i n e f i r s t . That's the El 

Paso w e l l d r i l l e d i n 1961? 

A. Yes. I t ' s the San Juan 29 and 5 Number 50. I t ' s 

approximately 4 0 miles from t h i s l o c a t i o n . I t was d r i l l e d 

i n 1961 by E l Paso, and i t took them 120 days t o d r i l l t o 
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14,000 f e e t . 

Q. I f you read over and look a t the blue l i n e , what 

w e l l i s t h a t and where i s i t located? 

A. The blue l i n e or the green l i n e ? 

Q. The green l i n e , the Jess i Hahn w e l l . 

A. Okay, the Jessi Hahn, t h a t was d r i l l e d — That 

was the Je s s i Hahn Number 1 i n 1976, d r i l l e d by Amoco. And 

t h i s i s 15 years l a t e r , they've shaved one down t o 119 

days. And t h a t was the — That i s , i n f a c t , t he deepest 

w e l l ever d r i l l e d i n the San Juan Basin, a t 14,503 f e e t . 

Q. Where i s t h a t w e l l located, i f you r e c a l l , i n 

r e l a t i o n t o t h i s area? 

A. I t i s about 30 miles from t h i s l o c a t i o n . I t i s 

up i n Colorado. There's two dots on the — 

Q. Your f i r s t display? 

A. Yeah, the f i r s t d i s p l a y , there's two dots on 

the — or two s t a r s up i n Colorado, and i t ' s one of those. 

I t h i n k i t ' s the cl o s e s t one, the one on the l e f t - h a n d 

s i d e . I t ' s up i n Colorado. 

Q. Let me t u r n your a t t e n t i o n t o the l a s t l i n e 

p l o t t e d on the d i s p l a y . I t ' s the purple one f o r the 

P h i l l i p s w e l l . 

A. Yeah, the P h i l l i p s w e l l was d r i l l e d i n 1984, the 

San Juan 3 0 and 6 u n i t , Number 112Y, and t h a t was a 14,000-

f o o t w e l l , the t h i r d 14,000-foot w e l l d r i l l e d , and i t was a 
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124-day w e l l . 

Q. How have you used t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , then, t o 

f o r e c a s t your p r o j e c t i o n of the d r i l l i n g days r e q u i r e d f o r 

the Marcotte 2 well? 

A. Well, we have an aggressive t a r g e t , as you can 

see, of 60 days f o r the Marcotte. What we used was 

i n f o r m a t i o n from these w e l l s . These w e l l s , they had a l o t 

of t r o u b l e time, a l o t of bad t h i n g s happen w h i l e they were 

d r i l l i n g the w e l l . 

What we t r i e d t o do was take our knowledge of — 

our c u r r e n t knowledge of d r i l l i n g Mesaverde and Dakota 

w e l l s , t r a n s l a t i n g t h a t t o the l a r g e r hole sizes t h a t we're 

using here, and also t r y t o t r a n s l a t e any i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

we could from 7000 f e e t on down w i t h respect t o these w e l l s 

and the other Pennsylvanian w e l l s d r i l l e d , and then our 

c u r r e n t a c t i v i t y t h a t we're doing a t Barker Dome, which we 

do encounter some of the same formations; t h e y ' r e j u s t a t 

much shallower depth. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the next d i s p l a y and what you've 

categorized as some of the — you ch a r a c t e r i z e d them as 

l o g i s t i c a l challenges, but some of the items t h a t you as a 

d r i l l i n g engineer are i n a general way d e a l i n g w i t h as you 

begin t o prepare t h i s AFE. 

A. Well, I've t a l k e d about some of the d r i l l i n g 

challenges t h a t we have and some of the challenges t h a t we 
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have not — with lack of data. 

But probably — We b e l i e v e t h a t l o g i s t i c a l 

challenges t o d r i l l i n g t h i s type of a w e l l are probably 

some of the g r e a t e s t challenges t h a t we have, because 

although 14,000-foot w e l l s are not uncommon elsewhere i n 

the United States, they're extremely r a r e i n the San Juan 

Basin, as you've seen. 

We have — I n order t o d r i l l a w e l l here, we have 

r e g u l a t o r y requirements, we have a remote l o c a t i o n t h a t 

we're i n . We're surrounded by mountains. We're f a r from 

any deep-well d r i l l i n g , as f a r as deep-well d r i l l i n g goes 

i n other p a r t s of the country. 

Deep w e l l experience, we have a number o f people 

i n our b u i l d i n g t h a t have d r i l l e d deep w e l l s , but t h i s 

p r i m a r i l y a p p l i e s t o the l o c a l vendor community t h a t we 

have t o use t o help d r i l l a w e l l l i k e t h i s . Those l o c a l 

vendors are c a l l i n g on t h e i r e x p e r t i s e a l l over t h e 

country, but the people t h a t are i n place and have been i n 

place f o r years d r i l l i n g our w e l l s don't have deep w e l l 

experience, so i t ' s a great l o g i s t i c a l challenge t o get 

t h a t knowledge i n t o our Basin. 

D r i l l i n g equipment, again, t h e r e are no r i g s i n 

the San Juan Basin t h a t are capable of d r i l l i n g a w e l l t h i s 

deep, so we had t o b r i n g i n a r i g f o r t h i s w e l l , and a l l 

the equipment t h a t goes w i t h d r i l l i n g a w e l l l i k e t h i s , 
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v i r t u a l l y e v e r y thing had t o be brought i n s p e c i a l f o r t h i s 

program. 

M a t e r i a l s , again, we don't have them i n the San 

Juan Basin. 

And then we've taken a l o t of gr e a t care and 

pr e c a u t i o n i n order t o p r o t e c t the f a c t t h a t we're i n close 

p r o x i m i t y . Homes are i n the area, and we've taken a great 

deal of ca u t i o n i n order t o p r o t e c t them. 

Q. Let's see how a l l t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n t r a n s l a t e s , 

then, i n terms of your f o r e c a s t of an estimated expenditure 

f o r t he w e l l . 

I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the next d i s p l a y , t h e r e i s a 

summary cover sheet, which gives you some gross numbers, 

and l e t ' s provide the Examiner w i t h those, i f you gi v e him 

the t o t a l dryhole cost, the completion cost and the 

f a c i l i t y cost. 

A. The d r i l l i n g dryhole cost was $1,713,000. The 

suspended cost, i f you add the $77,000 t o run the 5-inch 

l i n e r on top of the $1.7 m i l l i o n , you come up w i t h a t o t a l 

of close t o $1.8 m i l l i o n . 

The completion cost f o r t h i s w e l l i s $407,000. 

Q. What type of completion i s f o r e c a s t under t h i s 

estimate? 

A. What we would do i n the completion of t h i s w e l l 

i s d r i l l out any cement, clean up the w e l l b o r e , p e r f o r a t i n g 
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and f r a c ' i n g the selected Pennsylvanian i n t e r v a l s , p o s s i b l y 

an a c i d f r a c , which i s done — we p r i m a r i l y do a t Barker 

Dome, and then running t u b i n g . 

Q. Then f i n a l l y i s the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the surface 

f a c i l i t y . 

A. Yes, the c o n s t r u c t i o n of the surface f a c i l i t i e s , 

an estimated cost of $119,000, f o r a t o t a l cost of around 

$2.3 m i l l i o n . 

Q. I s the AFE f o r the Scott 24 w e l l c o n s t r u c t e d i n 

the same fashion? 

A. Yes, due t o the close p r o x i m i t y t o the Marcotte 

Number 2, w i t h i n a m i l e , mile and a h a l f of t h i s l o c a t i o n , 

i t should be d r i l l e d very s i m i l a r l y . And knowing what we 

know a t t h i s time r i g h t now, the Scott AFE has been 

prepared the same. 

Q. Let's t u r n past the cover sheet. This says 

prepared by you a t the top. Were you responsible f o r 

e s t i m a t i n g and f o r e c a s t i n g the d r i l l i n g dryhole cost? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Okay. To the best of your knowledge, i s i t 

accurate and r e l i a b l e , and, i n f a c t , you are executing your 

p l a n based upon these costs? 

A. Yes, we — This i s an accurate a cost estimate as 

I f e l t l i k e we could come up w i t h , and — t h a t we could 

generate. And we in t e n d t o c a r r y out the — or the a c t u a l 
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d r i l l i n g according t o t h i s plan. 

Q. The next item I have i n my book — and they may 

be reversed — I have f a c i l i t i e s estimated next, and then 

f i n a l l y completion estimates. Yours may have been — 

A. That's what I have. 

Q. You have i t i n t h a t order? 

A. F a c i l i t i e s i s next. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Lane prepared t h i s , you've 

reviewed i t , and you agree w i t h h i s conclusions? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And the same t h i n g f o r the completion cost t h a t 

you j u s t described the procedure f o r . 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Do you have an opinion as t o whether or not, i n 

your estimate, the forecasted costs f o r the Scott 24 and 

the Marcotte Number 2 w e l l are f a i r and reasonable? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Are the v o l u n t a r i l y consenting p a r t i e s t h a t are 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h i s cost using t h i s AFE as a basis upon 

which they pay t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s the AFE t h a t was sent out t o 

p a r t n e r s . 

Q. And t h i s i s the one t h a t they have approved? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner as 
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t o use of t h i s AFE i n terms of p r o v i d i n g p r o v i s i o n s i n the 

p o o l i n g orders f o r e s t i m a t i n g costs, t h a t he w i l l use t h i s 

estimated cost as the estimate by which pooled p a r t i e s w i l l 

have an o p p o r t u n i t y t o pay t h e i r share and be a consenting 

p a r t y under the p o o l i n g order? 

A. Yes, I f e e l l i k e t h i s i s a f a i r cost estimate f o r 

— or f a i r AFE f o r t h i s type of a p r o j e c t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . That concludes my 

examination of Mr. Shipley. We'd move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of 

E x h i b i t 6 i n each of the two e x h i b i t books. 

MR. GALLEGOS: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, E x h i b i t 6 i n each of 

the two cases w i l l be admitted as evidence. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Go ahead? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Gallegos, yes. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. Let me ask you, Mr. Shipley, f i r s t of a l l t o 

focus on the a c t u a l circumstances of the Marcotte Number 2 

w e l l . I t i s c o r r e c t , i s i t not, t h a t t h a t w e l l i s already 

being d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Give us the date of move-on, r i g - u p . 

A. The date of move-on, r i g - u p . I'm going t o r e f e r 

t o my calendar here f o r some — 
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Q. Please do. 

A. -- some of these dates. 

The a c t u a l date of move-on and r i g - u p — I don't 

have the exact date, because so much equipment came from 

such a long distance, i t a r r i v e d on d i f f e r e n t days. 

But g i v e or take a few days, i t was around — i t 

was i n the f i r s t week of June, when i t f i r s t s t a r t e d 

a r r i v i n g . 

Q. Okay. You — We understand you are the c h i e f 

d r i l l i n g engineer on t h i s w e l l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So you're on l o c a t i o n — I f you're not here doing 

something l i k e t h i s , you're on l o c a t i o n d a i l y ? 

A. We have w e l l - s i t e r i g supervisors. I have done 

t h a t i n the past myself, but on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l we 

have two of our best r i g supervisors a l t e r n a t i n g week on 

and week o f f on t h a t r i g . 

But I am out there on — I've been out t h e r e 

v i r t u a l l y every day of the operation. I t ' s c lose t o our 

o f f i c e , and I've been there on a l l the casing j o b s , w i t h 

the exception of the one t h a t I've missed since I've been 

down here. 

Q. And you keep a d a i l y d i a r y which you're r e f e r r i n g 

t o here and you have on the witness stand w i t h you? 

A. Yes. I f t h a t — 
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Q. Okay. What was the spud date? 

A. The a c t u a l spud date was June 25th a t 6:00 a.m. 

The a c t u a l r i g - u p of the r i g s t a r t e d about seven days 

before t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Has the d r i l l i n g been e s s e n t i a l l y 

continuous since t h a t time? 

A. Yes, i t has. 

Q. Okay. I s the r i g being p a i d f o r on a day, 

footage or — 

A. I t ' s a d a i l y r a t e . 

Q. D a i l y r a t e , okay. What i s t h a t r a t e ? 

A. The r a t e of t h a t r i g i s $7250 a day, f o r a 24-

hour o p e r a t i o n . 

Q. That's Parker — 

A. Parker D r i l l i n g , and the r i g number i s 218. 

Q. Okay. By when d i d you have the surface casing 

set? 

A. Let me r e f e r t o my notes here. Surface casing 

was set on day f o u r , which was June 2 9 t h . 

Q. And what i s the depth today? Did you get a 

r e p o r t t h i s morning? 

A. I got one r i g h t before I came on the stand, i n 

f a c t , and we were a t 3103 — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — and t h a t was the f i r s t i n t e r m e d i a t e casing 
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point — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — f o r the 13 3/8 casing p o i n t . 

Q. Okay. So do you consider t h a t you're on 

schedule? 

A. We're a c t u a l l y — On the 60-day p r o j e c t e d 

schedule, we're about four days behind. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We had a l i t t l e t r o u b l e time, l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n i n 

the P i c t u r e d C l i f f formation. We fought t h a t f o r a few 

days. 

Q. So adding t h a t four days t o your 60, i t would be 

about the end of August when you should complete t h e 

d r i l l i n g and s e t t i n g casing? 

A. I — That's probably a f a i r assumption. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are d a i l y d r i l l i n g r e p o r t s being 

generated? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Okay, and who's included i n the c i r c u l a t i o n on 

those reports? 

A. Due t o the c o n f i d e n t i a l nature of the p r o j e c t , we 

have a l i m i t e d access i n t e r n a l l y . Our own people are not 

g e t t i n g a c i r c u l a t i o n , as would be a normal w e l l . The 

Pennsylvanian team and then the d r i l l i n g engineers and 

d r i l l i n g superintendents involved. 
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As f a r as e x t e r n a l c i r c u l a t i o n , I don't have a 

l i s t of who t h a t was. That was — That i s taken care of 

under my d r i l l i n g manager and h i s secret a r y . 

Q. Y o u ' l l confirm f o r us t h a t you work w i t h , among 

ot h e r s , w i t h Mike Dawson and David Schoderbeck on the 

B u r l i n g t o n Penn team? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. So you've worked, i n a sense, shoulder t o 

shoulder w i t h them f o r — what? A couple of years, on t h i s 

p r o j e c t ? 

A. I've been on t h i s p r o j e c t about a year. 

Q. But worked c l o s e l y w i t h them since t h a t time? 

A. Oh, yes, very c l o s e l y . 

Q. And do you and the members of the B u r l i n g t o n Penn 

team and the members of the Conoco Penn team meet r e g u l a r l y 

t o discuss t h i s p r o j e c t ? 

A. I t a l k w i t h my counterpart, which i s Ricky Joyce, 

the d r i l l i n g engineer f o r Conoco, on a f a i r l y r e g u l a r 

basis. He came i n l a t e i n the p r o j e c t . We've met i n 

Farmington w i t h Conoco many times, and we've met w i t h 

Conoco down i n Midland i n t h e i r o f f i c e . I was t h e r e one 

time. 

Q. And w i t h about what frequency do you meet w i t h 

the g e o l o g i s t s and geophysicists on your own Penn team? 

A. I meet w i t h them on a d a i l y basis. 
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Q. Okay. Let me ask you t o take the Case 11,809 

notebook before you, Mr. Shipley, f o r the moment. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you have that? And look under Tab 4. These 

pages aren't numbered, but l e t me — Let's see, i t ' s t he 

s i x t h page back from the tab, and i t ' s an AFE. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you f i n d that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s take a look a t t h a t . This i s 

prepared by you, as r e f l e c t e d by the e n t r y i n the upper 

r i g h t - h a n d corner, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s the date of t h i s document? 

A. January 9 t h , 1997. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The w e l l name on t h i s document i s 

Arch Rock Number 1. What does t h a t s i g n i f y ? 

A. That was a — That was the p r o j e c t e d name f o r the 

f i r s t w e l l t h a t we were going t o d r i l l . 

Q. What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of "Arch Rock"? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t i s a name f o r the area, a 

top o g r a p h i c a l landmark i n t h a t area. 

Q. A surface f e a t u r e , not a subsurface f e a t u r e ? 

A. Yeah, a surface f e a t u r e , probably. I'm not sure. 

Q. Okay. I n the second l i n e , under "Location", 
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"Section" i s j u s t shown as "XX". Would t h a t i n d i c a t e t h a t 

a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r date you d i d n ' t have a s p e c i f i c 

l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, a t the time t h i s was a general cost estimate 

f o r a 14,000-foot w e l l i n Township 31 North, Range 10 West. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the 

proposed intermediate TD, show a t 3900 t o 7500 f e e t ? 

A. Oh, okay, r e f e r — You could maybe r e f e r t o the 

f o l l o w i n g p i c t u r e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Intermediate TD i s represented by the 13 and 3/8 

casing s t r i n g and the 9 5/8 casing s t r i n g . This p a r t i c u l a r 

w e l l has what we're c a l l i n g an in t e r m e d i a t e TD and an 

int e r m e d i a t e (2) TD. There are two in t e r m e d i a t e TDs f o r 

t h i s w e l l . 

Q. I n o t i c e under the logging, you pl a n t o l o g from 

500 f o o t t o 7500 f o o t , the f i r s t l o g sweep, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s th e r e any p a r t of t h i s concept t h a t provides 

t h a t i f the Pennsylvania, the t a r g e t f o r m a t i o n , does not 

prove p r o d u c t i v e y o u ' l l come back uphole and complete i n 

shallower zones? 

A. I assume maybe t h a t ' s a f a l l b a c k , but I don't 

know. 

Q. Well, has t h a t been discussed? 
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A. I t was discussed. I mean, what do you do w i t h a 

w e l l t h i s deep i f i t ' s a dry hole? I t was discussed. 

O r i g i n a l l y , we were i n t e n - — the g e o l o g i s t was i n t e n d i n g 

t o l o g the e n t i r e w e l l , and t h a t was thrown out f o r cost 

purposes, and we w i l l be logging j u s t the bottom p o r t i o n of 

the w e l l , and t h a t i s represented i n the f i n a l cost 

estimate. 

Q. Okay. Well, you recognize t h a t you are 

p e n e t r a t i n g w i t h t h i s w e l l a number of known p r o d u c t i v e 

formations, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Let me now ask you, having taken a look a t 

t h i s January 9, 1997, instrument, t o t u r n back t o the AFE 

t h a t you were r e f e r r i n g t o under the E x h i b i t 6 group of 

a f f i d a v i t s on your d i r e c t testimony, and s k i p p i n g the — 

w e l l , l e t ' s take a look a t the — Let's do take a look a 

look a t what you c a l l the cover sheet, the one t h a t ' s s o r t 

of a summary. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. What does t h i s r e f l e c t as t o t h e Marcotte 

w e l l , the p o r t i o n of the t o t a l cost t o complete t h a t would 

be borne by B u r l i n g t o n Resources, as c o n t r a s t e d w i t h t h a t 

t h a t would be borne by the other i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about the s e c t i o n f o r j o i n t 

i n t e r e s t owners? 
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Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Okay, B u r l i n g t o n Resources' piece would be 

$215,000, and others would represent $2.1 m i l l i o n . 

Q. Now, l e t ' s t u r n t o the next page, the d e t a i l e d 

cost estimate. What was the date t h a t you prepared t h i s , 

Mr. Shipley? 

A. This was February 26th, 1997. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Somebody i n i t i a l e d an approval; i s 

t h a t what — 

A. Yeah, t h a t was d r i l l i n g superintendent Pat Bent. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And there's a — I t d i d n ' t come through r e a l w e l l 

i n the copy, but the d r i l l i n g manager i n i t i a l e d i t as w e l l , 

below my name, and h i s name i s Steve Pugh. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So we had t h r e e signatures or t h r e e i n i t i a l s on 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r cost estimate. 

Q. Okay. Now, i f we look at t h i s document, made on 

February 2 6th, 1997, we now have a s p e c i f i c w e l l name, t h a t 

being the Marcotte Number 2, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And we have a s p e c i f i c l o c a t i o n f o r the w e l l as 

of t h a t date, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. I t ' s i n Section 8, and you are able t o s t a t e a t 
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that time the exact location and footage from the various 

s e c t i o n boundary l i n e s ? 

A. This was the proposed l o c a t i o n a t the time, and 

once we go out and do the o n - s i t e i n s p e c t i o n , i t can be 

moved several f e e t i n one d i r e c t i o n or the other t o f i t the 

w e l l on the p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n . 

Q. But t h i s , i n f a c t i s — what you've s t a t e d here 

i s t he l o c a t i o n t h a t you received the d r i l l i n g p e r m i t 

f o r — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — i s t h a t co r r e c t ? 

A. Then i n t h i s case i t was the same. 

Q. Okay. So a t l e a s t by February 26th of t h i s year, 

you had the exact l o c a t i o n f o r t h i s Penn t e s t i n Section 8; 

i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And was t h i s l o c a t i o n staked or s i t e d on 

the basis of a 160-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

A. I don't know t h a t . 

Q. Well, where d i d you get the i n f o r m a t i o n t o put i n 

the second l i n e i n the upper l e f t - h a n d p a r t of t h i s 

document? 

A. I got the t o t a l depth and a l i s t of — I got the 

t o t a l depth of the w e l l and the l o c a t i o n from my g e o l o g i s t . 

Q. Okay. Mr. Dawson? 
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A. Mr. Dawson. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Any discussion w i t h him or Mr. 

Schoderbeck about how t h a t p r e c i s e l o c a t i o n was selected? 

A. Not — No, I can't remember us d i s c u s s i n g t h a t . 

Q. Okay, but you're t h a t was the source of i t ; i s n ' t 

t h a t t rue? 

A. Of Mike Dawson? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, comments here, t h i s would 

v e r i f y , I b e l i e v e , what you were saying e a r l i e r t h a t the 

d e c i s i o n was made t o s t a r t the logging deeper i n t h e 

borehole? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let me c a l l your a t t e n t i o n t o l i n e 

number 81, t u b i n g . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, you have d e t a i l concerning t h e 

casing, or p r o j e c t e d casing, f o r the w e l l a t v a r i o u s 

depths. That appears above t h a t , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You have nothing f o r t u b i n g , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. I t i s a n t i c i p a t e d , i s i t not, t h a t i f t h i s 

w e l l i s successful i t w i l l produce a very dry gas? 
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A. We don't know what the content of the gas w i l l be 

a t t h i s time. 

Q. Well, i s n ' t i t a f a c t t h a t your g e o l o g i s t and 

your g e o p h y s i c i s t expect, because of the nature of t h e i r 

t a r g e t geology, t h a t t h i s gas w i l l have l i t t l e or no 

condensate, l i t t l e or no NGLs? 

A. No, t h a t i s p o s s i b l e , we could have — At t h i s 

time they don't know i f there i s o i l p o t e n t i a l p r o d u c t i o n , 

gas p r o d u c t i o n . 

We have no idea a t t h i s time what p r o d u c t i o n 

might be, because there i s none. 

Q. Okay. So on what basis d i d you determine t h a t 

you would not provide f o r t u b i n g i n t h i s w e l l ? 

A. We d i d a l l o c a t e d o l l a r s f o r t u b i n g . That should 

have been — That was done i n the completion cost estimate 

where we have a l i n e item f o r t u b i n g , which i s 81 again, 

and we have $72,223 f o r t u b i n g . 

Q. Okay. I d i d n ' t see t h a t . I had gone t o the next 

page on the 81 f o r t u b i n g and saw a zero t h e r e , and I see 

on your completion estimate you have the t u b i n g . 

A. Yes. That would be the p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g of 

t u b i n g f o r the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. At what size? 

A. I b e l i e v e at the time we — This was estimated a 

2 7/8 produ c t i o n s t r i n g of t u b i n g . 
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Q. Let me ask you now t o t u r n t o the other notebook 

t h a t ' s Case 11,808, under Tab 6 [ s i c ] , and would you t u r n 

t o your AFE i n f o r m a t i o n f o r t h i s Scott w e l l . Do you have 

t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. S t a r t w i t h the summary sheet, j u s t t o go q u i c k l y . 

This would i n d i c a t e i f the w e l l i s t o be 

completed a t the p r o j e c t e d cost, B u r l i n g t o n would bear 

approximately $23 9,000 of t h a t expense, and other i n t e r e s t 

owners would bear $2,100,000, approximately; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the next sheet, t h i s 

cost estimate was also prepared on February 26th, 1997; 

i s n ' t t h a t t r u e , Mr. Shipley? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s . 

Q. Okay. And a t t h a t time the w e l l name had been 

sel e c t e d , the Scott 24? 

A. To my knowledge, yes. 

Q. Somebody supplied t h a t t o you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And a t t h a t time the l o c a t i o n was scheduled f o r 

Section 9, although not a t a s p e c i f i c p o i n t w i t h i n the 

s e c t i o n ; i s t h a t what the i n f o r m a t i o n would i n d i c a t e ? 

A. Yeah, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 
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MR. GALLEGOS: I pass the witness. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I can do i t now or tomorrow, whatever 

you wish. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: How long are you going t o be? 

MR. HALL: I don't have much. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's go ahead and go. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Shipley, were you responsible f o r r e g u l a t o r y 

p e r m i t t i n g f o r the wells? 

A. That i s handled i n our department, but i t handled 

by a r e g u l a t o r y agent t h a t we have, which i s Peggy 

B r a d f i e l d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are you her supervisor? 

A. I am not her supervisor, but I work c l o s e l y w i t h 

her. I d i d supply the operations plan and the H2S 

contingency plan f o r the APD. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t Peggy B r a d f i e l d 

r e c e i v e d f o r purposes of f i l i n g a C-102 form w i t h the OCD 

would have come from you, footage l o c a t i o n , acreage 

dedication? 

A. No, the footage, I have nothing t o do w i t h t he 

se l e c t e d l o c a t i o n . I'm t o l d t he l o c a t i o n where we're going 

t o d r i l l . 
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Q. And d i d you supply t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o Ms. 

B r a d f i e l d ? 

A. No, our g e o l o g i s t — When he supplies me w i t h the 

i n f o r m a t i o n f o r t o t a l depth and the l o c a t i o n , he su p p l i e s 

i t t o her a t the same time. 

Q. Do you know i f — you don't know; i t ' s t o be 

determined. But i f you do, i s B u r l i n g t o n p l a n n i n g on 

c a l l i n g the g e o l o g i s t or other person i n charge of 

r e g u l a t o r y p e r m i t t i n g ? 

A. I don't know a t t h i s time. 

Q. How about f o r the APDs or n o t i c e of s t a k i n g f i l e d 

w i t h the BLM? I s t h a t your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ? 

A. No, i t i s not. We have a man t h a t prepares our 

l o c a t i o n and b u i l d s the l o c a t i o n s , and he works c l o s e l y 

w i t h a surveyor, and he also works c l o s e l y w i t h the BLM 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e f o r surface l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. Do you know i f he's going t o t e s t i f y ? 

A. No, I don't. 

MR. HALL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I don't t h i n k I have any 

questions of t h i s witness. Let me j u s t make sure. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Shipley, w i t h regards t o the t h r e e w e l l s t h a t 

were d r i l l e d t o a depth of 14,000 f e e t i n the San Juan 
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Basin, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h what they d i d encounter a t 

t h a t depth, i n terms of shows or t e s t s or anything? 

A. I am very f a m i l i a r . I have s t u d i e d these w e l l s , 

and t h e r e were i n d i c a t i o n s of shows, and — gas shows. And 

I t h i n k the — I don't have my i n f o r m a t i o n i n f r o n t of me, 

but I know C02 gas was encountered i n the Pennsylvanian and 

the San Juan Basin by d r i l l stem t e s t i n g . 

As f a r as the extent of any more i n f o r m a t i o n on 

shows, I don't have t h a t i n f r o n t of me, but t h e r e could be 

C0 2, t h e r e could be gas. We don't know. 

Q. I s t h a t C02 i n co n j u n c t i o n w i t h methane gas? 

A. No. 

Q. I t was C02 by i t s e l f ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Your AFEs are based on a 60-day d r i l l i n g program, 

more or less? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t i s a p r e t t y aggressive d r i l l i n g 

program compared t o the past w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d . 

Do you t h i n k you can p r e t t y much s t i c k t o t h a t ? 

A. Well, i t ' s my job t o s t i c k t o i t . I hope we can. 

We're doing very w e l l as of r i g h t now, and I — based on 

estimates, I t h i n k — I t h i n k i t ' s very f e a s i b l e . We need 

t o do a good j o b . We need t o continue the good j o b t h a t 

we're doing. 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: I have nothing f u r t h e r of 

t h i s witness, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I s the r e any other questions 

of t h i s witness? 

MR. GALLEGOS: No, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: He may be excused. 

I guess t h i s i s a good time t o break. 

MR. KELLAHIN: What time would you l i k e us back? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: 8:15 I suppose we should 

s t a r t , get a good s t a r t on i t . I'm not sure how much we 

have l e f t . 

Do you have any estimates i n terms of your 

presentations? 

MR. HALL: I have two witnesses. D i r e c t of each 

would be about 2 0 minutes, three or f o u r e x h i b i t s apiece, 

land o r i e n t e d . 

MR. GALLEGOS: We have two witnesses who w i l l be 

probably 3 0 minutes on d i r e c t . One may be a l i t t l e 

s h o r t e r . T h i r t y , and the other may be 20, 25. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, so we're not l o o k i n g 

a t , I mean, another day of t h i s ? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I t h i n k there's a good chance of 

f i n i s h i n g by noon. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. And — We have a 
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couple of outstanding issues w i t h you t h a t you're going t o 

determine o v e r n i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. Well, l e t ' s go ahead 

and break a t t h i s p o i n t , and w e ' l l reconvene a t 8:15. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

5:05 p.m.) 
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